
     Ffôn/Tel: 01656 643643                                                   Facs/Fax: 01656 668126          Ebost/Email: talktous@bridgend.gov.uk                                                                                 
     Negeseuon SMS/ SMS Messaging: 07581 157014           Twitter@bridgendCBC              Gwefan/Website: www.bridgend.gov.uk

Cyfnewid testun: Rhowch 18001 o flaen unrhyw un o’n rhifau ffon ar gyfer y gwasanaeth trosglwyddo testun
Text relay: Put 18001 before any of our phone numbers for the text relay service

Rydym yn croesawu gohebiaeth yn y Gymraeg. Rhowch wybod i ni os yw eich dewis iaith yw’r Gymraeg 
We welcome correspondence in Welsh. Please let us know if your language choice is Welsh

Rydym yn croesawu gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg. 
Rhowch wybod i ni os mai Cymraeg yw eich 

dewis iaith.
We welcome correspondence in Welsh. Please 
let us know if your language choice is Welsh.

Cyfarwyddiaeth y Prif Weithredwr / Chief 
Executive’s Directorate 
Deialu uniongyrchol / Direct line /: 01656 
643148/643147
Gofynnwch am / Ask for:  Mrs Julie Ellams

Ein cyf / Our ref:      
Eich cyf / Your ref:      

Dyddiad/Date: Dydd Iau, 12 Gorffennaf 2018

Annwyl Cynghorydd, 

CYNGOR

Cynhelir Cyfarfod  Cyngor yn Siambr y Cyngor - Swyddfeydd Dinesig, Stryd yr Angel, Pen-y-bont ar 
Ogwr CF31 4WB ar Dydd Mercher, 18 Gorffennaf 2018 am 15:00.

AGENDA

1. Ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb  
Derbyn ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb gan Aelodau.

2. Datganiadau o fuddiant  
Derbyn datganiadau o ddiddordeb personol a rhagfarnol (os o gwbl) gan Aelodau / 
Swyddogion yn unol â darpariaethau'r Cod Ymddygiad Aelodau a fabwysiadwyd gan y 
Cyngor o 1 Medi 2008. 

3. Cymeradwyaeth Cofnodion  3 - 18
I dderbyn am gymeradwyaeth y Cofnodion cyfarfod y 20/06/2018

4. I dderbyn cyhoeddiadau oddi wrth:  
(i) Maer (neu’r person sy’n llywyddu)
(ii) Aelodau’r Cabinet
(iii) Prif Weithredwr
(iv) Swyddog Monitro

5. I dderbyn adroddiad yr Arweinydd 

6. Adroddiad Blynyddol Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol 2017/18  19 - 70
I gael cyflwyniad gan y Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol, Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol a Lles

7. Adolygiad o Balans gwleidyddol - Newidiadau i Aelodaeth Pwyllgorau 71 - 76

8. Diwygio'r Cyfansoddiad a'r Cynllun Dirprwyo Swyddogaethau - Rheolau 
Gweithdrefn Contractau Diwygiedig 

77 - 122

Public Document Pack

mailto:talktous@bridgend.gov.uk
http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/


9. Bargen Ddinesig Rhanbarth Prifddinas Caerdydd - Cyd Bwyllgor Trosolwg a 
Chraffu 

123 - 140

10. I Dderbyn y Cwestiwn canlynol gan Y Cynghorydd A Hussain i'r Aelod Cabinet 
- Cymunedau  
Cynyddu’r Dreth Gyngor, torri cymorthdaliadau i hanner y llwybrau bysiau a gefnogir gan y 
Cyngor, toriad o 60% i’r gyllideb ar gyfer toiledau cyhoeddus a defnydd callach o adnoddau 
(fel y’i gelwir) – a wnaiff yr Aelod Cabinet roi gwybod i’r Cyngor beth rydym yn ei gynnig i 
drigolion Sir Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr yn gyfnewid? 

11. Materion Brys  
I ystyried unrhyw eitemau o fusnes y, oherwydd amgylchiadau arbennig y cadeirydd o'r farn 
y dylid eu hystyried yn y cyfarfod fel mater o frys yn unol â Rhan 4 (pharagraff 4) o'r 
Rheolau Trefn y Cyngor yn y Cyfansoddiad.

Yn ddiffuant
K Watson
Pennaeth Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol a Rheoleiddiol

Dosbarthiad:

Cynghowrwyr Cynghorwyr Cynghorwyr
S Aspey
SE Baldwin
TH Beedle
JPD Blundell
NA Burnett
MC Clarke
N Clarke
RJ Collins
HJ David
P Davies
PA Davies
SK Dendy
DK Edwards
J Gebbie
T Giffard
RM Granville
CA Green
DG Howells

A Hussain
RM James
B Jones
M Jones
MJ Kearn
DRW Lewis
JE Lewis
JR McCarthy
DG Owen
D Patel
RL Penhale-Thomas
AA Pucella
JC Radcliffe
KL Rowlands
B Sedgebeer
RMI Shaw
CE Smith
SG Smith

JC Spanswick
RME Stirman
G Thomas
T Thomas
JH Tildesley MBE
E Venables
SR Vidal
MC Voisey
LM Walters
KJ Watts
CA Webster
DBF White
PJ White
A Williams
AJ Williams
HM Williams
JE Williams
RE Young



CYNGOR - DYDD MERCHER, 20 MEHEFIN 2018

COFNODION CYFARFOD Y CYNGOR A GYNHALIWYD YN SIAMBR Y CYNGOR - 
SWYDDFEYDD DINESIG, STRYD YR ANGEL, PEN-Y-BONT AR OGWR CF31 4WB AR 
DYDD MERCHER, 20 MEHEFIN 2018 AM 15:00

Presennol

Y Cynghorydd JR McCarthy – Cadeirydd

S Aspey SE Baldwin JPD Blundell NA Burnett
RJ Collins HJ David P Davies SK Dendy
T Giffard RM Granville CA Green DG Howells
A Hussain RM James B Jones M Jones
DRW Lewis JE Lewis DG Owen D Patel
RL Penhale-
Thomas

AA Pucella JC Radcliffe KL Rowlands

RMI Shaw SG Smith JC Spanswick RME Stirman
G Thomas T Thomas JH Tildesley MBE E Venables
SR Vidal MC Voisey LM Walters CA Webster
DBF White PJ White AJ Williams HM Williams
RE Young

Ymddiheuriadau am Absenoldeb

TH Beedle, MC Clarke, N Clarke, PA Davies, DK Edwards, J Gebbie, MJ Kearn, B Sedgebeer, 
CE Smith, KJ Watts, A Williams a/ac JE Williams

Swyddogion:

Susan Cooper Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol - Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol a Lles
Mark Galvin Uwch Swyddog Gwasanaethau Democrataidd - Pwyllgorau
Gary Jones Pennaeth Gwasanaethau Democrataidd
Richard Matthams Arweinydd Tîm Cynllunio Datblygiadau
Darren Mepham Prif Weithredwr
Jonathan Parsons Rheolwr Grŵp Datblygu
Mark Shephard Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol - Cymunedau
Kevin Stephens Cynorthwy-ydd Gwasanaethau Democataidd
Kelly Watson Rheolwr Grŵp Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol a Democrataidd

189. DATGANIADAU O FUDDIANT

Datganodd Cyfreithiwr y Cyngor a'r Swyddog Monitro fuddiant yn eitem 14 ar yr Agenda 
ac fe wnaethant adael y cyfarfod tra cafodd yr eitem hon ei hystyried.

190. CYMERADWYO'R COFNODION

PENDERFYNWYD:     Cymeradwyo Cofnodion cyfarfodydd canlynol y Cyngor fel cofnod 
gwir a chywir: -

                                     Y Cyfarfod blynyddol - 16 Mai 2018
                                     Cyfarfod arferol - 25 Ebrill 2018

191. DERBYN CYHOEDDIADAU ODDI WRTH:

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



CYNGOR - DYDD MERCHER, 20 MEHEFIN 2018

Y Maer

Cyhoeddodd y Maer mai dim ond tair wythnos oedd yna ers iddo gael ei sefydlu’n 
swyddogol fel Maer, er ei fod ef a'i Gymar wedi bod yn hynod o brysur.  Roeddent 
eisoes wedi mynychu 16 o ymrwymiadau "swyddogol", oedd i gyd yn wahanol iawn ond 
yn eu ffordd eu hunain yn ddiddorol ac yn bleserus iawn.  

Roeddent wedi cael eu swyno gan lansiad llyfr y Gofalwyr Ifanc, lle roedd pobl ifanc 
wedi cydweithio i gynhyrchu llyfr stori i blant i godi ymwybyddiaeth ymysg plant ysgol 
gynradd am rai o'r problemau sy'n wynebu gofalwyr ifanc. Roedd hwn yn ddigwyddiad 
teimladwy oedd wedi’u hysbrydoli ac roedd yn wych cael cwrdd â phawb a wnaeth y llyfr 
yn realiti, fe esboniodd.

Cafodd y Maer hefyd yr anrhydedd o gyfarfod Ei Uchelder Brenhinol Dug Caint yn ystod 
ei ymweliad â Sony yr wythnos ddiwethaf.  Cafodd ef a’i Gymar daith ddiddorol ac 
addysgiadol o gwmpas y ffatri, lle cafwyd cyfle i wylio cynhyrchu'r Raspberry Pi - 
enghraifft wych o arloesi, dylunio a pheirianneg y DU.

Roedd agor Gŵyl Maesteg hefyd yn noson bleserus, gyda'r grŵp Collabro yn rhoi 
adloniant cerddorol gwych.  Dymunai sôn hefyd am yr arddangosfa gelf wych gan blant 
nifer o ysgolion cynradd Maesteg. Defnyddiodd yr arddangosfa ddeunyddiau anarferol 
iawn, a chafodd y plant eu cynorthwyo a'u hysbrydoli gan yr artist ifanc Cymreig, Nathan 
Wyburn.

Digwyddiad hynod ddiddorol arall oedd rowndiau terfynol rhanbarthol Menter yr Ifanc, a 
gynhaliwyd yn Ysgol Fusnes Caerdydd. Roedd timau o entrepreneuriaid ifanc o bob cwr 
o Gymru yn cystadlu am le yn rowndiau terfynol Prydain, a chymerodd Ysgol Brynteg 
ran ac ennill y wobr am y stondin fasnach orau.  Mae eu prosiect ardderchog yn 
defnyddio bagiau siopa wedi'u hailgylchu i wneud esgidiau i bobl yng ngwledydd y 
trydydd byd; yn anffodus fe’u curwyd gan Ysgol Haberdashers yn Nhrefynwy, ond roedd 
ein tîm lleol wedi gwneud argraff fawr ar y Maer.

Heblaw am y digwyddiadau hyn, mae'r Maer wedi mynychu seremoni i agor siop, 
cyflwyniad Rhyddid y Fwrdeistref yn Rhondda Cynon Taf, y diwrnod gwirfoddoli yn y 
Gynghrair Amddiffyn Cathod, gwobrau Cymdeithas Gelf Tondu, digwyddiad 5ed pen-
blwydd Côr Tenovus, digwyddiad Wythnos y Gofalwyr, seremoni Dinasyddiaeth 
Brydeinig, digwyddiad yn ymwneud â Phen-y-bont ar Ogwr yn ystod y Rhyfel, Gerddi 
Agored Cefn Cribwr, ymweliad â’r YMCA, a digwyddiad 'Cydraddoldeb' yn dathlu 100 
mlynedd o bleidleisiau i ferched gyda'n cwmni Geidiaid lleol.

Yn olaf ond nid yn lleiaf, cadarnhaodd y Maer ei fod wedi cael y pleser o gyhoeddi mai 
Lewis David Pilliner fydd y Maer Ieuenctid newydd ar gyfer 2018 -19.  Mae Lewis yn 
ddisgybl yn Ysgol Gyfun Bryntirion ac roedd yn edrych ymlaen at weithio gydag ef yn 
ystod y flwyddyn i ddod.

Dirprwy Arweinydd

Gofynnodd y Dirprwy Arweinydd i'r Aelodau barhau i annog eu hetholwyr i arwyddo ar 
gyfer gwasanaeth 'Fy Nghyfrif/My Account' y Cyngor a lansiwyd yn ddiweddar.
 
Ynghyd â'r wefan newydd sbon, mae Fy Nghyfrif wedi ei gynllunio i'w gwneud hi'n haws 
ac yn symlach i bobl gael mynediad at wasanaethau'r cyngor, ac mae ganddo'r potensial 
i ddod ag arbedion mawr i'r awdurdod.

Mae Fy Nghyfrif yn hyb ar-lein bob awr o'r dydd sy'n gadael i bobl gyflawni tasgau sy'n 
gysylltiedig â'r cyngor yn gyflym ac yn hawdd, 24 awr y dydd. Mae'r cam cychwynnol yn 

Page 4



CYNGOR - DYDD MERCHER, 20 MEHEFIN 2018

caniatáu i chi wneud pethau fel gweld bil y dreth gyngor, gwneud cais am fudd-dal tai, 
gwneud cais am ostyngiadau ac eithriadau, gwneud taliadau ar-lein, sefydlu a rheoli 
debydau uniongyrchol, tanysgrifio i e-filio a mwy.

Wrth i Fy Nghyfrif ddatblygu, caiff ei ehangu i alluogi pobl i wneud pethau fel rhoi 
gwybod am dyllau yn y ffordd, gwneud cais am leoedd mewn ysgolion lleol, talu am 
brydau ysgol neu adael i'r awdurdod wybod am oleuadau stryd diffygiol.

I ddefnyddio'r gwasanaeth newydd, rhaid i'r trigolion ymweld â  gwefan y cyngor a 
chofrestru i gael cyfrif gan ddefnyddio eu cyfeiriad e-bost. 

Cynhelir y sesiwn a ailadroddir o hyfforddiant ymwybyddiaeth am y Rheoliad Diogelu 
Data Cyffredinol (GDPR) yn Siambr y Cyngor ddydd Mercher 27 ain Mehefin 2018 gan 
ddechrau am 9:00 am. Mae'r Cynghorwyr i gyd wedi eu cofrestru fel Rheolwyr Data ac 
mae'r Pwyllgor Gwasanaethau Democrataidd wedi nodi'r hyfforddiant hwn fel 
hyfforddiant hanfodol i'r holl Aelodau Etholedig ei fynychu. 

Cafodd disgrifiadau rôl ar gyfer Aelodau Etholedig eu creu a'u teilwra ar gyfer pob 
Cynghorydd unigol.  Mae Pennaeth y Gwasanaethau Democrataidd wedi gofyn i chi 
wirio a llofnodi'r copïau o'ch disgrifiadau rôl unigol sydd wedi'u gosod ar eich desgiau.  
Cesglir y rhain ar ddiwedd y cyfarfod a byddant yn cael eu defnyddio i gefnogi cyflawni 
Siarter CLlLC (WLGA) ar gyfer Cefnogi a Datblygu’r Aelodau.  Os oes angen unrhyw 
welliannau i'ch disgrifiadau rôl, rhowch wybod i'r Tîm Gwasanaethau Democrataidd a 
byddant yn diweddaru'r dogfennau yn unol â hynny.

Gofynnir i'r Aelodau adael eu dyfeisiau Surface Pro yn eu desgiau yn Siambr y Cyngor 
ar ddiwedd y cyfarfod heddiw.  Bydd hyn yn galluogi'r Adran TGCh i wneud yr 
uwchraddiadau Microsoft angenrheidiol i'r dyfeisiau a chaniatáu i'r Ap cyfyngedig 
Modern.gov gael ei osod, a fydd yn rhoi mynediad i'r Aelodau i bapurau Eithriedig ar 
gyfer y Pwyllgorau y maent yn aelodau ohonynt.

Bydd yr uwchraddio yn digwydd ddydd Iau 21ain a dydd Gwener 22ain o Fehefin.  Bydd y 
Tîm Gwasanaethau Democrataidd yn cysylltu â chi i drefnu i chi gasglu eich dyfais ac i 
fynd â'r Aelodau drwy'r broses gofrestru ar gyfer yr Ap Cyfyngedig.      

Aelod Cabinet - Cymunedau

Cyhoeddodd yr Aelod Cabinet - Cymunedau fod Adeilad eiconig Jennings, Porthcawl 
wedi cael ei gydnabod â gwobr arall ar ôl i Sefydliad Brenhinol y Syrfewyr Siartredig 
gymeradwyo'r ffordd y daethpwyd â'r strwythur rhestredig Gradd II yn ôl i fod yn adeilad 
sy’n cael ei ddefnyddio gan y cyhoedd.

Roedd yn siŵr y bydd yr Aelodau wedi sylwi sut y gosodwyd y gyntaf o'r adrannau teras 
newydd ar draeth y dref, a chyda datblygiadau megis ailwampio ciosg yr harbwr sydd yn 
mynd i ddarparu cyfleusterau newydd i ddefnyddwyr y marina neu'r ganolfan chwaraeon 
dŵr newydd sy'n cael ei datblygu yn Rest Bay, mae amserau cyffrous o’n blaenau. 
Roedd Salt Lake bellach yn ôl yn nwylo'r Cyngor, ac yr oedd yn gobeithio y bydd 
gennym newyddion yn fuan am y safle ar lan y môr lle roedd hen fflatiau Dunraven gynt.

Ym Mhorthcawl hefyd mae peth gwaith i'w wneud ar wal y morglawdd i wneud yn sicr 
bod y strwythur yn dal i fod yn gadarn. Mae'r morglawdd wedi gwneud gwaith gwych, ac 
mae hyd yn oed wedi creu newyddion rhyngwladol diolch i rai golygfeydd syfrdanol o 
donnau enfawr yn taro yn erbyn y goleudy eiconig. Byddai rhagor o fanylion yn dilyn 
wrth i'r gwaith fynd yn ei flaen.

Page 5



CYNGOR - DYDD MERCHER, 20 MEHEFIN 2018

Mae 'Blwyddyn y Môr' 2018 ar y gweill, ac mae Bwrdeistref Sirol Pen-y-Bont ar Ogwr 
eisoes wedi ei nodi trwy gynnal 'acwathlon', nofio ar draws y bae a digwyddiadau 
gwirfoddol i lanhau’r traeth.

Mae'r Cyngor yn cynllunio llawer o weithgareddau haf eraill gyda phartneriaid fel 
Ymddiriedolaeth Ddiwylliannol Awen a Credu Charity Cyf, felly ni ddylai’r Aelodau synnu 
os ydynt yn gweld creaduriaid môr mawr yn crwydro ar hyd y promenâd, theatr stryd neu 
olwg modern ar gardiau post glan môr traddodiadol. Bydd Blwyddyn y Môr hefyd yn cael 
ei nodi mewn amrywiaeth o ffyrdd diddorol mewn digwyddiadau poblogaidd eraill dros y 
misoedd nesaf, felly fe anogodd yr Aelodau i chwilio am fwy o newyddion am hyn yn 
fuan.

Mewn man arall yn y Fwrdeistref Sirol, mae disgybl chwech oed o Gwmfelin, Thomas 
Lewis, wedi ennill cystadleuaeth ar draws y Fwrdeistref Sirol i ddod o hyd i enw addas ar 
gyfer ein car patrol CCTV newydd sy'n mynd i'r afael â pharcio peryglus ac 
anghyfreithlon y tu allan i ysgolion.
 
Mae'r car bellach wedi'i ffitio gyda lifrai sy'n cynnwys ei enw newydd, sef Roly Patrolly.

Mae Roly Patrolly yn defnyddio offer adnabod platiau rhif awtomatig ar gyfer CCTV, ac 
fe'i cynlluniwyd i gofnodi unrhyw yrwyr anystyriol sy'n parcio eu ceir yn anghyfreithlon ar 
barthau 'cadwch yn glir' ysgolion, arosfannau bysiau, croesfannau i gerddwyr gyda 
llinellau igam-ogam ac ardaloedd cyfyngedig eraill sy'n rhoi plant mewn perygl.

Aelod Cabinet - Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol a Chymorth Cynnar

Cadarnhaodd yr Aelod Cabinet - Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol a Chymorth Cynnar, fod 
canolfan diogelu aml-asiantaeth MASH newydd Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr yn ddiweddar wedi 
symud i Ravens Court ac yn parhau i sefydlu ei hun. 

Erbyn yr hydref cynnar, bydd y MASH yn cynnwys oddeutu 85 aelod staff o ofal 
cymdeithasol oedolion a phlant, Heddlu De Cymru, addysg, tai, camddefnyddio 
sylweddau, prawf, iechyd, gwasanaethau cymorth cynnar a Chwmni Adsefydlu 
Cymunedol Cymru.

Byddant yn gweithio gyda'i gilydd fel rhan o dîm amlasiantaethol i ddarparu 
gwasanaethau diogelu effeithiol ar gyfer plant, pobl ifanc ac oedolion.

Mae sefydlu MASH Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr yn cyd-fynd â gweithredu Deddf Gwasanaethau 
Cymdeithasol a Llesiant (Cymru) 2014, a bydd yn ei gwneud yn bosibl i rannu 
gwybodaeth, dadansoddi a gwneud penderfyniadau cynharach, ac o ansawdd uwch yn 
gynharach.

Mae lansiad swyddogol yn cael ei gynllunio ar gyfer yr hydref cynnar, ac roedd yr Aelod 
Cabinet - Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol a Chymorth Cynnar, yn edrych ymlaen at ddod â 
manylion pellach i'r Cyngor am hyn maes o law.

Roedd hefyd am sôn fod Wythnos y Gofalwyr 2018 yn cael ei nodi ym Mwrdeistref Sirol 
Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr gyda chyfres o ddigwyddiadau gwybodaeth, stondinau, canolfannau 
galw heibio a mwy. 

Cynhaliwyd y digwyddiadau a sefydlwyd o dan thema eleni sef 'helpu gofalwyr i gadw’n 
iach ac yn gysylltiedig', mewn lleoliadau yn amrywio o Sainsbury's i Ysbyty Tywysoges 
Cymru lle cawsant lawer o sylw.

Page 6



CYNGOR - DYDD MERCHER, 20 MEHEFIN 2018

Fel pwynt diddordeb cysylltiedig olaf, mae un o'n gofalwyr ifanc wedi ysgrifennu llyfr 
gyda darluniau ar y cyd â Chanolfan Gofalwyr Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr. 

Fe'i gelwir yn 'The Bear Who Cared' ac fe'i cynlluniwyd i addysgu plant bach am yr hyn y 
mae'n ei olygu i fod yn ofalwr.

Roedd yr Aelod Cabinet - Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol a Chymorth Cynnar yn ystyried 
bod y llyfr yn cyfleu darlun teimladwy iawn a’i fod yn llawn gwybodaeth, ac roedd yn 
gobeithio y byddai'r Aelodau yn ei ystyried felly hefyd. Gellir cael mwy o wybodaeth am y 
llyfr hwn trwy ganolfan Gofalwyr Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr.

Aelod Cabinet - Llesiant a Chenedlaethau'r Dyfodol

Dywedodd yr Aelod Cabinet - Llesiant a Chenedlaethau’r Dyfodol, y bydd Aelodau'n 
ymwybodol fod Llywodraeth Cymru wedi gosod targed o 20,000 ar gyfer cartrefi 
fforddiadwy. Un o'r ffyrdd y mae Bwrdeistref Sirol Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr yn cyfrannu at hyn 
yw trwy ddarparu a gosod tai 'modiwlaidd' newydd sbon.

Mae'r rhain yn cynnwys adrannau unigol sy'n cael eu hadeiladu mewn ffatri, sy'n dod 
gydag offer cegin, gwres a’r gwaith trydanol wedi'u gosod yn barod. Maent yn cael eu 
hadeiladu'n lleol mewn ffatri yng Nghynffig, fel bod modd gosod pob adran neu fodiwl ar 
y safle i ffurfio tŷ cyflawn. 

Mantais fawr y cynllun yw ei fod yn darparu tai o ansawdd uchel, am gost isel, yn gyflym 
iawn, iawn, gan leihau'r cyfnod adeiladu i gyn lleied â thair wythnos i bob cartref. Mae 
hyn yn golygu, o gymharu â dulliau adeiladu traddodiadol, y gellir darparu cartrefi 
modiwlaidd ar gyfradd sy'n 50 y cant yn gyflymach ac sydd yn cael llai o effaith ar yr 
amgylchedd. 

Mae'r cynllun yn cael ei ddarparu fel rhan o bartneriaeth gyda Valleys to Coast a’r 
arbenigwyr Wernick Buildings. Bydd yn sefydlu wyth cartref modiwlar newydd yn Sarn a 
Thondu, ac fe'i hariannwyd gan Lywodraeth Cymru.

Mae ein partneriaeth hirsefydlog gyda Valleys To Coast Housing wedi bod yn hynod 
gynhyrchiol wrth ddarparu cartrefi o ansawdd uchel i gymunedau lleol, ac roedd hi'n sicr 
y bydd yr unedau modiwlaidd newydd yn llwyddiant mawr arall.

Soniodd yr Aelod Cabinet - Llesiant a Chenedlaethau’r Dyfodol yn fyr hefyd am yr her 
darllen haf sydd i ddod. Eleni, bydd gan y cynllun thema 'Beano' wrth i blant gymryd 
rhan mewn helfa drysor dan arweiniad neb llai na Dennis the Menace. 

Bydd pob plentyn sy'n cymryd rhan yn derbyn map o Beanotown, a bydd pob llyfr y 
byddant yn ei ddarllen yn datgelu cliwiau ynghylch ble mae'r trysor cudd wedi'i gladdu. 

Roedd hi'n siŵr y bydd yr Aelodau am annog plant eu hetholaeth i gymryd rhan, a gellir 
dod o hyd i ragor am y digwyddiad hwn trwy ymweld â gwefan her darllen yr haf.

Prif Weithredwr

Cyhoeddodd y Prif Weithredwr fod Ysgrifennydd y Cabinet sydd â chyfrifoldeb dros 
lywodraeth leol wedi cyhoeddi Papur Gwyrdd yn ddiweddar o'r enw Cryfhau Llywodraeth 
Leol.  Er bod cyfeiriad at yr angen i archwilio rôl a phwrpas llywodraeth leol, roedd llawer 
o bwyslais wrth gwrs ar ail-lunio'r ffiniau a chyfuno Cynghorau.  Nid oedd yn ymddangos 
bod gan hwn lawer o gysylltiad â'r ymarferiad blaenorol gan ei ragflaenydd a oedd wedi 
canolbwyntio ar weithio rhanbarthol. 

Page 7



CYNGOR - DYDD MERCHER, 20 MEHEFIN 2018

Mae'r pum Arweinydd grŵp wedi cyflwyno ymateb ar y cyd gan CBSP (BCBC).  Roedd 
yn mynd i rannu hyn gyda'r Aelodau i gyd, ond aeth ati i grynhoi’r prif bwyntiau a wnaed 
gan GBSP.

Yn gyntaf, roedd ein hymateb yn cadarnhau a chefnogi’r cyflwyniad gan GLlC (WLGA).  
Ymdriniodd y cyflwyniad hwnnw yn fanwl â pha mor anaddas oedd ystyried ail-lunio 
llinellau ar fapiau ar hyn o bryd, felly ni wnaethom ailadrodd hynny ond yn hytrach 
gwnaed y pwynt nad oes achos busnes clir sy'n dangos bod perfformiad neu gyfle yn 
gymesur â maint awdurdod.  Nid oes arwydd clir o hyd bod costau newid yn cael eu 
deall yn llawn nac yn bosibl eu cyflawni. 

Yn hytrach, roedd ymateb yr Arweinydd grŵp yn canolbwyntio ar roi awgrymiadau am yr 
hyn y gallai llywodraeth leol gryfach ei olygu, sef teitl y papur gwyrdd wedi'r cwbl. 
Awgrymai’r cyflwyniad y dylai Llywodraeth Cymru adeiladu ar gryfderau llywodraeth leol, 
sef atebolrwydd democrataidd uniongyrchol a dealltwriaeth o gymuned a dinasyddion a’r 
ffocws arnynt. 

Aeth ymlaen i awgrymu y gallai Llywodraeth Cymru roi cyfrifoldebau ychwanegol i 
lywodraeth leol fel comisiynu a chydlynu iechyd yn seiliedig ar y gymuned a arweinir gan 
y GIG ar hyn o bryd, fel y gallem integreiddio hynny'n well â Gwasanaethau 
Cymdeithasol a goresgyn ffocws y GIG sy’n ddealladwy ond yn gul yn y pen draw ar 
ysbytai a rhestrau aros. Y wobr fawr yma yw cymorth cynnar ac atal.

Yn yr un modd, fe wnaethom hefyd awgrymu rôl ar gyfer llywodraeth leol yn iechyd y 
cyhoedd ac wrth gomisiynu addysg uwch.

Fe wnaeth CBSP (BCBC) y pwynt hefyd y dylid gwneud hyn yn ôl pob tebyg trwy 
bartneriaethau rhanbarthol presennol yn hytrach na chan 22 Cyngor unigol.

Bwriedid y rhain fel enghreifftiau o'r math o ddadl a fyddai'n fwy adeiladol ac ystyrlon 
wrth wneud llywodraeth leol yn fwy effeithiol na dim ond chwarae gyda llinellau ar fapiau.

Nododd cyflwyniad CBSP nifer o bwerau ychwanegol hefyd a fyddai'n helpu i wneud 
llywodraeth leol yn fwy effeithiol.  Roedd y rhain yn cynnwys mwy o reolaeth dros 
ddefnyddio adeiladau ysgol. Ysgolion wrth gwrs yw'r asedau sy'n eiddo i'r Cyngor sydd 
â'r potensial mwyaf i fodloni amrywiaeth o anghenion yn ein cymunedau nid dim ond 
addysg. Yn ogystal roedd angen mwy o reolaeth dros ariannu gofal cymdeithasol.

Yn olaf, gwnaethom alw ar Lywodraeth Cymru i fod yn fwy cydlynol wrth ymdrin â 
llywodraeth leol, gan nodi bod y Papur Gwyrdd hwn wedi dod oddi wrth un Ysgrifennydd 
Cabinet ond ein bod yn ymdrin â gwahanol ysgrifenyddion Cabinet a'u hadrannau 
ynghylch addysg, gofal cymdeithasol, cynllunio, adfywio, cyllid, yr amgylchedd a 
diwylliant.

Fel y dywedwyd yn gynharach, byddai'r Prif Weithredwr yn dosbarthu'r llythyr hwnnw i'r 
holl Aelodau er gwybodaeth.

Yn olaf, roedd yr Aelodau'n sicr yn gwybod y bydd ein Pennaeth Gwasanaethau 
Democrataidd presennol, Gary Jones, yn gadael yr awdurdod yn fuan i ddechrau ar 
swydd newydd gyda Chyngor Dinas Caerdydd. 

Mae Gary wedi bod gyda Phen-y-bont ar Ogwr am 14 mlynedd, ac roedd y Prif 
Weithredwr yn gwybod y bydd yr Aelodau a chyd-Swyddogion yn gweld ei golli.

Page 8



CYNGOR - DYDD MERCHER, 20 MEHEFIN 2018

Gan mai heddiw oedd cyfarfod olaf y Cyngor i Gary, roedd y Prif Weithredwr yn siŵr y 
byddai'r Aelodau'n dymuno manteisio ar y cyfle hwn i ddiolch i Gary am ei holl gymorth a 
chefnogaeth, a dymuno'n dda iddo yn y dyfodol, yn bersonol ac yn ei swydd newydd. 

Adleisiodd yr Arweinydd deimladau’r Prif Weithredwr ar ran holl Aelodau'r Cyngor.

Daeth y Prif Weithredwr â’i gyhoeddiadau i ben trwy gadarnhau bod recriwtio Pennaeth 
Gwasanaethau Democrataidd newydd wedi cyrraedd y camau olaf, a byddai'n rhoi 
diweddariad pellach i'r Aelodau, ar ôl i'r broses hon gael ei chwblhau.  

Swyddog Monitro

Cyhoeddodd y Swyddog Monitro bod y Grŵp Ceidwadol wedi cyflwyno newid mewn 
perthynas â'i aelodaeth ar y Pwyllgor Archwilio, sef bod y Cynghorydd Altaf Hussain yn 
dod oddi ar y Pwyllgor ac yn cael ei ddisodli gan y Cynghorydd Tom Giffard, a bod 
hynny’n digwydd ar unwaith.   

192. DERBYN ADRODDIAD YR ARWEINYDD

Dywedodd yr Arweinydd fod Vaughan Gething, Ysgrifennydd y Cabinet dros Iechyd a 
Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol, wedi cyhoeddi yr wythnos ddiwethaf y bydd Bwrdeistref 
Sirol Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr yn symud allan o ardal Bwrdd Iechyd Prifysgol Abertawe Bro 
Morgannwg, a bydd yn dod yn rhan o Fwrdd Iechyd Prifysgol Cwm Taf erbyn Ebrill 
2019.

Bydd yr effaith fwyaf uniongyrchol wrth gwrs ar feysydd gwasanaeth lle rydym ar hyn o 
bryd yn gweithio ar ôl troed Bae'r Gorllewin, hy Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol a 
gwasanaethau cymorth cynnar fel Teuluoedd yn Gyntaf a Throseddau Ieuenctid. 
Cadarnhaodd y byddwn ar y cyfan yn disgwyl gweithio'n agosach gyda Chwm Taf, 
RhCT a Merthyr Tudful yn hytrach nag PABM (ABMU), Abertawe a Chastell-nedd Port 
Talbot.  
Fodd bynnag, mewn achosion lle mae'n gwneud synnwyr i weithio ar y raddfa fwy 
honno, bydd enghreifftiau yn sicr lle y gallwn weld cydweithio ar draws ardaloedd y ddau 
fwrdd iechyd hefyd. Mae'n debygol hefyd y bydd rhai trefniadau presennol gyda 
chydweithwyr o fewn PABM (ABMU) a Bae’r Gorllewin yn cymryd ychydig yn hwy nag 
Ebrill 2019 i symud drosodd.

Fel roedd yr Aelodau'n ymwybodol, mae'r Cyngor wedi pwysleisio wrth Lywodraeth 
Cymru ers amser bod ystyried Bwrdeistref Sirol Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr fel rhan o Dde 
Ddwyrain Cymru ar gyfer gwasanaethau fel addysg a'r economi, ond fel rhan o Dde 
Orllewin Cymru ar gyfer  gwasanaethau fel iechyd a gofal cymdeithasol, yn eithaf anodd 
i'w gynnal yn wyneb mwy a mwy o ranbartholi.

Roedd disgwyl i ni weithio mewn ffordd sy'n sylfaenol wahanol i ardaloedd Cynghorau 
eraill i gyd yng Nghymru yn peryglu gwanhau ein cymunedau, ond er gwaethaf hyn, 
rydym wedi creu record rhyfeddol o gydweithio effeithiol. Roedd yr Arweinydd yn siŵr y 
byddai’r Aelodau'n falch o weld bod Llywodraeth Cymru wedi cydnabod y broblem. Mae 
datganiad y Gweinidog yn ei gwneud hi'n glir mai'r bwriad yw alinio ein holl drefniadau 
partneriaeth economaidd, addysg, iechyd a gwasanaethau cymdeithasol yn gadarn o 
fewn Prifddinas-Ranbarth Caerdydd. O ran sut y bydd hyn yn effeithio ar ein 
partneriaethau gweithio cyfredol, rydym yn gobeithio cael mwy o eglurder yn fuan iawn. 
Ynghyd â'n partneriaid yn y ddau fwrdd iechyd, rydym wedi ymrwymo i wneud y 
trosglwyddo mor esmwyth ac effeithiol â phosibl, ac rydym yn cadw ffocws cadarn ar 
sicrhau'r canlyniadau gorau posibl i'n cymunedau a'n trigolion.

Page 9



CYNGOR - DYDD MERCHER, 20 MEHEFIN 2018

Cyhoeddodd yr Arweinydd ei fod wrth ei fodd o weld y bydd Maesteg yn cael ei 
gwasanaethu gan bedwar trên yr awr yn ychwanegol at wasanaeth Sul newydd. Bydd 
hwn yn gyswllt hanfodol i helpu pobl i gael mynediad at swyddi a hyfforddiant, a bydd yn 
ei gwneud hi'n llawer haws teithio rhwng Cwm Llynfi a Phen-y-bont ar Ogwr, Caerdydd a 
thu hwnt. 

Bydd unrhyw un sydd wedi ymweld â Gorsaf Reilffordd Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr yn 
ddiweddar wedi gweld canlyniadau ei adnewyddiad £1.5m yn ddiweddar. Bellach mae 
ganddi well ardal ‘concourse’ gyda desg wybodaeth newydd, swyddfa docynnau a seddi, 
toiledau newydd i deithwyr a chyfleusterau newid babanod newydd, cysgodfan a 
llwybrau newydd i gwsmeriaid, gwell diogelwch a theledu cylch cyfyng newydd,  ac 
arwyddion ac arddangosiadau gwybodaeth i deithwyr newydd. Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr yw'r 
pumed orsaf reilffordd brysuraf yng Nghymru gyfan, felly roedd y Cynghorydd Young a'r 
Arweinydd yn arbennig o falch o gwrdd â Gweinidog y Cabinet dros yr Economi a 
Thrafnidiaeth, Ken Skates, i drafod goblygiadau'r system metro newydd. Mae gwaith 
uwchraddio ar y gweill fel bod modd defnyddio trenau tri-modd sy'n gallu newid rhwng 
batri, trydan a diesel, a bod y Fwrdeistref Sirol yn mynd i elwa ar gyswllt cyflym ac 
effeithlon i faes awyr Caerdydd.

Mae cysylltedd gwell a chyfleusterau modern yn hanfodol ar gyfer gwella ffyniant yr 
ardal, ac roedd yr Arweinydd yn edrych ymlaen at weld sut y bydd y datblygiadau 
diweddaraf hyn yn helpu i ddod â chymunedau yn nes at ei gilydd, cynnig mwy o 
gyfleoedd i gyflogaeth, hamdden a thwristiaeth, a darparu cefnogaeth i'r economi.

Yn ystod yr wythnos nesaf cynhelir yr Ŵyl Ddysgu ym Mwrdeistref Sirol Pen-y-bont ar 
Ogwr lle bydd yn arddangos rhai o'r dulliau dysgu ac addysgu newydd ac arloesol sy'n 
cael eu defnyddio mewn ysgolion lleol. Yn ystod yr wythnos, bydd mwy na 800 o 
ddisgyblion, athrawon, addysgwyr, hyfforddwyr a chyflogwyr yn cymryd rhan mewn 100 
o weithdai mewn ysgolion lle byddant yn profi sut mae datblygiadau mewn ystafelloedd 
dosbarth modern yn dod â budd i blant lleol ochr yn ochr â thechnegau rhifedd a 
llythrennedd traddodiadol.

Bydd rhai o'r technegau newydd sy'n cael eu harddangos yn cynnwys defnyddio 
technoleg rhith realiti yn yr ystafell ddosbarth, therapi Lego ac ysgolion 'mynydd' awyr 
agored.
Bydd digwyddiad symposiwm yng Ngholeg Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr yn canolbwyntio ar sut y 
gall iechyd a lles disgyblion gael eu datblygu, eu cynnal a'u gwella, a bydd Diwrnod i 
Ddysgwyr yng Nghanolfan Bywyd Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr yn rhoi cyfle i blant osod 
stondinau a chynnig arddangosfeydd ac arddangosiadau ymarferol cyn cael araith gan 
yr Athro Sally Holland, Comisiynydd Plant Cymru.

Bydd yr Ŵyl yn gyfle gwych i rannu gwybodaeth a datblygu ffyrdd newydd o gefnogi 
plant, ac roedd yr Arweinydd yn gobeithio y bydd yn tyfu fel y gall rhannau eraill o Gymru 
elwa o'r syniadau a’r datblygiadau y mae'n addo eu cyflawni.

Yn olaf, dywedodd yr Arweinydd fod mwy na £1.5 miliwn wedi ei fuddsoddi yn ardal 
Pencoed dros y blynyddoedd diwethaf fel rhan o'r rhaglen Llwybrau Diogel mewn 
Cymunedau, ac roedd yn falch o nodi'r arloesedd a ddangoswyd yn y datblygiad 
diweddaraf. Mae llwybr 300 metr o hyd wedi'i osod trwy goetiroedd rhwng Brook Vale a 
Llwyn Gwern fel rhan o lwybr diogel sy'n cysylltu ag Ysgol Gyfun Pencoed ac Ysgol 
Gynradd Croesty. Yr hyn sy'n gwneud y llwybr hwn mor wahanol yw ei fod yn tywynnu 
yn y tywyllwch diolch i arwyneb resin ffoto-ymoleuol sy'n harneisio golau UV a gasglwyd 
yn ystod y dydd. 

Roedd hyn yn rhywbeth newydd i'r Fwrdeistref Sirol, ac mae'n sicr o helpu i arwain 
cerddwyr a beicwyr yn ystod misoedd y gaeaf. Mae hefyd yn cyd-fynd â newyddion bod 

Page 10



CYNGOR - DYDD MERCHER, 20 MEHEFIN 2018

cyllid wedi ei gymeradwyo i ymestyn y llwybr presennol oddi ar y ffordd o Langrallo, a 
daeth yr Arweinydd i'r casgliad fod hyn yn newyddion da pellach.

193. DERBYN Y CWESTIWN CANLYNOL GAN: Y CYNGHORYDD A HUSSAIN I'R AELOD 
CABINET - CYMUNEDAU

'A allai Aelod y Cabinet roi gwybod i'r Cyngor os gwelwch yn dda sut mae trigolion Pen y 
Fai i fod i deithio yn ac o gwmpas Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr?'

Ymateb: 

Mae Gwasanaeth Rhif 81 yn gweithredu ym Mhen y Fai ar hyn o bryd. Ond oherwydd y 
penderfyniad diweddar i gwtogi ar gyllid tuag at wasanaethau bws lleol sy’n cael eu 
cefnogi, bydd y cymhorthdal a ddarperir i'r gwasanaeth rhannol fasnachol hwn yn dod i 
ben ar 11 Awst 2018, gan adael elfen fasnachol y gwasanaeth. 

Mater i’r gweithredwr fyddai gwneud y penderfyniad am hyfywedd masnachol yr elfen 
fasnachol hon.  

Ond mae’r Gwasanaeth Rhif 67 (Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr - Abercenffig - Sarn) a ariennir yn 
rhannol gan GBSP (BCBC) ar gael, sydd ddim wedi ei effeithio gan ostyngiadau yn y 
gyllideb yn 2018/19.

Mae'r gwasanaeth hwn yn gweithredu i Heol-tyn-Garn ar hyd y briffordd (A4063), cyn troi 
i'r dde i Ffordd Pen y Fai (tuag at Bentref Abercenffig). Mae'r llwybr dychwelyd yr un fath, 
sydd i'r dwyrain o Ben y Fai. 

Os bydd y gweithredwr bysiau yn penderfynu dileu elfen fasnachol y gwasanaeth yna 
byddai hyn yn gadael rhan orllewinol ardal Pen y Fai heb wasanaeth. Pe byddai hyn yn 
digwydd yna byddai'n rhaid i'r trigolion ddefnyddio llwybr Gwasanaeth Rhif 67 i gael 
mynediad i Dref Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr neu Sarn.

Fel y nodwyd yn yr ymateb i'r ymgynghoriad mae gan lawer o drigolion fynediad at 
gerbydau modur preifat ac i'r rhai sydd â phroblemau mynediad penodol, mae 
trafnidiaeth gymunedol Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr yn cynnig darpariaeth arall. 

Wrth ystyried ail-drefnu gwasanaethau masnachol presennol, byddai hwn yn 
benderfyniad masnachol i’w wneud gan y gweithredwyr bysiau. Gofynnwyd am hyn ac 
archwiliwyd y mater yn flaenorol ac ar yr adeg honno roedd First Cymru Buses Ltd o'r 
farn bod hyn yn amhriodol gan ei fod yn effeithio ar amseru eu gwasanaethau.

O ran teithio llesol mae yna nifer o gynigion sydd wedi'u cynnwys ym Map Rhwydwaith 
Integredig y Cyngor (INM) a fydd yn ceisio gwella mynediad at deithio llesol i Ben-y-fai. 
Cymeradwywyd yr INM gan y Cabinet a Llywodraeth Cymru. Wrth gyfeirio at y pryderon 
penodol a godwyd gan y Cynghorydd Hussain, mae cynnig INM-BR-14 yn tynnu sylw at 
lwybr posibl y gellid ei rannu rhwng Pen-y-fai a Gorsaf Reilffordd Sarn yn gyfochrog â 
Heol Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr. 

Yn ogystal, mae cynnig INM-BR-19 yn nodi dymuniad i ymchwilio i'r opsiynau ar gyfer 
darparu llwybr i gerddwyr rhwng Pen-y-Fai a Chefn Glas ar hyd Ffordd Cefn Glas. Er 
bod y llwybr hwn wedi'i nodi fel cynnig yn yr INM, nid yw'n cael ei ystyried yn addas ar 
hyn o bryd ar gyfer teithio llesol gan nad yw'n bodloni'r safonau sy'n ofynnol gan 
Gyfarwyddyd Dylunio Llywodraeth Cymru.

Mae Cynnig INM-BR-61 yn cyfeirio at gyfleuster croesi gwell a gwaith cysylltiedig ar 
droedffordd wrth gyffordd Heol Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr/Heol yr Eglwys ym Mhen-y-fai yng 

Page 11



CYNGOR - DYDD MERCHER, 20 MEHEFIN 2018

nghyffiniau'r orsaf betrol. Yn olaf, mae yna gynnig hefyd (INM-BR-15) i wella mynediad i 
gerddwyr rhwng Llwybr Cenedlaethol 885 y Rhwydwaith Beicio Cenedlaethol, sy'n 
rhedeg ochr yn ochr ag Afon Ogwr, a Phentref ‘Designer Outlet’ Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr.

Cwestiwn atodol gan y Cynghorydd Altaf Hussain

Gan fod Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr wedi'i gynnwys yn Ninas Ranbarth 
Caerdydd ac yr addawyd y rhoddir cyfraniad at ei chronfa ar gyfer datblygiadau cludiant, 
a allai’r Aelod Cabinet - Cymunedau roi gwybod i'r Cyngor pryd y bydd Gwasanaethau 
Rheilffordd y Metro bob 15 munud yn cael eu darparu ar gyfer gorsafoedd ym 
Mwrdeistref Sirol Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr, gan gynnwys gwasanaethau’r brif linell a 
gwasanaethau llinell gangen Maesteg.

Ymateb:

Dywedodd yr Aelod Cabinet - Cymunedau y byddai Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Pen-y-bont 
ar Ogwr yn derbyn cyfraniad gwerthfawr tuag at brosiectau a glustnodwyd o fewn 
Bargen Ddinesig Prifddinas-Ranbarth Caerdydd, a oedd fel roedd yr Aelodau'n 
ymwybodol, yn brosiect hirdymor. Roedd yna wahanol elfennau i'r prosiect, gan 
gynnwys cynlluniau posibl ar gyfer darparu gwasanaethau rheilffordd o fath metro, er 
bod anawsterau ar hyn o bryd yng ngorsaf reilffordd Pencoed, oherwydd y groesfan 
rheilffordd a oedd yn creu ciwiau o draffig cerbydol yn y lleoliad hwn. Roedd yna gynnig 
hefyd i ystyried gwaith i wella'r bont yn yr orsaf reilffordd hon, a fyddai'n caniatáu i 
wasanaethau trên ychwanegol lifo’n ddirwystr. Byddai hyn yn cael effaith nid yn unig ym 
Mhencoed, ond hefyd ym mhob rhan o'r Fwrdeistref Sirol, gan gynyddu'r trenau fyddai’n 
cael eu darparu mewn nifer fawr o leoliadau. Roedd cyfarfod wedi’i drefnu gydag 
Ysgrifennydd y Cabinet dros Drafnidiaeth, a byddai mwy yn hysbys ar ôl i'r cyfarfod hwn 
ddigwydd. 

Daeth yr Aelod Cabinet - Cymunedau â’i ymateb i ben, drwy atgoffa'r Cyngor mai 
prosiect hirdymor oedd y Fargen Ddinesig a fyddai'n rhychwantu tua 15 mlynedd, a 
byddai prosiectau y buddsoddwyd ynddynt, gan gynnwys y rheiny ym Mwrdeistref Sirol 
Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr, yn datblygu ac yn symud ymlaen wrth i'r Fargen Ddinesig greu 
momentwm.
     

194. YSGOL GYNRADD CWMFELIN - RHAGLEN GYFALAF

Rhoddodd y Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol Dros Dro - Addysg a Chymorth i Deuluoedd a'r 
Pennaeth Cyllid a’r Swyddog A151 Dros Dro adroddiad ar y cyd.  Diben yr adroddiad 
oedd ceisio cael cymeradwyaeth y Cyngor i ddiwygio'r Rhaglen Gyfalaf ar gyfer 2018 i 
2028, i gynnwys cyllideb o £165k ar gyfer adeiladu ystafell ddosbarth newydd yn Ysgol 
Gynradd Cwmfelin. Byddai’r arian yn dod o gronfeydd wrth gefn wedi’u clustnodi, yr 
ysgol dan sylw a chyllideb y Gyfarwyddiaeth Cymorth i Deuluoedd.

Dywedodd y Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol Dros Dro - Addysg a Chymorth i Deuluoedd, er 
gwaethaf y ffaith bod staff yn gwneud y defnydd gorau o adeiladau'r ysgol fod maint 
annigonol yr ystafelloedd ddosbarth yn yr Ysgol yn rhoi pwysau ar gyfleoedd addysgu a 
dysgu yno. Roedd yr awdurdod lleol wedi cydnabod bod angen mwy o le ar yr Ysgol i 
gynorthwyo i gyflawni'r cyfnod sylfaen ac ymgymryd ag ymyriadau.

Cadarnhaodd fod nifer o awgrymiadau wedi'u hystyried, gyda chynllun yn cael ei 
ddatblygu o'r diwedd ar gyfer darparu llety sy'n addas ar gyfer grwpiau o 20, sy'n bodloni 
anghenion yr Ysgol. Felly, cynigiwyd bwrw ymlaen ar sail darparu'r gofod hwn fel adeilad 
newydd ar ddarn o dir sy'n agos at adeilad y Feithrinfa ar safle'r Ysgol.

Page 12



CYNGOR - DYDD MERCHER, 20 MEHEFIN 2018

Byddai'r ddarpariaeth hon yn darparu'r gofod ychwanegol sydd ei angen, a fyddai yn ei 
dro yn lleihau'r pwysau ar y dosbarthiadau presennol, yn ogystal â chefnogi cyflwyno 
ymyriadau a gwaith grŵp. 

Ychwanegodd y Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol Dros Dro - Addysg a Chymorth Teuluol na 
ragwelir y byddai angen unrhyw le ychwanegol ar gyfer ystafell ddosbarth yn y dyfodol 
agos, gan fod twf demograffig rhagamcanol yn gymharol isel yn nalgylch yr Ysgol hon. 
Felly, nid oedd unrhyw gynnig i gynyddu'r nifer derbyn a gyhoeddwyd (PAN) i'r Ysgol o 
ganlyniad i'r cynnig.

Yna cwblhaodd ei gyflwyniad, trwy gynghori ynghylch goblygiadau ariannol yr adroddiad.

Dywedodd un Aelod ei fod yn croesawu gwaith a oedd yn cael ei wneud mewn 
perthynas ag ysgolion o dan y Rhaglen Foderneiddio Ysgolion sydd ar y gweill ar hyn o 
bryd. Ond dywedodd y byddai hefyd yn croesawu adborth ar ganlyniadau buddsoddiad 
o'r fath mewn perthynas ag ysgolion rywbryd yn y dyfodol, hy i weld a oes gwelliannau 
wedi'u gwneud yno.

Dywedodd y Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol Dros Dro - Addysg a Chymorth Teuluol y 
byddai'n gallu darparu'r wybodaeth hon i'r Aelodau maes o law.

Gofynnodd un Aelod am sicrwydd gan y Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol Dros Dro - Addysg a 
Chymorth i Deuluoedd, fod y buddsoddiad sy'n cael ei ymrwymo i'r Ysgol yn opsiwn 
synhwyrol, o ystyried yr aildrefnu arfaethedig ar Ysgolion Cwm Llynfi maes o law.

Dywedodd y Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol Dros Dro - Addysg a Chymorth i Deuluoedd fod 
Adeilad yr Ysgol yn Ysgol Gynradd Cwmfelin yn adeilad categori Cyflwr C, yn rhy fach 
ac o ansawdd gwael, gydag ystafelloedd cotiau wedi’u lleoli yn yr ystafelloedd dosbarth 
ac felly roedd angen ei wella er mwyn ei ddwyn i fyny i'r safon ofynnol. Ychwanegodd y 
byddai diweddariad pellach yn y dyfodol o ran ad-drefnu ysgolion ym Maesteg fel y 
cyfeiriwyd ato gan yr Aelod.

PENDERFYNWYD: Bod y Cyngor yn rhoi cymeradwyaeth i ddiwygio'r Rhaglen Gyfalaf 
i gynnwys cyllideb o £165k i ariannu'r lle ar gyfer ystafelloedd 
dosbarth sydd i gael ei hadeiladu o’r newydd yn Ysgol Gynradd 
Cwmfelin, gyda'r arian i ddod o gronfeydd wrth gefn a 
glustnodwyd, cyllidebau’r Ysgol a’r Gyfarwyddiaeth Addysg a 
Chymorth i Deuluoedd.

195. ADRODDIAD ADOLYGU CYNLLUN DATBLYGU LLEOL PEN-Y-BONT AR OGWR 
(CDLL) (2013)

Cyflwynodd y Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol - Cymunedau adroddiad i'r Cyngor, i roi 
gwybod am ganlyniad yr ymarferiad ymgynghori ar Adroddiad Adolygu drafft Cynllun 
Lleol Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr (2013), ac i ofyn am gymeradwyaeth y Cyngor i gyflwyno 
Adroddiad Adolygu terfynol CDLl Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr (a atodir yn Atodiad 1 yr 
adroddiad) (ar y cyd â'r Cytundeb Cyflenwi CDLl Newydd i Lywodraeth Cymru) cyn 
diwedd Mehefin 2018.

Dywedodd Arweinydd y Tîm Cynllunio Datblygu y dylid ysgrifennu Adroddiad Adolygu 
sy'n rhan statudol o'r broses o Adolygu’r CDLl llawn cyn unrhyw ddiwygiad i’r CDLl.

Mae'r Adroddiad Adolygu'n nodi maint arfaethedig y newidiadau tebygol i'r CDLl 
presennol (2006-2021) ac mae'n ceisio cadarnhau'r weithdrefn adolygu i'w dilyn wrth 
baratoi CDLl newydd.  

Page 13



CYNGOR - DYDD MERCHER, 20 MEHEFIN 2018

O ran 'llwybr trefniadol', yn achos Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr, mae'r cynllun eisoes yn destun 
adolygiad llawn 4 blynedd sydd ei angen yn statudol, ac felly bydd angen asesu pob 
agwedd ar y cynllun i ystyried a ydynt yn parhau i fod yn gadarn ac yn addas at y diben.  
Bydd hyn yn cynnwys gweledigaeth, amcanion, strategaeth ofodol, polisïau a 
dyraniadau defnydd tir y CDLl, gan ddilyn yr un broses baratoi a'r un cyfnodau yn fras â'r 
cynllun gwreiddiol. 
  
Cadarnhaodd fod yr Adroddiad Adolygu'n cwmpasu'r pynciau canlynol: -

 Newidiadau Cyd-destunol
 Asesiad o'r Newidiadau Tebygol sy’n Angenrheidiol i'r CDLl Cyfredol
 Adolygiad o'r Sail Dystiolaeth
 Opsiynau Adolygu'r CDLl

O ran ymgynghoriad cyhoeddus, bydd Aelodau'n cofio bod adroddiad wedi'i gyflwyno i'r 
Cyngor ar 25 Ebrill 2018 yn gofyn am awdurdodiad i gynnal ymgynghoriad wedi'i 
dargedu ar Adroddiad Adolygu CDLl drafft Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr rhwng 30 Ebrill 2018 a 
25 Mai 2018. Cynhaliwyd yr Ymgynghoriad ar yr Adroddiad Adolygu drafft ar y cyd â'r 
Cytundeb Cyflawni drafft.

Cadarnhaodd Arweinydd y Tîm Cynllunio Datblygu fod yr ymgynghoriad yn cael ei 
hysbysebu yn y ffyrdd canlynol: -

 Roedd y dogfennau ymgynghori ar gael i'w harchwilio gyda ffurflenni 
sylwadau yn y Swyddfeydd Dinesig, Stryd yr Angel;

 Rhoddwyd gwybodaeth am yr ymgynghoriad, gan gynnwys yr holl 
ddogfennau, ffurflenni sylwadau a'r cyfleuster i gyflwyno sylwadau yn 
electronig ar wefan y Cyngor; ac

 Anfonwyd negeseuon e-bost a llythyrau at oddeutu 190 o ymgynghoreion 
wedi'u targedu, gan gynnwys Cynghorau Cymuned, ymgynghorwyr 
cynllunio, adeiladwyr tai, cymdeithasau tai a sefydliadau allanol 
perthnasol eraill gyda manylion am sut i ymateb. 

Erbyn diwedd y cyfnod ymgynghori, roedd 11 o unigolion a sefydliadau allanol wedi 
cyflwyno sylwadau ar yr Adroddiad Adolygu drafft.

Mewn ymateb i hyn, mae'r Cyngor wedi llunio Adroddiad Ymgynghori (a gynhwysir fel 
Atodiad 7 yn yr Adroddiad Adolygu terfynol) sy'n rhoi ymateb y Cyngor i'r sylwadau a 
dderbyniwyd. Ond nid oedd yn angenrheidiol gwneud unrhyw newidiadau sylweddol i'r 
ddogfen o ganlyniad i sylwadau o'r ymgynghoriad cyhoeddus.

Cwblhaodd ei gyflwyniad, trwy gynghori y gallai Aelodau weld copïau o'r sylwadau llawn 
yn yr Adran Gynllunio.

PENDERFYNWYD:          (1) Bod y Cyngor yn cymeradwyo'r Adroddiad Adolygu 
terfynol a'i fod yn awdurdodi Rheolwr y Grŵp Datblygu, y 
Gyfarwyddiaeth Cymunedau i gyflwyno Adroddiad 
Adolygu terfynol CDLl Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr sydd ynghlwm 
yn Atodiad 1 yr adroddiad (ar y cyd â Chytundeb 
Cyflenwi’r CDLl Newydd i Lywodraeth Cymru cyn diwedd 
Mehefin 2018.

                                         (2) Bod y Cyngor yn rhoi awdurdod dirprwyedig i Reolwr 
Datblygu'r Grŵp, y Gyfarwyddiaeth Cymunedau, i wneud 

Page 14



CYNGOR - DYDD MERCHER, 20 MEHEFIN 2018

unrhyw gywiriadau ffeithiol neu fân newidiadau i'r 
Adroddiad Adolygu, fel y bo'n angenrheidiol.

196. CYTUNDEB CYFLAWNI CYNLLUN DATBLYGU LLEOL (CDLL) NEWYDD PEN-Y-
BONT AR OGWR

Cyflwynodd y Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol - Cymunedau adroddiad i'r Cyngor ar 
ganlyniad yr ymarferiad ymgynghori ar Gytundeb Cyflenwi CDLl Newydd Pen-y-bont ar 
Ogwr, a gofynnodd am gymeradwyaeth y Cyngor i gyflwyno'r Cytundeb Cyflawni terfynol 
(ynghlwm yn Atodiad 1 i'r adroddiad) (ar y cyd ag Adroddiad Adolygu Cynllun Datblygu 
Lleol Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr (2013) i Lywodraeth Cymru cyn diwedd Mehefin 2018. 

Mae'r Cytundeb Cyflawni yn nodi sut a phryd y gall y gymuned leol a rhanddeiliaid eraill 
gyfrannu at baratoi'r Cynllun Newydd ac amserlen ar gyfer ei baratoi.  Cynigir y bydd y 
CDLl Newydd yn cynnwys cyfnod y cynllun hyd at 2033.

Dywedodd yr Arweinydd Tîm Cynllunio Datblygu, o ran ymgynghori ar y Cytundeb 
Cyflawni, y byddai Aelodau hefyd yn cofio y cyflwynwyd adroddiad i'r Cyngor ar 25 Ebrill 
2018 a oedd yn amlinellu ymateb yr Ysgrifennydd Cabinet, a oedd yn caniatáu i Ben-y-
bont ar Ogwr fynd ymlaen â'i CDLl yn ddarostyngedig i ddyddiad cau caeth oedd yn 
gofyn am gyflwyno'r Cytundeb Cyflawni cyn diwedd Mehefin 2018.  Roedd yr adroddiad 
hefyd yn gofyn am awdurdodiad i gynnal ymgynghoriad wedi'i dargedu ar Gytundeb 
Cyflwyno CDLl Newydd drafft Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr rhwng 30 Ebrill 2018 a 25 Mai 2018.

Ychwanegodd y cynhaliwyd yr Ymgynghoriad ar y Cytundeb Cyflawni drafft ar y cyd ag 
Adroddiad Adolygu Cynllun Datblygu Lleol (2013) drafft Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr. 

            Hysbysebwyd yr ymgynghoriad yn y ffyrdd canlynol: -

 Roedd y dogfennau ymgynghori ar gael i'w harchwilio yn y Swyddfeydd 
Dinesig, Stryd yr Angel;

 Rhoddwyd gwybodaeth am yr ymgynghoriad ar wefan y Cyngor; ac
 Anfonwyd negeseuon e-bost a llythyrau at tua 190 o ymgynghoreion, gan 

gynnwys Cynghorau Cymuned, ymgynghorwyr cynllunio, adeiladwyr tai, 
cymdeithasau tai a sefydliadau allanol perthnasol eraill gyda manylion am 
sut i ymateb. 

Ychwanegodd Arweinydd y Tîm Cynllunio Datblygu, erbyn diwedd y cyfnod ymgynghori, 
bod 8 sefydliad allanol wedi cyflwyno sylwadau ar y Cytundeb Cyflawni drafft. Mewn 
ymateb, mae'r Cyngor wedi llunio Adroddiad Ymgynghori a gynhwyswyd fel Atodiad 3 yn 
y Cytundeb Cyflawni terfynol, a oedd yn rhoi ymateb y Cyngor i'r sylwadau a 
dderbyniwyd.

Gellir gweld copïau o'r sylwadau llawn gan yr Aelodau yn yr Adran Gynllunio, 
ychwanegodd ymhellach.

Roedd y prif newidiadau i'r Cytundeb Cyflawni a argymhellwyd gan Swyddogion yn 
cynnwys:

 Diweddariadau i'r rhestr o Gyrff Ymgynghori (sydd ynghlwm fel Atodiad 1 
yn y Cytundeb Cyflawni):

o Ystyrid ei bod yn ddoeth cynnwys yr holl ACLl ym 
Mhrifddinas-Ranbarth Caerdydd yn hytrach na dim ond yr 
ACLl cyfagos (Bro Morgannwg, RhCT a Chastell-nedd Port 
Talbot) i adlewyrchu cydweithio / gweithio rhanbarthol a 
pharatoi'r Cynllun Datblygu Strategol. 

Page 15



CYNGOR - DYDD MERCHER, 20 MEHEFIN 2018

o Mae Iechyd Lleol Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr a Bwrdd 
Partneriaeth Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr wedi cael eu dileu gan 
fod y ddau wedi’u disodli gan y Bwrdd Gwasanaethau 
Cyhoeddus.

o Mae RNI Pobl Fyddar a Thrwm eu Clyw wedi disodli 
Gweithredu ar Golli Clyw.

o Mae'r Comisiwn Cydraddoldeb a Hawliau Dynol wedi 
disodli’r Comisiwn Cydraddoldeb Hiliol, a’r Comisiwn 
Hawliau Anabledd.  

o Mae Fields in Trust - yn disodli Cymdeithas Genedlaethol 
Caeau Chwarae Cymru.

o Mae 'Gweithredu ar Golli Clyw' wedi disodli’r Sefydliad 
Cenedlaethol Brenhinol ar gyfer Pobl Fyddar a thrwm eu 
Clyw.

o Mae Anabledd Cymru wedi disodli Cyngor Cymru i'r Anabl.

 Gwnaed diwygiad i'r amserlen (ynghlwm yn Atodiad 2 i'r adroddiad) i'r 
Cytundeb Cyflawni i adlewyrchu y dylid cynnal ymarferiad cwmpasu 
Gwerthusiad Cynaliadwyedd (SA) cyn ymgynghori'n gyhoeddus ar 
gynigion CDLl sylweddol. Bydd angen i'r holl safleoedd a gyflwynir mewn 
ymateb i 'alwad am safleoedd' yn y dyfodol fod yn ddarostyngedig i 
Werthusiad Cynaliadwyedd maes o law, felly byddai'n well diffinio 
fframwaith, methodoleg a gofynion gwybodaeth Gwerthusiad 
Cynaliadwyedd y CDLl trwy Adroddiad Cwmpasu Gwerthusiad 
Cynaliadwyedd cyn cyhoeddi'r alwad am safleoedd (ac unrhyw pro-
formas cysylltiedig yn ymwneud â safleoedd). Dylai hyn helpu i sicrhau 
bod hyrwyddwyr safleoedd yn cyflwyno digon o wybodaeth am 
gynaliadwyedd a’r amgylchedd er mwyn galluogi'r Gwerthusiad 
Cynaliadwyedd i gael ei wneud yn effeithlon. 

 Roedd paragraff 1.6.2 wedi'i ddiwygio i ddangos rhywfaint o gysylltiad 
rhwng y Gwerthusiad Cynaliadwyedd (SEA), Cynllun Llesiant Pen-y-bont 
ar Ogwr (yn unol â Deddf Llesiant Cenedlaethau'r Dyfodol (Cymru) a'r 
Asesiad Rheoliadau Cynefinoedd (HRA).

 Mae paragraff 1.6.3 wedi'i ehangu i gyfeirio at y gofyniad statudol i 
ymgymryd â sgrinio SEA.

 Mae Paragraff 1.6.3, yr ail a'r trydydd pwynt bwled, wedi’u cyfuno mewn 
un bwled at ddibenion eglurder.

 Mae Paragraff 1.6.3, y pwynt bwled olaf, wedi ei ddiwygio i egluro y bydd 
Datganiad Mabwysiadu'r Gwerthusiad Cynaliadwyedd yn cael ei 
gyhoeddi ar ôl mabwysiadu'r CDLl newydd.

            
O ran y sefyllfa bresennol, cadarnhaodd Arweinydd y Tîm Cynllunio Datblygu bod y 
Cytundeb Cyflawni drafft yn cynnwys 2 ran: -

 Amserlen ar gyfer paratoi'r CDLl Newydd, a
 Chynllun Cynnwys y Gymuned.

Mae'r amserlen yn nodi'r dyddiadau allweddol, gan gynnwys cyfnodau ymgynghori 
statudol, ar gyfer pob un o'r gwahanol gyfnodau o baratoi a chyhoeddi'r Cynllun.  

Roedd hefyd yn cynnwys camau allweddol ar gyfer y Gwerthusiad Cynaliadwyedd, sef 
proses ailadroddus a gynhaliwyd fel rhan annatod o’r broses o baratoi'r Cynllun.
 

Page 16



CYNGOR - DYDD MERCHER, 20 MEHEFIN 2018

Eglurodd fod yn rhaid i Lywodraeth Cymru gymeradwyo'r Cytundeb Cyflawni, ac roedd 
ganddynt 1 mis i ystyried a chytuno ei gynnwys neu i  roi gwybod i'r ACLl bod angen 
mwy o amser i ystyried y ddogfen. 

PENDERFYNWYD:            (1) Bod y Cyngor yn cymeradwyo'r Cytundeb Cyflawni 
terfynol ar gyfer y CDLl Newydd ac yn awdurdodi'r 
Rheolwr Grŵp Datblygu, y Gyfarwyddiaeth Cymunedau 
i gyflwyno'r Cytundeb Cyflawni terfynol (ynghlwm yn 
Atodiad 1) (ar y cyd ag Adroddiad Adolygiad CDLl 
(2013) CDLl (gweler  eitem ar wahân) i Lywodraeth 
Cymru cyn diwedd mis Mehefin 2018.

                                            (2) Bod y Cyngor yn rhoi awdurdod dirprwyedig i Reolwr y 
Grŵp Datblygu, y Gyfarwyddiaeth Gymunedau i wneud 
unrhyw gywiriadau ffeithiol neu fân newidiadau i'r 
Cytundeb Cyflawni fel y bo'n angenrheidiol.

197. DIWYGIO'R CYFANSODDIAD

Cyflwynodd y Swyddog Monitro adroddiad a oedd yn gofyn am gymeradwyaeth y 
Cyngor i ddiwygiadau arfaethedig i'r Cyfansoddiad.

Fel gwybodaeth gefndirol, dywedodd y Swyddog Monitro bod adolygiad bwrdd gwaith o'r 
Cyfansoddiad wedi'i wneud i sicrhau ei fod yn gyfoes ac yn addas i'r diben.

Cyfeiriodd at baragraff 4.2 yr adroddiad a rhai diwygiadau arfaethedig i'r Cylch Gorchwyl 
ar gyfer y Pwyllgor Archwilio, fel y dangoswyd yn Atodiad 1 yr adroddiad.

Yna, argymhellodd yr adroddiad ymhellach fod y Rheolau Fframwaith Cyllideb a Pholisi 
yn cael eu diwygio ym mharagraff 2 (d), ac oherwydd nad oedd y newidiadau a 
ddangoswyd fel ‘tracked changes’ yn Atodiad 2 yr adroddiad yn manylu ar y rhain wedi 
ymddangos yn y copïau a gynhyrchwyd i'r Aelodau oherwydd problem dechnegol ar 
Modern.Gov, cyflwynodd y diwygiad hwn ar lafar i'r Aelodau.

Roedd y diwygiad diwethaf a awgrymwyd i'r Cyfansoddiad mewn perthynas â Rhan 4, 
Rheolau Gweithdrefn ym mharagraff 17 mewn perthynas â phleidlais fwrw'r Maer. 
Cynigiwyd y dylid diwygio hyn er mwyn peidio â bod yn berthnasol mewn perthynas â 
phleidleisio ar benodiadau. Manylwyd ar y ‘tracked change’ hwn yn Atodiad 3 i'r 
adroddiad, ond oherwydd problem dechnegol debyg i'r un y cyfeiriwyd ati uchod, nid 
oedd y newid hwn ychwaith wedi bod yn weladwy ar gopïau o'r adroddiad a 
ddosbarthwyd yn flaenorol.

Byddai angen diwygio'r Cyfansoddiad o ganlyniad i ddarpariaethau'r adroddiad.

PENDERFYNWYD: Bod y Cyngor yn cymeradwyo’r diwygiadau i'r Cyfansoddiad fel y 
nodwyd yn yr adroddiad a'i Atodiadau ynghlwm.

198. AIL-DDYRANNU CYNLLUN DIRPRWYO SWYDDOGAETHAU'R CYNGOR YN 
YMWNEUD Â'R GYFARWYDDIAETH GWASANAETHAU GWEITHREDOL A 
PHARTNERIAETH

Cyflwynodd y Swyddog Monitro adroddiad a’i bwrpas  oedd ceisio cymeradwyaeth y 
Cyngor i drosglwyddo swyddogaethau'r Cyngor o fewn y Cynllun Dirprwyo 
Swyddogaethau a ddyrennir ar hyn o bryd i’r Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol Gwasanaethau 
Gweithredol a Phartneriaeth.

Page 17



CYNGOR - DYDD MERCHER, 20 MEHEFIN 2018

Roedd yr adroddiad yn cynghori, o ganlyniad i ddileu swydd Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol 
Gwasanaethau Gweithredol a Chorfforaethol yn ddiweddar, ac er mwyn cynnal 
prosesau gwneud penderfyniadau effeithiol, bod holl Swyddogaethau'r Cyngor yng 
Nghynlluniau B1 a B2 y Cynllun Dirprwyo Swyddogaethau a ddyrannwyd i ddeilydd 
blaenorol y swydd a ddilëwyd uchod, yn cael eu hailddyrannu i’r Swyddog Monitro.

PENDERFYNWYD:                  Bod y Cyngor:-

(1) yn cymeradwyo trosglwyddo swyddogaethau'r Cyngor o fewn y 
Cynllun Dirprwyo Swyddogaethau o'r Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol - 
Gwasanaethau Gweithredol a Phartneriaeth i'r Swyddog Monitro.

(2) Nodwyd y bydd adroddiad yn cael ei gyflwyno i'r Cabinet yn argymell 
newid tebyg i'r Cynllun Dirprwyo Swyddogaethau ar gyfer 
swyddogaethau Gweithredol.

199. EITEMAU BRYS

Dim.

200. GWAHARDD Y CYHOEDD

PENDERFYNWYD:            O dan Adran 100A (4) Deddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972 fel y'i 
diwygiwyd gan Orchymyn Llywodraeth Leol (Mynediad at 
Wybodaeth) (Amrywiad) (Cymru) 2007, dylid gwahardd y 
cyhoedd o'r cyfarfod wrth ystyried yr eitem fusnes ganlynol 
gan ei bod yn cynnwys gwybodaeth eithriedig fel y diffinnir 
hynny ym Mharagraff 12, 13, 14, 15 a 16 o Ran 4 a 
Pharagraff 21 o Ran 5 o Atodlen 12A Deddf Llywodraeth Leol 
1972, fel y'i diwygiwyd gan y Gorchymyn Llywodraeth Leol 
(Mynediad at Wybodaeth) (Amrywiad) (Cymru) 2007.

                                           Yn dilyn cymhwyso'r prawf budd y cyhoedd wrth ystyried yr 
eitem hon, penderfynwyd, yn unol â'r Ddeddf y cyfeirir ati 
uchod, ystyried yr eitem yn breifat, gyda'r cyhoedd yn cael ei 
eithrio o'r cyfarfod gan y byddai'n golygu datgelu gwybodaeth 
eithriedig o natur fel y nodwyd uchod.

201. CYMERADWYO COFNODION EITHRIEDIG

PENDERFYNWYD: Cymeradwyo Cofnodion eithriedig cyfarfod cyffredin o'r Cyngor 
dyddiedig 25 Ebrill 2018 fel cofnod gwir a chywir.

Daeth y cyfarfod i ben am 16:19

Page 18



BRIDGEND COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

REPORT TO COUNCIL

18TH JULY 2018

REPORT OF THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR, SOCIAL SERVICES AND 
WELLBEING

SOCIAL SERVICES ANNUAL REPORT 2017/18

1.0 Purpose of Report 

1.1 To present to Council the Director of Social Services’ Annual Report for 
2017/18 for approval and request that Members note the judgements reached 
locally about social care services in Bridgend.  

1.2 This is the ninth Annual Report of the Director of Social Services and is based 
on the Authority’s self-assessment of the performance and delivery of social 
care services.  The report is attached at Appendix 1.

2.0 Connection to Corporate Improvement Objectives/Other Corporate 
Priorities

2.1 This report assists in the achievement of the following corporate 
priority/priorities:-  

1. Helping people to be more self-reliant – taking early steps to reduce 
or prevent people from becoming vulnerable or dependent on the 
Council and its services.

2. Smarter use of resources – ensuring that all its resources (financial, 
physical, human and technological) are used as effectively and 
efficiently as possible and support the development of resources 
throughout the community that can help deliver the Council’s priorities. 

3.0 Background

3.1 From October 2016, the Care Inspectorate Wales (CIW) changed the way they 
inspect children’s and adult social services. 

3.2 Following the implementation of the Social Services and Wellbeing (Wales) 
Act 2014, CIW developed a new framework which aims to ensure that 
authorities are inspected using the wellbeing outcomes of the Act.  The Act 
has two key policy objectives:

 To improve the wellbeing outcomes for people who need care and 
support and

 To reform social services law.

Page 19

Agenda Item 6



It seeks to:

 Transform the way in which social services are delivered, primarily 
through promoting people’s independence and giving them a stronger 
voice and control; 

 Promote partnership working in social care; 
 Enhance the preventative role of social care and health, setting out 

overarching wellbeing duties to reduce or delay the need for care and 
support.

3.3 The CIW framework provides the foundations of the Council’s duty to report on 
the whole circle of care from commissioning, contracting, assessment, care 
management to service provision. 

 3.4 The methodology for the core programme for local authority inspection is built 
around the quality standards for local authority social services, issued under 
the Code of Practice, to measure social services’ performance. These 
standards, in turn, reflect the national outcomes framework. The approach to 
inspection, engagement and performance review is similarly focused on 
outcomes, with an emphasis on engaging with people to learn about their 
experiences and listen to their views.

3.5 Guidance has been produced which includes a reporting template and page 
limit guidance to increase consistency of reporting across Wales.

3.6 The draft report was presented to the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee on the 18th June 2018 where it was well received.  Feedback 
included a suggestion to include more information on the use of technology to 
assist service provision and reduce bureaucracy.   To evidence this, a specific 
section (page 13) has been added and there is reference to, for example, 
telecare and the Welsh Community Care Information system throughout the 
report.  

 
4.0 Current Situation/proposal

4.1 The Social Services and Wellbeing (Wales) Act 2014, places strong emphasis 
on promoting the wellbeing of people who need care and support and carers 
who need support. It is important that the views and voices of people and their 
carers are heard.
 

4.2 The aim of this report is to provide the Council and people living in Bridgend 
County Borough with an overview of social care.  It aims to highlight the 
progress made during the year and to identify priorities for 2018/19. 

4.3 The preparation of the report involved an analysis, based on evidence, of the 
services that are provided.  Staff  across the services have contributed to the 
development of this report and there is much evidence within it of feedback 
from people who use social services.  

4.4 The guidance for the report includes a template and sets out the sections in 
relation to the six national quality standards for wellbeing.  They are:
 Working with people to define and co-produce personal wellbeing 

outcomes that people what to achieve;

Page 20



 Working with people and partners to protect and promote people’s physical 
and mental health and emotional wellbeing;

 Taking steps to protect and safeguard people from abuse, neglect or harm;
 Encouraging and supporting people to learn, develop and participate in 

society;
 Supporting people to safely develop and maintain healthy domestic, family 

and personal relationships;
 Working with and supporting people to achieve greater economic 

wellbeing, have a social life and live in suitable accommodation that meets 
their needs.

4.5 The report has sections on all of the above with hyperlinks (as the guidance 
suggests) to an array of reports and documents to evidence progress. There is 
also a glossary of terms.

4.6 The report provides an overview of Bridgend, and summarises the main 
achievements in 2017/18 and includes areas where progress has been 
delayed.  It also highlights the priorities for social services in 2018/19.  The 
analysis draws on progress against the business plan for 2017/18, 
performance data for each service area in both adults’ and children’s social 
care, as well as feedback from service users, carers and staff.  

4.7 The report demonstrates that services are generally effective in meeting the 
needs of people who require the support of social care. The report identifies 
that the services are improving overall, but it also identifies areas where 
improvement is needed and these are detailed in the priorities for 2018/19. 
 
CIW Annual Performance Review 2017/18  

4.8 As part of the CIW annual review of performance for 2017/18, regular review 
meetings were held with the Director of Social Services and the two Heads of 
Service.  CIW also met separately with the Heads of Service to discuss 
progress in individual areas.  

4.9 No formal letter will be received for 2017-18, however, an extract from the 
notes of the final review meeting in March 2018 is included in section 3 of the 
Director’s Annual Report.  It includes an update on engagement work in 
Mental Health Services and Supported Living. 

Priorities for 2018/19  

4.10 The priorities for improvement in 2018/19 reflect the analysis of performance 
and try to address the increasingly challenging context: financial, demographic 
and level of need.  

4.11 There are some whole service priorities and then more specific priorities for 
Adult Social Care and Children’s Social Care.  They are broken down below:  

Whole Service Priorities:

 Implement the actions as set out in the 2018-2019 Social Services and 
Wellbeing Directorate Business Plan. This has a range of aims and 
commitments which sit under the three overarching corporate priorities, 
namely Supporting a successful economy, Helping people to be more self-

Page 21



reliant; Smarter use of resources.  The key aims and actions are as 
follows:
o Give people more choice and control over what support they receive by 

providing early access to advice and information;
o Continue to improve the ways in which the Council provides good 

information, advice and assistance to the public, including increasing 
the support available through local community co-ordinators;

o Continue to involve service users, carers and communities in 
developing commissioning services;

o Reduce demand by investing in targeted early help and intervention 
programmes;

o Implement a new 52 week residential service model for disabled 
children and young people;

o Establish a new model of residential provision for looked after children 
and young people;

o Finalise a transition service model to help disabled children move 
smoothly into adulthood;

o Support carers in maintaining their roles;
o Recruit and retain carers across the range of fostering services;
o Support the third sector, town and community councils and community 

groups to meet local needs;
o Enable community groups and the third sector to have more choice and 

control over community assets;
o Achieve the budget reductions identified in the medium term financial 

strategy;
o Ensure appropriate services are available to children at risk from child 

sexual exploitation (CSE).

 Ensure that the Council’s responsibilities as set out in the Act within the 
secure (prison) estate are fulfilled.

 Ensure that effective supervision and quality assurance is embedded into 
practice and that there is a consistent quality assurance audit programme. 
This will demonstrate how well the assessment process and subsequent 
service delivery mechanisms support a person centred approach which 
builds on a person’s own strengths and abilities.

 Respond to the outcome of the consultation on the proposed Health Board 
Boundary change so that Bridgend will be ready to move into a new region 
and work in collaboration with different local authority and health board 
partners if required.

 Respond to the new strategy that will require more seamless services 
between health and social care as a result of the Parliamentary Review of 
Health and Social Care.

In Adult Social Care, the main priorities for 2018/19 are summarised as 
follows:  

 Continue to develop the Social Work approach to people who have 
experienced a difficult time involving intervention from acute hospital 
services, by helping them to stay independent and well. This will enable 
people to look after their own wellbeing more effectively.

Page 22



 Continue to develop the community services model so that the service can 
be proactive and respond appropriately, at the right time, in the right way 
and by the right person. This is called ‘anticipatory care’ planning. 

 Review the pilot scheme for advocacy services for adults, the outcome of 
which will inform a new model of service and future commissioning 
arrangements.  

 Further develop integrated community services so that the team can 
respond to need 7 days a week as well as increasing the availability of 
nurses. 

 Start phase 2 of the re-modelling homecare service in order to ensure that 
people’s wellbeing is consistently protected and promoted. 

 Develop the Prevention and Wellbeing agenda so that there is a stronger 
link with the rest of the Council and better focus and engagement with key 
partners. Continue to build up the evidence base which will show how such 
an approach can support people to remain independent and therefore 
reduce the likelihood of receiving ongoing support from social services; in 
the Act this is called ‘managed care and support’. The Authority will also 
make sure that all future commissioned services have a prevention and 
wellbeing approach.    

 Continue to develop the individual community knowledge base of the 
Community Dementia Support Workers to ensure opportunity to share this 
knowledge of local support is available to all people and their significant 
others accessing their service. 

In Children’s Social Care, the key priorities for 2018/19 can be summarised as: 

 Continue to safely reduce the number of looked after children by making 
sure that the Authority provides effective help as early as possible and that 
it works with children, young people and their families to review their 
situation.  This is an ongoing priority as effective intervention at the earliest 
opportunity is the most efficient way of supporting families to prevent 
children from becoming looked after.  

 Fully implement the Multi Agency Safeguarding Hub (MASH) in partnership 
with the police, probation and the health board.  

 Develop a therapeutic team to wrap around Children’s services so that the 
Authority can better support children and young people who are 
experiencing difficulties or crisis. The service is intended to improve 
outcomes for children by increasing placement stability and prevent 
placements breaking down and children needing to move.  

 Ensure that the work needed to develop a transition team is completed so 
that young people moving into adulthood have the right support at the right 
time.

Page 23



 Further work will be done to raise awareness about advocacy services for 
children to make sure that there is an increase in advocacy being offered 
and also an increase in the take up of advocacy support.

 Target the recruitment of foster carers so that the Authority has a better 
range of choice and skills in order to find local placements for those 
children that require a more ‘specialist placement. The Authority will focus 
on recruiting transition carers which are part of the new proposed model for 
placement provision. There will also be a focus on recruiting individuals or 
families who could provide supported lodgings placements and therefore 
safely enable young people to leave foster care and become more 
independent. The Authority will make sure that it builds the support and 
care service so that they can more effectively work to prevent children 
becoming looked after and can also support families to be reunited and 
children rehabilitated home.  

 Support more young people to participate in apprenticeship opportunities 
across the Council. 

 Implement a policy to ensure a consistent approach to support care 
leavers attending university.    

4.12 Following approval at Council, the report will be translated into Welsh, in line 
with Council policy, and submitted to Welsh Government.  

5.0 Effect upon Policy Framework and Procedure Rules

5.1      There is no impact on the Policy Framework and Procedure Rules.

6. Equality impact Assessment

6.1 There are no equality implications in this report.

7.0 Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 Implications

7.1 The implementation of the duties and responsibilities under the Social 
Services and Wellbeing Act (Wales) (SSWBA) 2014, in turn, supports the 
promotion of two of the seven goals of the Well-Being of Future Generations 
(Wales) Act 2015 within the County Borough of Bridgend.  By promoting an 
environment that maximises people’s physical and mental well-being and by 
supporting children, young people, adults and their carers and families to fulfil 
their potential no matter what their circumstances, the wellbeing goals of a 
Healthier and more equal Bridgend and Wales are supported.

7.2 The Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 provides the basis for 
driving a different kind of public service in Wales, with five ways of working to 
guide how the Authority should work to deliver wellbeing outcomes for people.  
The following is a summary to show how the five ways of working to achieve 
the well-being goals have been considered in this report:

 Long Term – Social Services is demand led and the SSWBA focusses 
on sustainable prevention and wellbeing outcomes for the future. There 
is a requirement to meet the needs of people in the longer term and, 

Page 24



because of rising demographics and increasing complexity, the 
remodelling and transformation of services continues to be a priority.  

 Prevention – the report is about the new approaches adopted by the 
Directorate in line with the SSWBA, for example, the provision of 
information, advice and assistance to enable people to remain 
independent for as long as possible.  This will ensure that need is 
anticipated and resources can be more effectively directed to better 
manage demand.

 Integration – the implementation of the SSWBA requires local 
authorities to work with partners, particularly the NHS and the Police, to 
ensure care and support for people and support for carers is provided.  
The report evidences work with the Third Sector, enabling people to 
remain linked to communities, and work with young people to enable 
access to employment.

 Collaboration – The collaborative approaches described in the report, 
are managed and monitored through various remodelling and 
collaborative boards, for example, the Western Bay Partnership Board 
where there is cross sector stakeholder representation at both political 
and Officer level.  The strategic planning and local delivery of integrated 
support and services are developed and agreed at a regional basis in 
order to provide the best possible intervention to people.

 Involvement – the key stakeholders are the people who use social care. 
There is considerable engagement including surveys, stakeholder 
meetings, feedback forms and the complaints process. The provision of 
accessible information and advice helps to ensure that the voice of 
adults, children and young people is heard.

8. Financial Implications 

8.1 Whilst there are no direct financial implications, the report highlights service 
areas which are facing financial pressures, at a time of shrinking resources, 
and supporting people with increased complex needs and the changing 
demographics of the population of Bridgend County Borough. 

8.2 The approach the directorate has taken is to focus on the modernisation and 
transformation of service delivery in order to manage current expectation and 
to implement the Social Services and Wellbeing (Wales) Act whilst also 
contributing to the Council’s medium term financial strategy.

8.3 Over the past four years, the directorate has reduced the budget by 
approximately £12 million.  This has been achieved by ‘doing things 
differently’, that is remodelling, reconfiguring, restructuring and developing 
new ways of working and new service delivery models. The strategy for 2018 
– 19 and following years is to manage demand and introduce more early help 
and intervention and prevention and wellbeing approaches to lessen 
dependency and maximise people’s independence. This needs to be achieved 
within the existing budget and taking into account the directorate’s current 
overspend.

9.0 Recommendation

9.1 It is recommended that Council approves the Director of Social Services’ 
Annual Report for 2017/18.

Page 25



Susan Cooper
Corporate Director Social Services and Wellbeing
May 2018

9. Contact officer
Judith Brooks, Group Manager, Business Support
Tel: 01656 642082  
Email: judith.brooks@bridgend.gov.uk

10 Background Documents
None

Page 26



 

DIRECTOR OF   
SOCIAL SERVICES’ 
ANNUAL REPORT 
2017-18 (DRAFT) 
 

 

            
 

 
 July 2018 

Page 27



 

2 
 

INDEX                                                                                                                Page 
                

1. Introduction  3  

  

2. Director’s Summary of Performance  4 

  

3. How Are People Shaping Our Services? 10 

  

4. Promoting and Improving the Wellbeing of Those We Help 13 

  

(1) Working with people to define and co-produce personal wellbeing 

outcomes that people wish to achieve 

13 

  

(2) Working with people and partners to protect and promote people’s 

physical and mental health and emotional wellbeing 

16 

  
(3) Taking steps to protect and safeguard people from abuse, neglect or 

harm 

19 

  

(4) Encouraging and supporting people to learn, develop and participate 

in society 

22 

  

(5) Supporting people to safely develop and maintain healthy domestic, 

family and personal relationships 

25 

  

(6) Working with and supporting people to achieve greater economic 

wellbeing, have a social life and live in suitable accommodation that 

meets their needs 

26 

 

  

5. How We Do What We Do 29 

  

Our Workforce and How We Support their Professional Roles 29 

  

Our Financial Resources and How We Plan For the Future 32 

  

Our Partnership Working, Political and Corporate Leadership, 

Governance and Accountability 

33 

  

  

6. Accessing Further Information and Key Documents 

 

7. Glossary 

 

This document is also available in Welsh.    Please note: This document 

links to a range of reports which are available in English in line with 

Council policy. 

36 

 

40 

Page 28



 

3 
 

1. Introduction  

 
Hello, welcome to my annual report for 2017-18 which tells you about how Social 
Services in Bridgend County Borough Council have been delivered during the year 
and how well we are doing. 
 
In my report last year I explained about the Social Services and Wellbeing Act (I will 
refer to this as The Act) which puts the individual and their wellbeing at the centre of all 
that we do. This continues to be a priority for us and has been a main driver for 
change and for new ways of working.   As a re-cap, the main messages from the Act 
are: 

 Making sure that we provide good quality advice, information and assistance to 
the people of Bridgend; 

 Supporting and enabling people to make their own choices and to be more 
independent; 

 Making sure that people are given voice and control to achieve what they want 
in life and that they are able to express the outcomes that they want for 
themselves; 

 Recognising that carers also have support needs and that these should be 
given equal importance; 

 Finding different ways to support people that will involve local communities. 
 
We have to make sure that we can do all of the above whilst keeping children, young 
people and adults safe from harm. This is also at a time when resources are getting 
less and demand continues to increase. We need to continue to work closely with 
individuals, families, carers and partner agencies. 
 
This report will tell you how we are progressing with delivering the Act in Bridgend and 
it will give you some examples of what this means and the impact it has had on 
individuals. There is still more to do and so the report also sets out the next stage of 
our journey.  It is difficult to set out everything that is being done and so I have chosen 
some key areas and examples; however, there are lots of links embedded in the report 
so that you can read more if you want more information.  The report has been written 
in plain language so that it is easier to follow and understand but the information and 
reports that have been embedded as a link provide further detail and evidence of what 
we have been doing during the year. 
 
In line with the direction from Welsh Government, we continue to work collaboratively 
across the region. The Council has responded to the consultation on the proposed 
health board boundary change and we are hoping for an outcome as soon as possible 
so that we can continue to build effective working relationships with regional partners. 
The outcome of the above consultation also links with the Parliamentary Review of 
Health and Social Care and it is important for both the Council and the people of 
Bridgend County Borough that we have clarity regarding which region we will be 
working with in order to develop joint and effective transformation programmes. 
 
 
          
 
 
 
 

Page 29



 

4 
 

2. Director’s Summary of Performance  
 
At the end of the financial year, every Council in Wales has to publish a report about 
its performance in order to evidence how the Council has met its priorities. This has to 
include a range of different information and includes financial details.  Below is a short 
summary of some of the achievements from Social Services and some information 
about our performance. The last section covers the big priorities we have identified are 
important for 2018-19. 
 
Cross Directorate  
 
The directorate continues to implement the Act and to make sure that the 
requirements of the Act are embedded into every day practice.  
 
There has been further progress in the development of the Welsh Community Care 
Information System (WCCIS) and Bridgend has now included a number of health 
colleagues, from our integrated health and social care team, onto the system and this 
has been a significant step forward for the whole of Wales.  
 
Social Services in Bridgend has continued to work as part of the Western Bay Health 
and Social Care Regional Partnership and the main areas we have been actively 
involved in are: 

 Community Services Planning and Delivery Board 

 ABMU Carers Partnership Board 

 Children and Young People’s Programme Board 

 Commissioning for Complex Needs Programme Board 

 WCCIS 

 Regional ASD Strategy Group (Integrated Autism Service) 

 Workforce Development Steering Group 

 Regional Adoption Service 

 Regional Safeguarding Board 
 
Prevention and Wellbeing approaches continue to be promoted across the directorate 
and a prevention and wellbeing team working with a range of partners to improve the 
wellbeing of local people and communities.  This includes the Healthy Living 
Partnership with GLL/Halo and the Cultural Trust partnership with Awen.  
 
In 2017, Welsh Government made an announcement about a possible change in the 
Health Board boundary which means that, if agreed, Bridgend as a local authority 
would move into a new region and therefore would be aligned with Rhondda Cynon 
Taff (RCT) County Borough Council, Merthyr County Borough Council and Cwm Taff 
Health Board. The consultation on this proposal closed in March 2018 and at the time 
of writing this report we have not yet heard what the outcome is. We are currently still 
working with partners in the Western Bay region but are also developing relationships 
in the Cwm Taff region in preparation for any changes. The most important thing is 
that the people of Bridgend will continue to have the right access to support and 
services despite any potential change to the organisations.  
In November 2016, the Cabinet Secretary for Health, Well-being and Sport, Vaughan 
Gething AM launched a ‘Parliamentary Review of Health and Social Care’ and 
Bridgend has made a positive contribution to this review and has been able to 
demonstrate the strong and positive working relationships with health in our integrated 

Page 30



 

5 
 

community teams. The report was published in January 2018 and we are now actively 
involved in shaping the plan that will be produced as a result. 
https://beta.gov.wales/review-health-social-care?lang=en         
 
 
Children’s Social Care 
 
The safe reduction of the number of looked after children 
remains a priority for Bridgend and during 2017-18 the 
numbers remained fairy static with the average number 
being 387.  At the end of the 2017-18 financial year, 
however, the looked after children population in Bridgend 
had gone down by 1.5%.   At the time of writing this report 
the number of looked after children in Bridgend was 370 (as at 14/05/18) which is the 
lowest it has been for a number of years.  It is important that there is a focus on 
delivering early help, support and intervention as this will prevent children coming into 
the care system and this is a priority area for the Council. Please see a report that 
went to our Overview and Scrutiny Committee here: 

16.04.18 - Early Help 
and Childrens Social Care.pdf

 
The new multi -agency safeguarding hub (MASH) was up and running in early April 
2018 and we have already seen how this has strengthened relationships between 
Social Services and the Police. Please see the Cabinet report here:  

31.10.17 - MASH 
Cabinet Report Final.pdf

 
A new model for Children’s Residential Care has been developed and agreed and 
work will now progress in 2018-19 to make sure that the model is implemented. We 
opened a specialist residential unit for children with disabilities in October 2017.  
Feedback from families has been positive in relation to the experience for children 
living there. You can view the Cabinet report here:    

27.02.18 - Children's 
residential care.pdf

    
 
Adult Social Care  
 
Good progress has been made in making sure that when 
people have an assessment there is a focus on ’what is 
important to them’ and that attention is given to how that 
person can remain independent for as long as possible. 
 
The two new Extra Care Schemes will be completed by 
October 2018 and this includes 25 residential care beds 
and 45 extra care flats. As a result, two Council-run 
residential care homes will close. The long term plan is that, as the residential care 
beds are no longer required, these will transfer into more extra care provision.   
 

Page 31

https://beta.gov.wales/review-health-social-care?lang=en
http://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s15119/Early%20Help%20and%20Childrens%20Social%20Care.pdf?LLL=0
http://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s13564/MASH%20Cabinet%20Report%20Final%20report%2024.10.17.pdf?LLL=0
http://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s14701/180227%207%20Childrens%20Residential%20Remodelling.pdf?LLL=0


 

6 
 

My social worker 
keeps me in the 

picture 

I cannot survive 
without them as 

I have no family 

PERFORMANCE  
 
Children’s Social Care  
 
The number of children and families that we were involved with during 2017-18: 

 We received 6677 new contacts during the year 

 There were 637 children that needed a child protection intervention.  (This figure is 
the number of children where a section 47 investigation was started). 

 The number of children on the child protection register at the end of the year was 
169. 

 The number of looked after children as at the end of March 2018 was 384. The safe 
reduction of children looked after remains a priority for the Council. 

 
 
Adult Social Care     
 
Some key performance data is detailed below: 
 
 

 2016-17 2017-18 
 

The number of people who received a reablement service 
 
(includes reablement at home and residential reablement) 

394 394 

The number of people who received a Telecare package 
during the year  

2921 3162 

Number of people were supported in long term care 
(residential) 

683 676 

 
 
        
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
What did we say we do in 2017-18?  How did we perform?   
 
The following key priorities were identified for Social Services 
for 2017-18: 

 Improve the way we provide information, advice and 
assistance (IAA) to the public and we also want to 
increase the support available to people by increasing 

Living in my own 
home makes me 

happy and with help I 
hope to remain there 

as long as possible  

I’m lonely and some 
days I don’t see 

anyone to talk to, 
would like to go out 
but have no-one to 

take me 

Page 32



 

7 
 

community based support that will support people without them having to come 
into statutory social services;   
 
There are a number of aspects to this work:  
 
o The establishment of the Multi Agency Safeguarding Hub (MASH) as the 

first point of contact for safeguarding of children and adults. Phase 1 is 
underway and by September 2018, it will encompass workers from 
Children’s Social Care, South Wales Police, Education and Family Support, 
Housing, Substance misuse Services, Probation, Wales Community 
Rehabilitation Company, Health and Adult Social Care. 

 
o Local community coordinators continue to provide a service in the three 

valley areas of the Borough - they received 116 referrals during 2017/18. 
 
o Council Website – Dewis is now linked to the corporate website and this 

provides information on universal community opportunities that promote 
wellbeing which will interface with the council’s website. 

 
o The Common Access point (CAP) in Adult Social Care continues to deliver 

information, advice and assistance as an integral part of their contact with 
people requesting help. We are ensuring that there is access to appropriate 
information to enable people to access support when they need to. 

 
o 89% of adults who received advice and assistance from the information, 

advice and assistance service have not contacted the service again for 6 
months. 

 

 Work more closely with people who use our services, carers and the wider 
population and communities to make sure that they have a say in the type of 
services that we develop; 

 
A number of people have shared with us 
their own personal story of how the 
change in approach by social care 
professionals has improved their own 
wellbeing. As a result we have been able 
to build up a library of digital stories and 
case studies which we are able to use to 
support learning and reflective practice. 
  
 
 
Consultation events have been held throughout the year with families and front 
line staff in relation to the transfer of existing residents into the new extra care 
schemes. As a result the service has been able to manage all questions and 
any anxieties on an ongoing basis and this has prevented them from escalating 
and raising unnecessary concerns. There has also been engagement with the 
local communities and schools who have been involved in naming the two new 
schemes. There has been significant support for this development. 

 

Page 33



 

8 
 

 Develop our advocacy services for both children and adults so that they have the 
independent support and advice they need to make their voice heard; 

 
Bridgend continues to work with the Golden Thread 
Advocacy Programme (GTAP) in order to build the 
advocacy support available for people who find it difficult to 
understand information or communicate their wishes. We 
have commissioned an independent professional advocacy service (IPA) for 
adults and during the year the service received 55 referrals and at March 2018 
they were supporting 37 people.  The evaluation report is attached here: 

BVC Evaluation - IPA 
Pilot April 2018.docx.pdf

 
In August 2017, independent advocacy for children and young people was 
commissioned regionally in Western Bay in line with the Welsh Government’s 
National Approach. Bridgend has worked closely with regional partners, 
including its existing provider, to help establish the new working model and 
continues to implement changes that will ensure the voices of young people are 
heard when they become known to social services. There were 83 referrals 
supported in the year. 
 

 Consult on a new strategy for Direct Payments so that more people will be able to 
access a direct payment and therefore will be able to access more flexible support 
to help them be more independent;  
 

An independent review of Direct Payments in Bridgend was carried out in 2017-
18 and this has helped to inform a new strategy for Bridgend. We have also 
revised the operational policy and procedures. These are now being consulted 
on and the intention is to set down an implementation plan and launch the new 
strategy in June 2018. 

 

 Open a new 52 week residential provision for disabled children and young people 
so that they can remain living close to their families within the County Borough; 
 

The 52 week provision, called Harwood House,  opened in October 2017 and 
two young people have moved in, without this local provision those young 
people would have gone into an expensive, out of county provision. There is still 
one placement left in this new provision and this will be filled in 2018-19.  

 

 Put systems in place so that we can better meet the needs of young people in 
transition from childhood into adulthood;   

 
A Transition Project has been established and has developed a model for a 
transition team comprising two specialist social work staff and a support worker 
to focus on young people with ‘autistic spectrum disorder’ (ASD). However, 
there have been initial difficulties in the recruitment to these posts and this has 
delayed the implementation.  
 
A transition tool has been developed and an engagement exercise with staff 
and service users has helped shape a performance framework.  

Page 34

http://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s15970/P8%20-%20Advocacy%20Evaluation%20Report.pdf


 

9 
 

 Consult with children, young people and their families on a new model for 
residential care provision; 
 

As part of the work to re-model residential care, children and young people 
have been consulted and their views and wishes were incorporated into a report 
that was presented to our Overview and Scrutiny Committee and then Cabinet. 
They have been able to help shape the new model which has now moved to 
implementation in 2018-19.  

 

 Work with our partners and with schools to better support carers and young carers; 
 
We continue to work closely with our partners and with schools to better identify 
and appropriately support Carers and Young Carers. Bridgend Carers Centre 
has 3000 Carers on their database that they 
provide information and assistance to. The 
Carers transition funding is currently funding a 
Young Carers in Schools project; in the last 
quarter alone 2700 young people participated 
in Young Carers assemblies, 150 pupils 
participated in Young Carers PSE lessons, and 
Carers champions have been identified in five 
comprehensive schools. 

 

 Recruit more foster carers by undertaking a range of different advertising 
campaigns; 
 

Work has been done to better understand the 
profile of the current foster carer population 
and this has informed where, what and how we 
recruit future foster carers in the future. The 
Council’s marketing team are supporting future 
campaigns. At the end of the year Bridgend 
had 110 approved foster households and they 
provide 245 placements. The recruitment of 
foster carers will remain a priority for the future.          

 

 Complete the work required to fully implement the MASH. 
 

The new multi-agency safeguarding hub (MASH) team became operational in 
April 2018. There is a second phase which will be in place by October 2018.  
 

What we want to do in 2018-19         
 
There are a range of service actions that sit under these higher level priorities and 
these have the details of what needs to be done to achieve the overall aims with 
timescales and targets set out. 

 Continue to build on the progress and achievements made in 2017-18 and 
concentrate on improving the areas that are still in development.  

 Implement the actions as set out in the directorate business plan. The 2017-2018 
Social Services and Wellbeing Directorate Business Plan has a range of aims and 
commitments which sit under the three overarching corporate priorities; these are 
as follows; 

Page 35



 

10 
 

o To give people more choice and control over what support they receive by 
providing early access to advice and information; 

o Continue to improve the ways in which the Council provides good 
information, advice and assistance to the public, including increasing the 
support available through local community co-ordinators; 

o Continue to involve service users, carers and communities in developing 
commissioning services 

o To reduce demand by investing in targeted early help and intervention 
programmes 

o Implement a new 52 week residential service model for disabled children 
and young people 

o Establish a new model of residential provision for looked after children and 
young people 

o Finalise a transition service model to help disabled children move smoothly 
into adulthood 

o To support carers in maintaining their roles 
o Recruit and retain carers across the range of fostering services 
o To support the third sector, town and community councils and community 

groups to meet local needs 
o Enable community groups and the third sector to have more choice and 

control over community assets 
o To achieve the budget reductions identified in the medium term financial 

strategy 
o Ensure appropriate services are available to children at risk from child 

sexual exploitation ( CSE) 
 

 Please see Business Plan attached here: 

SSWB Business plan 
2018-19  following Scrutiny - FINAL PLAN.docx

 
 

 Respond to the outcome of the consultation on the proposed Health Board 
Boundary change so that Bridgend will be ready to move into a new region and 
work in collaboration with different local authority and health board partners if 
required; 

 

 Respond to the new strategy that will require more seamless services between 
health and social care as a result of the Parliamentary Review of Health and 
Social Care. 

 
 

3. How Are People Shaping Our Services? 
 
We are committed to making sure that we continue to involve people in the way our 
services are run and also in how we shape and deliver new service developments. As 
part of this, we look for feedback about what we are currently doing and we also 
consult and engage with children, young people, adults and carers in areas that we 
need to change and modernise.  
 

Page 36

http://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s15012/Appendix%20A%20-%20Business%20plan%202018-19%20SSWB.pdf?LLL=0


 

11 
 

Sometimes  
I wish I could 
find suitable 

respite 

Excellent 

backup 

Bridgend Social Services is committed to making sure that people are able to make 
their voice heard, whether this is about how services will be developed and delivered 
in the future or whether it is about a service that they are receiving now. Some 
examples of how we do this are by issuing surveys, inspections, contract monitoring 
processes, elected members rota visits, complaints and compliments and consultation 
events. We know that there is more that we can do to engage and consult with people 
and this is an area that we will do more of in 2018-19. 
 
In September 2017, we asked 430 children and young people and 1292 adults what 
they thought about the support and services that they were receiving from Bridgend. 
These were called surveys and they were developed by Welsh Government as part of 
the new Act.   Below is a selection of some of the replies that we received:  
 

Adults: A total of 1243 questionnaires were sent out to adults (over 18 years), 416 
were returned, a response rate of 34%.  Some of the comments received include: 
 
  

 “Staff are polite and attentive and make my mother smile.” 
 

  “Sometimes I do not think they listen” 
 

“I am satisfied with the quality of care but the amount is 
totally inadequate and I supplement support in order for my 
wife to cope.” 
                                                                                                                          

Carers: A total of 49 questionnaires were despatched to adults (over 18 years), 22 
were returned, a response rate of 45%.  Some of the comments received include: 
 
  

 
 
 
 

 
 
Children:  A total of 430 questionnaires were despatched to children (age 7-17 
years), 90 were returned, a response rate of 21%.  Some of the comments 
received include: 
 
 

“My foster carer is the most nicest person and she has taken 
me in like her own.” 
 

“I don’t want to move out ……., I will lose my friends and 
school but I don’t like my carers.” 
 

“I have all my family and friends around me.  I really feel I 
belong here.” 

“The carers are nice people who treat 
you politely.”  
 

“As a full time carer I feel that 11 
hours of support a week is insufficient 
to provide the time needed to help 
support my physical and mental 
health.” 

My care has 
been 

outstanding. 

I love 
my carers, I 
could not be 

happier at all 

Page 37



 

12 
 

We also receive complaints and compliments about our service.  It is important that 
the directorate responds quickly and effectively to all complaints with an expectation 
that the majority of complaints and concerns should be resolved as early as possible. 
The table below shows the number of complaints and compliments received during 
2017-18.   
 

  Early 
Resolution 
(within 2  
working 
days) 

Stage 1 
Formal 
process 

Stage 2 
Formal 
process 

Corporate 
Complaints 

Public 
Services 
Ombudsman 

Compliments 

Adults 57 14 0 3 0 264 
Children’s 139 13 2 22 2 23 
Business/Finance 
Support 

2     13 

Total 198 27 2 25 2 300 

 
During 2017-18, two complaints were received by the Ombudsman’s Office, one of 
which related to Children’s Social Care whereby the Ombudsman recommended that 
the Local Authority commission a Stage 2 independent investigation which was 
commissioned in September 2017.    The second complaint related to shortcomings 
with the handling of a complaint, as a result of which learning outcomes have been 
identified and actions implemented.   
 
There has been an increase of almost 50 complaints received during 2017-18 
compared to 2016-17.   
 
The 2017-18 draft Representations and Complaints Annual Report is linked here.  It is 
being presented to Cabinet in July 2018.   

17.07.18 - Complaints 

Annual Report - Appendix 1.doc 
 
Care Inspectorate (Wales) (CIW)  
 
As part of a series of regular meetings, CIW met with the Director and Heads of 
Service in March 2018 to reflect on progress and to discuss the performance of the 
authority for the year 2017-18.  No formal letter will be received for 2017-18; however, 
an extract from the notes of that meeting is as follows: 
 
The Mental health engagement work has been completed.  This related to inspection 
work led by Health Inspectorate Wales (HIW) of Community Mental Health Teams 
(CMHT), but which had not involved Bridgend CMHTs.  Managers within Bridgend 
submitted comprehensive written information against key lines of enquiry provided. In 
addition, CIW made visits to a house with supported living, and received written 
submission from Bridgend Bipolar Support group. CIW also spoke with key staff. 
CIW reported that people at the day service, supported living and hostel said that they 
were generally content with the level of support they received and were mostly 
accessing two or three groups/befriending services to promote independence and/or 
enhance their wellbeing.  However, people not accessing these types of services from 
the bipolar disorder group did not describe access to services (beyond the support 

Page 38



 

13 
 

Do feel I cannot 
cope and need help 

but at the same 
time don’t want 

outside help 
I struggle  
to ask for 

advice 

Sometimes I 
do not think 

they listen 

group) and perhaps indicated that more non statutory support at times would be 
beneficial.   
 
People reported that they valued their social workers, care co-ordinators and 
Community Psychiatric Nurses (CPNs) and generally felt professionals were 
responsive to requests and maintained contact.  GPs were seen as an important 
source of contact for those living independently.  But people generally did not feel they 
had access to specialist services in an emergency.  
 
CIW inspection of Western Bay regional adoption service; the report of this has been 
delayed but is due for release shortly.   
 
 

 
 
4. Promoting and Improving the Wellbeing of Those We Help 
 
Quality Standard 1 – Working with people to define and co-produce personal 

wellbeing outcomes that people wish to achieve 
 
We have continued to focus our attention on making sure 
that we work with people in a way that will support them to 
achieve their personal outcomes. Outcomes reflect what 
matters to a person and these should be personal to each 
individual and relate to their own particular circumstances. 
Outcomes relate to the impact or the difference a person 
wants to see in their life. We have continued to provide 
training and development opportunities to support staff to 
work in an outcome focused way and we recognise that this 
is still a relatively new approach and requires a shift in 
culture. We have built up a library of evidence and digital 
stories as evidence of the positive difference this approach 
is having on a person’s life.   At the time an individual has 
an assessment they are given an ‘active offer’ to have that 
assessment conducted in Welsh.  

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

What were the main things we said we would do in 2017-18?  

 

 Improve the options for accommodation for looked after children both for short and 
long term situations and we will be progressing the review of our residential 
services. We will be talking directly with children and young people so that they 
can tell us what they think is important for a young person in care.   

I find paperwork 
difficult and have 
great problems 
using the phone 
because of my 

deafness 

Page 39



 

14 
 

 Continue to safely reduce the number of looked after children by making sure that 
we provide effective help as early as possible and that we work with children, 
young people and their families to review their situation.   

 Actively recruit new foster carers so that we can promote local solutions to families 
in need.   

 Increase the number of local community co-ordinators so that we can support the 
development of local communities which will give people more choice and control 
of how they manage their own independence.   

 Develop Extra Care housing, which will allow residents to continue living 
independently in a self-contained flat, while benefiting from personal care and 
support, where those needs have been identified.  The new Extra Care Housing 
schemes will also contain a residential wing, allowing a seamless pathway into a 
residential-care home setting, where individuals’ care and support needs have 
increased to that required level.   

 Further develop, with health, the integrated Common Access Point (CAP) for the 
provision of information and advice for adults.   

 Develop the DEWIS wellbeing information 
database further and launch this to the public 
of Bridgend.   

 Roll out the quality assurance framework across Social Services and make sure 
that all staff are working to an agreed and recognised standard.   

 Open a new specialist 52 week provision for children on the Heronsbridge Special 
School site to support children to live within their local communities and maintain 
their family and school links, this was in response to consultation with children, 
families, school stakeholders linked to the local authority and a public consultation 
was held.   

 Improve the way we provide information, advice and assistance to the public and 
we also want to increase the support available to people by increasing community 
based support that will support people without them having to come into statutory 
social services.  

 Work more closely with people who use our services, carers and the wider 
population and communities to make sure that they have a say in the type of 
services that we develop; Work more closely with people who use our services, 
carers and the wider population and communities to make sure that they have a 
say in the type of services that we develop.   

 Develop our advocacy services for both children and adults so that they have the 
independent support and advice they need to make their voice heard.   

 
 
How far did we succeed and what difference did we make?  
 

 We opened the new 52 week residential provision for children with complex 
needs, called Harwood House, on 16th October 2017 and we placed two young 
people who would have otherwise needed to be placed in external out of 
Bridgend County.   
 

 A new accommodation model for looked after children and young people was 
approved by Cabinet on the 27th February 2018.  

27.02.18 - Children's 
residential care.pdf

 

Page 40

http://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s14701/180227%207%20Childrens%20Residential%20Remodelling.pdf?LLL=0


 

15 
 

In order to develop the new model a number of consultation events were held 
with children who have experience of a care setting, staff and key partners. The 
new model will now be implemented during 2018-19 and this will mean that 
Bridgend will be able to better support children and young people who come 
into residential care and also provide them a more appropriate accommodation 
setting. 

 

 Children’s social care and early help services are working closely together to 
make sure that safely keeping children out of care is given a priority. This work 
is overseen by a joint board chaired by the two Directors. An independent 
review of the pathway between the two services was carried out in 
November/December 2017 and the findings are now being looked at by the 
teams. It is expected that as a result of this work Bridgend can improve the 
focus of early help and intervention and that this will enable more children to 
avoid coming into care. The numbers of looked after children is coming down 
and at March 2018 the number was 384 compared with 390 at the same time 
last year. At the time of writing this report there were 370 looked after children. 

 

 Seven new foster carers, providing 10 additional placements, were recruited 
during 2017-18 and ongoing recruitment is now being given a priority. 
 

 A new quality assurance framework has been launched across the whole of 
Social Services. The new framework was informed by front line staff and 
operational managers. The feedback so far is very positive and there are 
examples of individuals and teams sharing best practice which is actively 
informing change and improvement and having a positive impact on the people 
who are receiving a service. The new framework will mean that all people who 
access our services will experience equality in relation to the standard of 
service they receive regardless of the nature of the intervention from Children’s 
or Adult Social Care.  You can see the framework here: 

 
Assuring Quality  

Framework  and Guidance July  2017.docx 
 Good progress has been made in the development of two new extra care 

schemes and they are on track to be opened in September/October 2018. The 
schemes are a mixed model and have both residential and extra care facilities 
on the same site. This has enabled many of the residents from two of the 
Council’s existing residential care homes to transfer across whilst also 
increasing the number of extra care flats in the County Borough. 
 

 The Common Access Point in Adult Social Care has been developed and there 
is now a multi-disciplinary approach to managing referrals which means that the 
service can respond both quickly and more effectively. The common access 
point can also now link to a designated mental health link practitioner and 
community dementia support workers.  
 

 The Council website has been reviewed and 
the new website went live in April 2018. 
Social Services worked with the corporate 
centre on developing service information for 
the main web site.  Dewis, the wellbeing 

Page 41

http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/
http://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s16013/P15%20Quality%20Assurance.pdf


 

16 
 

information hub, has been developed and is accessible through the website. 
 

 We have reviewed the way that the Approved Mental Health Practitioners 
(AMHP) work and respond to calls for assessment. The policies, procedures 
and protocols have been updated in line with a new national quality assurance 
process.  A new rota system and AMHP hub will be implemented in 2018-19 
and this will be linked more closely to Act and the need to promote prevention 
and wellbeing initiatives.   

 
What are our priorities for next year and why?     
         

 Continue to safely reduce the number of looked 
after children by making sure that we provide 
effective help as early as possible and that we 
work with children, young people and their families 
to review their situation. This is an ongoing priority 
as effective intervention at the earliest opportunity 
is the most efficient way of supporting families to 
prevent children from becoming looked after.   

 

 Continue to develop the social work approach to people who have experienced a 
difficult time involving intervention from acute hospital services, by helping them to 
stay independent and well. This will enable people to look after their own wellbeing 
more effectively. 
 

 Continue to improve the ways in which the Council provides good information, 
advice and assistance to the public, including increasing the support available 
through local community coordinators.  
 

 Continue to develop the community services model so that the service can be 
proactive and respond appropriately, at the right time, in the right way and by the 
right person. This is called ‘anticipatory care’ planning.  
 

 Continue to involve service users, carers and communities in developing and 
commissioning services.   
 

 To reduce demand by investing in targeted early help and intervention 
programmes.   
 

 Review the pilot scheme for advocacy services for adults, the outcome of which will 
inform a new model of service and future commissioning arrangements.   

 

 
Quality Standard 2 - Working with people and partners 
to protect and promote people’s physical and mental 
health and emotional wellbeing 
 
This remains a priority for Bridgend and there are many 
examples of where we have engaged people in 
developing services that will promote their mental health 

Page 42



 

17 
 

I sometimes lack 
motivation to do things 

that are important  
to me 

and emotional wellbeing. This includes children and young people in shaping the new 
service model for residential care, adults in the model for our two new extra care 
schemes and carers in the development of a Bridgend Carers Strategy.  We continue 
to build strong relationships with our key partners across Western Bay as part of the 
health and social care arrangements, with the South Wales Police in the development 
of the MASH team and various other initiatives.   A good example of working in a more 
co-productive way is development of a strategy with our Third Sector partners.  
 
What were the main things we said we would do in 
2017-18? 
 

 Work with the Third Sector in order to develop a 
strategy which will set out how the Council and Third 
Sector will work together to promote and support 
prevention and wellbeing approaches.   

 

 Implement the planned MASH with our partners in the 
police, probation and the health board.   
 

 Invest in carers support and use every 
opportunity for funding to make sure that the 
right services are available to them.  

 

 Put systems in place so that we can better 
meet the needs of young people in transition 
from childhood into adulthood;   

 

 Support the residents and their families in our 
existing Care Homes to prepare for the  

 transition into the new Extra care Schemes.   
 

 Progress the plans for a new model for residential 
care for children and young people and make sure 
that we consult with children and young people 
themselves so that we can better understand what 
support they feel is most needed.   

 

 Open the new 52 week residential facility so that 
children with complex needs who need such 
support do not have to go out of county and away 
from their family in order to receive the appropriate 
help they need.  

 
How far did we succeed and what difference did we make?  
 

 A significant piece of work has been undertaken with Third Sector partners in 
order to co-produce a development plan. The draft plan 
is called ‘Building Resilient Communities’ and it 
provides a platform where the Third Sector, community 
and voluntary groups can develop a shared agenda 
and work programme in partnership with the Council.  
 

I am becoming more 
and more anxious and 

depressed I spend 
days not speaking to 
anyone except carer 

in the morning 

A care package is in 
place that allows X to go 

to the local pub with 
carers support which 

allows his wife some time 

on her own 

Page 43



 

18 
 

 The early help and safeguarding board has developed a suite of information which 
has enabled the teams to better understand and track the information regarding 
early help interventions and looked after children. As a result we have a clearer 
understanding of what is working, where the gaps are and where to target 
resources.                

 

 The MASH commenced in early April 2018. Phase 2 of the MASH which is when 
adult social care will join, is on target for September. 
 

 The Council wants to maintain independence and wellbeing for Carers and the 
person being cared for.  We have mapped out our current services for carers and 
have held a number of carers’ events to make sure they have had the opportunity 
to build the future vision and also to contribute to service developments. The next 
step is to commission a provider to deliver both long and short term breaks for 
either carers or the people they care for. 

 

 15 young carers have been given support to develop their creative skills and as a 
result they have been able to put together an exhibition which shows aspects of 
their lives, the challenges they have faced and their aspirations for a better future. 
 

 A programme board has overseen the work required to help the residents from two 
existing Council run homes to plan to move into a new accommodation setting 
appropriate to their individual needs. This focussed piece of work will help a 
smooth transition into a new extra care scheme, a new residential setting or 
nursing care.   Equal attention has also been given to the staff who will also be 
part of the changes. The changes have been supported by a detailed 
communication strategy to make sure that all stakeholders are kept informed of 
the developments. Please see Extra Care communication Strategy and newsletter 
here: 

Extra Care 
Communication Strategy.docx

     

ECH Newsletter 
February 2018.pdf

 
 Bridgend delivered its third Get on Track programme for 15 vulnerable young 

people including looked after children.  This programme has provided mentoring 
support and given participants new skills to help them towards employment.  This 
intervention is run in partnership with the Dame Kelly Holmes Foundation. 

 

 The ‘Move More Often’ programme has been developed in day services and 
residential care settings to build personal resilience and support socialisation 
amongst older people.  The Olympage event saw 120 older people participate in a 
range of games and encouraged them to ‘move more often’. The event was 
supported by 100 Health and Social Care students creating an environment for all 
ages.  There are now community based Olympage programmes linked to local 
communities across the whole Borough and into the Western Bay region. 

 
What are our priorities for next year and why?   
 

 Fully implement the Multi Agency Safeguarding Hub (MASH) in partnership with 
the police, probation and the health board.   

 

Page 44

http://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s15973/P18%20Extra%20Care%20communication%20Strategy.pdf
http://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s15974/P18%20Extra%20Care%20Newsletter.pdf


 

19 
 

 Develop a therapeutic team to wrap around Childrens’ services so that we can 
better support children and young people who are experiencing difficulties or 
crisis. The service is intended to improve outcomes for children by increasing 
placement stability and prevent placements breaking down and children needing 
to move.   

 

 Further develop our integrated community services so that the team can respond 
to need seven days a week as well as increasing the availability of nurses. This 
team is called the Acute Clinical Team and is part of the Community Resource 
Team. 

 

 Start phase 2 of the re-modelling homecare service in order to ensure that we can 
consistently protect and promote people’s wellbeing.  

 
 Make sure that the work needed to develop a transition team is completed so that 

young people moving into adulthood have the right support at the right time. 
 

 Develop the prevention and wellbeing agenda so that there is a stronger link with 
the rest of the Council and better focus and engagement with key partners. 
Continue to build up the evidence base which will show how such an approach 
can support people to remain independent and therefore reduce the likelihood of 
receiving ongoing support from social services; in the Act this is called ‘managed 
care and support’. We will also make sure that all future commissioned services 
have a prevention and wellbeing approach. Please see the report to our Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee here: 

07.03.18 - 
Prevention and Wellbeing Services - 7th March 2018.pdf

 
 

 Communicate the co-production approach and the Third Sector work across the 
whole Council and implement the associated development action plan.  
 

 

 
Quality Standard 3 - Taking steps to protect and safeguard people from abuse, 
neglect or harm 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Safeguarding is a core theme in everything we do. It is about protecting children, 
young people and adults from abuse or neglect and educating those around them to 

I don’t feel safe 
when on my own, 

want my son 
home at all times 

I have a lifeline as 
I have a tendency 
to trip and have 
had 4 nasty falls 

in past month 

Page 45

http://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s14812/07.03.18%20-%20Prevention%20and%20Wellbeing%20Services%20-%207th%20March%202018.pdf?LLL=0


 

20 
 

recognise the signs and dangers and to keep safe. Bridgend is a member of the 
Western Bay Safeguarding Board and this is the link to their website: 
http://www.wbsb.co.uk/ 
  
 
What were the main things we said we would do in 2017-18? 
 

 Implement the new advocacy services in both adult and children’s social care 
services so that children, young people and adults are able to have a stronger 
voice in terms of what matters to them and therefore become more independent. 
   

 Complete the review of the secure estate and make sure that our resources are 
targeted at the right people.   

 

 Progress the review of residential care in Children’s Social Care so that we can 
offer more effective support to those children who need it. This will include 
developing our in-house foster care service.   

 

 Implement the recommendations set out in the CSSIW Children’s Services 
Inspection.  

 

 All children and young people subject to the Child Sexual Exploitation (CSE) 
protocol will have an up to date self-assessment risk assessment form (SERAF) 
assessment.  

 

 Safely reduce the amount of time a child’s name remains on the child protection 
register and reduce the number of children who have to come back onto the 
register.   

 

 Bring one Social Services Safeguarding Team under the same management 
rather than having separate teams in Adults’ and Children’s Social Care.   

 
 
How far did we succeed and what difference did we make? 
 

 Advocacy awareness training has been provided to staff.  Children’s Social Care 
now have a system in place to make sure that advocacy is considered at the 
assessment and review process.    
 

 All children and young people subject to the CSE protocol now have an up to date 
Self-Assessment Risk Assessment Form (SERAF) assessment meeting.  At each 
strategy a range of risk indicators are considered and this informs the type of 
intervention and amount of monitoring required. This has meant that we have been 
able to reduce the number of young people who are subject to CSE monitoring 
because the intervention offered is more targeted. 

 

 The number of children whose names have been placed on the Child Protection 
Register has decreased and the length of time a child’s name is placed on the 
register has reduced. This indicates that we are more effective in identifying and 
managing risk through assessment and appropriate intervention.    

 

Page 46

http://www.wbsb.co.uk/


 

21 
 

My carers have cared for 
me really well and made 
me feel safe as anything 

no one will hurt me 

around them 

 There is still more work to do to bring the adult and children safeguarding teams 
together but this will now be progressed in 2018-19 as the new MASH service will 
enable greater integration.  

 

 In June 2017, the review of the work with the prison (secure estate) was 
completed. Part 11 of the Act gives local authorities new responsibilities for 
prisoners who have care and support needs and live within the local authority 
boundary.  As a result there has been a review of the skill mix required for staff 
within the secure estate team and permanent members of staff have now been 
recruited in light of the findings of the review. In addition there has been an 
analysis of gaps against the requirements of the act and this work will be taken 
forward in 2018-19.   Some 2017-18 data is included below: 
 

Referrals and Re-referrals received 
 

89 

  

Assessments completed  
 
Number of which were as a result of a referral 

83 
 
67 

  

Support Plans completed as result of an assessment following referral 
 

23 

  

Reviews completed 
 

20 

 
 
What are our priorities for next year and why? 
   
  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 Further work will be done to raise awareness about advocacy services for children 
to make sure that there is an increase in advocacy being offered and also an 
increase in the take up of advocacy support. 
 

 To further integrate the children’s and adults Safeguarding Teams so that systems 
and processes can be streamlined and more effective 

 

 To make sure that we are fulfilling our responsibilities as set out in the Act within 
the secure (prison) estate. 

 
 

When I am with 
family and carers I 

feel happy and safe.   

Page 47



 

22 
 

Quality Standard 4 - Encouraging and supporting people to learn, develop and 
participate in society 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The directorate continues to work towards the 
corporate priority of ‘helping people be more 
self-reliant’ and our approach is to encourage 
people to be as independent as possible.  Our 
aim is to support people to have more voice 
and control in their lives and in order to do this 
social care practitioners have matured the 
skills needed to have a different conversation 
which develops people’s strengths and wants 
rather than the more traditional dependency 
style.  Training opportunities have focussed on 
outcome focussed approaches. We also have many examples of how we have 
engaged with the users of our services to help shape the future delivery model.  The 
pathway between early help services and social care has been strengthened and at 
the time of writing this report further work is being done to review the current model to 
make sure that resources are directed appropriately.  
 
 
What were the main things we said we would do in 2017-18? 
 

 Train more staff in new ways of working so that they can focus on what matters to 
people, we call this outcome focussed assessment and care planning;   

 

 Continue to develop our prevention and wellbeing approaches so that we can 
support people to live more fulfilled lives in their own homes and communities and 
prevent the need for them to come into a care environment; 

 

 Consult with families about the transition of 
children into Adult Social Care and develop a wider 
network of social work and health input through the 
health led ‘Facing the Challenge’ team.  Following 
this, ensure the appropriate monitoring 
arrangements, networks and relationships are in 
place to support the process;  

 

 Continue to deliver training to ensure appropriate 
support for people with dementia. 
 

 
 

I would like to move to the 
area where I have 

connections and friends, I 
sometimes feel far away 

from a community 

I have this family 
that I belong to 
and I have my 

friends 

I feel very isolated 
due to my 
mobility 

Page 48



 

23 
 

How far did we succeed and what difference did we make? 
 

 The strategy of supporting people to remain living as independently, as possible, 
at home, for as long as possible, has been working and the performance data for 
2017-18 shows a reduction in long term Residential/Nursing Care placements. 
There were 452 people in Residential / Nursing Care at 31/03/2018 and this is a 
reduction when compared to 31/03/2017, where there were 466 people in similar 
placements.  
 

 In Adult Social Care there has been a focus on ‘Reinvigorating Social Work’. 
Training has focused on building relationships with people known as ‘a relationship 
based approach to assessment and delivering people’s well-being outcomes.’ 
Please see strategy and word cloud here: 

BCBC v2 Traning 
Plan 2017-18.docx

Wrd Cloud Social 
Work.docx

 
To support team based learning and application of the training in teams, there has 
been a significant learning and development program called Action Learning. This 
involves groups of practitioners coming together to reflect on practice. A sample of 
case records is monitored and this then feeds into the ongoing evaluation of the 
impact of the training received by and within teams. A focus is given on making 
sure that people’s well- being outcomes are being met. The focus has to be that 
people experience positive differences in their lives. 

 We have continued to work with the ABMU Health Board Dementia Care training 
team and we have reviewed, revised and improved the programme.   

 

 In Children’s Social Care we invested in a leadership development programme for 
senior and middle managers. Please see outline programme from IPC here: 

Bridgend CBC 
Children's Services Leadership Programme Briefing 15 July 2017.docx

 
People trained in 2017/18: 

 

 16 staff attended Facilitating Action Learning training 

 20 staff attended ‘Engaging Well’ train the trainer sessions. 

 11 of the 12 teams have delivered team based ‘Engaging Well’ workshops (some 
additional planning is required in Adult Mental Health). 

 6 x 2 day Collaborative Communication Skills courses have been delivered with 
80+ staff attending. Additional courses will be arranged to maximise attendance 
from teams. 

 

 Within Children’s Social Care a programme of training was devised with the aim of 
improving the confidence, consistency and effectiveness of social care staff to 
outcome led practice.  The programme followed the model of the Adult Social Care 
Programme but was differentiated to meet the particular requirements of working 
within Children’s Social Care.  You can view the programme here: 

 

Outcome focused 
practice training programme Childrens Social Care.docx

 

Page 49

http://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s15976/P22%20Reinvigorating%20Social%20Work%20Strategy.pdf
http://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s15975/P22%20Reinvigorating%20Social%20Work%20Strategy%20-%20Word.pdf
http://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s15977/P23%20Childrens%20Leadership%20development%20programme%20IPC.pdf
http://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s15978/P23%20Childrens%20Social%20Care%20-%20Outcome%20focused%20practice%20training%20programme.pdf


 

24 
 

It adopted a 3 phase approach: 
 
• Engaging Well – Defining, Capturing and Recording Outcomes 
• Outcomes Focussed Practice using Collaborative Communication Skills 
• Inspirational Conversations for social care manager and managers.  (Jointly with    

Adult Social Care) 
 

 Practitioners have helped to shape the training events and the new quality 
assurance framework. In Adult Social Care ‘action learning’ has been introduced 
and the teams have responded well to this new method of problem solving and 
learning. Children’s Social Care will be adopting the use of action learning sets for 
team development and managers will be receiving training in action learning set 
facilitation.  

 

 Bridgend has supported 21 newly qualified social workers through their first year in 
practice. 
 

 Work was taken forward with the Third Sector which will result in a co-produced 
plan called ‘Building Community Resilience’ and an associated action plan which 
will be taken forward in 2018-19.  A copy of the draft plan is attached here: 

 

buidling resilient 

communities draft (3).pdf 
 

 Benefits for the organisation include a clear strategic direction and pathway for the 
development and support of social work in delivering the aims and responsibilities 
of the Act.  The strategic direction sets the scene for embedding outcome focus 
approaches and quality assurance into day-to-day practice and there is now a solid 
foundation from which to build in 2018-19. 
 
 
What are our priorities for 2018/19 and why?  

 

 Continue to deliver training sessions on reflective practice and action learning 
across the whole directorate. 
 

 Make sure that effective supervision and quality assurance is embedded into 
practice and that there is a consistent quality assurance audit programme. This will 
demonstrate how well the assessment process and subsequent service delivery 
mechanisms support a person centred approach which builds on a person’s own 
strengths and abilities. 

 
 Make sure that we promote a co-production model for new service development.  

 

 

 
 

Page 50



 

25 
 

My social worker 
seems to change so 
not sure who it is at 

present 

So thankful to have the 
care and support from 
various departments 

 - so appreciated 

Quality Standard 5 – Supporting people to safely develop and maintain healthy 
domestic, family and personal relationships 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
Bridgend is committed to supporting people to feel happy and fulfilled and this 
standard is about helping people to achieve healthy and safe relationships at home, in 
their own communities and with the people they are close to.  Our aim has not 
changed from last year as we recognise that this is an ongoing aspiration, therefore, 
we want to support all our ‘customers’ to be as socially active as possible, to feel they 
can make decisions for themselves and keep themselves safe as well as making a 
contribution to others and in the community in which they live. 
 
What were the main things we said we would do 
in 2017-18? 
 

 Be more pro-active in recruiting new foster 
families so that we can support children to 
remain living locally and have a healthy, happy 
and stable family relationship;  

 

 Further develop support services within local 
communities and work with the Third sector to 
develop a range of community support options.   

 

How far did we succeed and what difference did we make? 

 

 Since April 2017, we have run a number of fostering campaigns 
in order to increase the number of foster carers, whether for 
general care, support care or for the parent and child scheme. 
The foster care online scheme has been enhanced and we have 
also run recruitment stalls at a number of local events. In 2017-18 
there were seven new approvals providing placements for 10 
children. 
 

 The community network teams have developed stronger 
partnership links with the local community and Third Sector 
groups so that they can link people into ordinary activities and 
support networks in the area in which they live. The number of 
Local Community Co-ordinators (LCC) has increased from one to three and 116 
referrals to the LCCs were received during 2017-18. 

 

 In partnership with Halo Leisure and Awen Cultural Trust, regular dementia friendly 
swimming and socialisation opportunities have been developed and so far 17 

Our social worker 
and CPN are a 

phone call away 

Page 51



 

26 
 

people have  participated.  The benefits to carers and also partner organisations 
has been evidenced. 

 
 
What are our priorities for next year and why?    
 

 Target the recruitment of foster carers so that 
we have a wider range of choice and skills in 
order to find local placements for those 
children that require a more specialist 
placement. We will focus on recruiting 
transition carers which are part of the 
proposed new model for placement provision. 
We will also have a focus on recruiting 
individuals or families who could provide 
supported lodgings placements and, therefore, safely enable young people to 
leave foster care and become more independent. We will make sure that we build 
the support care service so that they can more effectively work to prevent children 
becoming looked after and can also support families to be reunited and children 
rehabilitated home.   
 

 Continue to develop the individual community knowledge base of the Community 
Dementia Support Workers to ensure opportunity to share this knowledge of local 
support is available to all people and their significant others accessing their 
service.  

 To strengthen the opportunities for people, known to Social Services and therefore 
in ‘managed care and support’ to engage with and be connected to their 
communities.   

 

 Finalise a transition service model to help disabled children move smoothly into 
adulthood.   
 
 

 
Quality Standard 6 - Working with and supporting people to achieve greater 
economic wellbeing, have a social life and live in suitable accommodation that 
meets their needs 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
One of the corporate priorities for the Council is to ‘support a successful economy’. It is 
important that people have a suitable place to live and feel safe in their own home, that 
they have comfortable social networks but that they also have the opportunity to 
improve their income.  
 

I would like to go on 

organised trips occasionally 

It’s my family home so although 
not always appropriate it’s where 

I want to be 

Page 52



 

27 
 

I have what I want and 
so far, I have been much 
happier with the foster 

carers 

Some things we have 
asked for - could not be 

provided 

 

What were the main things we said we would do in 2017-18?  
 

 Consult on a new strategy for Direct Payments so that more people will be able to 
access a direct payment and therefore will be able to access more flexible support 
to help them be more independent;   
 

 Work more closely with colleagues in 
housing so that we can create more 
housing options and solutions for people in 
need;   

 

 Continue to involve service users, carers 
and communities in developing and 
commissioning services;  

 

 Ensure that we create pre-apprenticeship schemes for young care leavers so that 
they will have the support they need to get ready to join an apprenticeship scheme;   

 

 Continue the implementation of the revised respite service for children with 
disabilities so that children and their families can still receive the respite they need 
as well as Bridgend being able to offer more flexible 
support to a greater number of families;   

 

 Continue to develop dementia friendly communities - 
there is a plan in place to make more local 
areas dementia friendly communities this year and 
increase the number of dementia friends across the 
county borough by training staff, elected Members, 
schools and colleges and other partner organisations;   
 

 Consider the financial assistance afforded to care leavers who wish to attend 
university.   

 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 

How far did we succeed and what difference did we make?  
 

 17 looked after children have been offered a work experience placement within 
Bridgend. 15 of these will have their placement within the Council and two will be 
placed within the Borough. This will be part of an ‘apprenticeship ready’ 
programme and there will be ongoing evaluation and support to enable the young 
care leavers to move into other apprenticeship or work based opportunities. 

 

 We recognised that we did not have a Policy to provide financial support to care 
leavers who wanted to attend university and that the support offered was 

I live with my twin brother 
who also has learning 

disabilities  

Page 53



 

28 
 

inconsistent with no standard financial formula/framework in place.  We produced 
a report encompassing the Welsh Government review on this topic and offered 
three different options for consultation.  We will, thereafter, consider the 
consultation preferences and write a policy to allow care leavers confidence that 
they will be equally treated in terms of financial support and ensure that the Local 
Authority has given assurances that as corporate parents, young people will be 
afforded the same opportunities as other young people fulfil their potential and 
achieve their goals and aspirations.  Please see the Cabinet Report here: 

30.01.18 Childrens 
Social Care Uni Fees.pdf

 
 

 In 2017-18, 1,500 people from across the county borough 
of Bridgend have become ‘dementia friends’ and some 
have gone onto become dementia champions. Five local 
community areas have achieved the ‘working towards the 
dementia friendly community’ award. As a result people 
living with dementia and their families have gained in confidence and feel more 
able to remain living within their own community due to the support the everyday 
support they receive. 

 
 

 An independent review of the Bridgend Direct 
Payment Scheme was commissioned in 2017-18 
and as a result we have revised the operational 
policy and procedures and guidance. The new 
Direct Payment Scheme will be launched in the 
summer of 2018 and it will be more closely linked 
to the financial strategy.   

 
What are our priorities for next year and why?    
 

 To support more young people to participate in apprenticeship opportunities 
across the Council. We will also evaluate the experiences of those who have 
participated in apprenticeships and be proactive in identifying progression routes 
into employment. 

 

 We will implement a policy to ensure a consistent approach to support care 
leavers attending university.         

 

 To review our joint intentions with our partners in the light of the National Dementia 
Action Plan.    

 

 Implement and monitor the new direct payments policy, procedure and action plan.   
 
 
 

 
 

I have lived in my own 
home for 48 years with 

assistance of care - 
hope to remain – my 

main carer is my wife 

Page 54

http://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s14516/180130%20Childrens%20Social%20Care.pdf?LLL=0


 

29 
 

5. How We Do What We Do   

 

Our Workforce and How We Support their Professional Roles  

 

Bridgend County Borough Council is committed to 
ensuring that the social care workforce, not just 
within the Council but across the whole sector, has 
the appropriate skills, training and development opportunities in order to keep up with 
the new legislation. We firmly believe that a competent and trained workforce is the 
key to making sure that we are able to deliver quality services at the right time, in the 
right way and to the right person.  Bridgend receives funding from Welsh Government 
via the Social Care Wales Workforce Development Grant which has been used to 
support the implementation of the Act. The grant now comes into the region and so 
also supports the Western Bay regional priorities to support improvement of care and 
support across all providers and organisations and the priority areas for the grant are 
set out in the Social Care Workforce Development grant. The grant allocation for 
Bridgend for 2017-18 was £321,786 to which the Local Authority added a contribution 
of £170,730, which was £32,822 in excess of the mandatory required 
contribution.  Below are examples of some of programmes that were available in 2017-
18.   
 

 There have been 5,963 attendances days at learning and development events 
during the period April 2017 to March 2018.  
 

 Bridgend has continued to focus training on developing the skills of the whole 
sector workforce to enable them to have different conversations with the people we 
currently support and those who are new to the service. A programme of training 
has been delivered with the aim of improving the confidence, consistency and 
effectiveness of social care staff to better meet the requirements set out in the Act 
and, most importantly, to continue to focus on strengths and outcomes for people.   
The programme has been flexible to meet the particular requirements of working 
within Adults or Children’s Social Care and has included programmes called Caring 
with Pride; Engaging Well; Collaborative Communication Skills; Inspirational 
Conversations for Social Care Staff and Managers.  

 

 All staff have the opportunity to access a Welsh Language e-learning programme. 
The directorate has Welsh Language Champions in place across the service areas. 
Staff are aware of who these champions are and they are able to get support and 
advice from them as and when needed. The service supports those who are 
learning to speak Welsh and is also able to identify staff who are fluent in the 
Welsh Language.   

 

 We have continued to work with the ABMU Dementia Care 
training team and we have reviewed, revised and improved 
the programme.  Training has been mapped against the 
‘Good Work Dementia Learning and Development 
Framework for Wales’. Please see outline dementia 
programme here: 

Dementia Care 
Programme.docx

Dementia Care 
Training Programme overview.docx

 

Page 55

http://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s15977/P23%20Childrens%20Leadership%20development%20programme%20IPC.pdf
http://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s15978/P23%20Childrens%20Social%20Care%20-%20Outcome%20focused%20practice%20training%20programme.pdf


 

30 
 

 There has been a programme of training for mental health professionals to make 
sure that they are kept up to date with the necessary legislation and guidance. You 
can view the programme here: 

Mental Health DoLs 
training.docx

 
 

 We have delivered a national programme, called Confidence in Care, aimed at 
transforming outcomes for looked after children in Wales.  Bridgend has held an 11 
week course for our foster carers aiming at increasing their skills and coping 
strategies to improve the relationship between the foster carer and the child they 
are caring for. 
 

 Alongside a core programme of training on Child Sexual Exploitation (CSE), we 
have introduced CSE training for taxi drivers and those working within the night 
time economy e.g. hotel, pubs and clubs.  The training also covers safeguarding for 
a range of other vulnerable groups. 

 

 We work with local training providers to deliver the Health and Social Care 
Qualification and Credit Framework (QCF) awards at level 2, 3 and 5.  We have 
been preparing for the inclusion of domiciliary and residential adult care home 
workers onto the Social Care Wales register of Social Care Workers by identifying 
and supporting staff to undertake the required qualification in advance of 
mandatory registration in 2020- 2022. 

 

 Bridgend co-ordinated 36 practice learning placements for social work students.  
24 of these were within Local Authority Social Work teams and 12 provided by third 
sector agencies.  

 

 Bridgend has supported 21 newly qualified social workers through their first year in 
practice.  17 social workers have completed the Continuing Professional Education 
& Learning (CPEL) Consolidation Programme.  Five social workers are currently 
undertaking CPEL modules at Cardiff University. 

 

 HR Officers have supported the planning and development of the social care 
workforce, to ensure there is a competent, appropriately trained and qualified 
workforce to deliver professional and quality services.  Some of the key areas  
include: 

 Implementation of the recruitment and retention strategy; 

 Provision of workforce information; 

 Engagement and consultation with employees affected by the new extra care 
provision; 

 Consultation with employees to implement new staff structures in children’s 
residential services; 

 Preparation for the introduction of domiciliary care registration. 
 

Priorities for 2018-19 
 

 To ensure that Bridgend is ready for the implementation of the Regulation and 
Inspection of Social Care (Wales) Act 2016. Workshops and briefings to support 
the implementation of the Act including regulation, roles of the registered 

Page 56

http://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s15981/P29%20Mental%20Health%20DOLS%20programme.pdf


 

31 
 

manager and responsible individual and the All Wales induction framework for 
health and social care. 

 

 To support developments within residential and foster care services for children 
and young people.  This includes a training strategy which aims to promote a 
common understanding of children’s and young people’s behaviour using a 
common base and intervention model. 
 

 Support the service in: 
 

o building social work capacity for succession planning 
o remodelling services and implementing new structures and ways of 

working 
o ensuring that the terms and conditions for those services that we 

commission meet the requirements of the Welsh Language Act. The 
Welsh Language is part of the quality frameworks for residential care, 
nursing care and domiciliary care services. 

 

Use of technology 
 
We are always looking at ways to improve the use of technology to support our work. 
Some examples of this are detailed below: 
 

 In September 2017 direct care staff working in the community were all given an 
electronic tablet to enable them to work more flexibly outside of an office 
environment. It is now much easier to communicate with these staff on a daily 
basis as they can receive updates and information, including rota information, 
payslips and general emails, about their calls whilst ‘on the patch’. This has 
meant a new way of working for this group of staff and generally the response 
has been very positive.   
 

 Initial preparation work has taken place to develop an electronic process for 
fostering allowance payments and it is anticipated that this will be up and 
running later in 2018 on the Social Services electronic system known as 
WCCIS. When this has been completed the next step will be to progress the 
payments to our independent domiciliary care providers. 
 

 Bridgend County Borough Council utilises the court portal in order to store, 
manage and share all the papers required for care/supervision court 
proceedings and these are referred to as ‘court bundles’.  This is a secure web 
based portal which is used by a number of local authorities and is managed by 
officers from Carmarthenshire and Swansea.  This has helped in reducing the 
need to print numerous bundles of documents for parties and the courts, saving 
the service both time and money.  In addition it enables all parties to access the 
documents from anywhere at any time.  The court service is in the process of 
digitisation and in due course it is likely that all bundles will be provided to the 
court electronically.  Bridgend use of the portal will inevitably make adapting to 
the process of change in the court service a far simpler task. 

 

 

 

 

Page 57



 

32 
 

Our Financial Resources and How We Plan For the Future  

 
Across the UK, councils are facing unprecedented challenges in the face of reduced 
Government funding and increased demands on essential services.  The difficult 
financial position is set to continue for a number of years to come and in our Medium 
Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) we estimate that, between 2018-19 and 2022-23, 
Bridgend County Borough Council could have to make further savings of up to £33 
million.  
 
The Council’s net budget in 2017-18 was £258 million.  To achieve a balanced budget, 
the Council’s budget included savings proposals of £6 million. Of this, £1.8million was 
related to Social Services and Wellbeing.  One of the Council’s key principles in 
developing its Medium Term Financial Strategy is to meet its statutory obligations and 
direct its resources towards its corporate improvement priorities. 
However, the authority has also allocated additional revenue funding for priority areas 
within social services to the value of £865,000. 
 
The net base budget for Social Services in 2017-18 was £60million. The services have 
worked very hard toward achieving MTFS savings and contain expenditure within 
budget.  However, the year-end outturn showed Adult Social Care was £534,000 
overspent and Childrens Services was £888,000 overspent.  It should be noted that 
Adult Social Care has been subject to over £6.3million MTFS budget reductions over 
past three years (2015/16 to 2017/18) and  Children’s Social Care has been subject to 
over £1.3million MTFS budget reductions over the past three years (2015/16 to 
2017/18), whilst the demand on services has remained high. 
 
The Council has robust monitoring and review processes in place to ensure that the 
MTFS is delivering. Regular reports come into the corporate management board 
(CMB) and the monthly joint meeting between the Cabinet and CMB. There is a 
quarterly corporate performance assessment (CPA) which is attended by Cabinet, 
CMB and heads of service. At this meeting the Directors have to present their 
performance for the quarter which includes the budget position and progress against 
the MTFS and this is open to challenge from members of the board. 
The service also has the necessary checks and balances in place and service 
managers and finance work closely to ensure that budgets are effectively managed 
and monitored. Monthly updates are provided to the director, heads of service and 
group managers on the budget position and regular finance updates are provided to 
the two re-modelling boards where progress on the change programme is matched 
against the savings targets.  
 
In light of the significant budget pressures facing the social services directorate, the 
service has developed an updated financial plan identifying plans and actions that are 
being implemented in order to bring the service back to a balanced budget over the 
next three years.  However, it needs to be recognised that the directorate may also be 
required to find additional MTFS savings over the next three years to contribute to the 
overall budget pressures facing the Council. 
 

 

 

Page 58



 

33 
 

Our Partnership Working, Political and Corporate Leadership, Governance and 

Accountability    

 

As reported last year, Bridgend continues to be a key partner within the Western Bay 
Regional Partnership Board. The governance arrangements have been reviewed and 
amended as the programme has evolved and new legislation introduced to ensure 
robust decision-making processes.  At the time of writing this report there is an 
independent review of the current arrangements and this will take account of the 
potential changes required to the regional arrangements if there is a change to the 
Health Board boundary.  
 
The groups and boards for the various strands of the programme include officers from 
all partner organisations, including the third sector and these groups are used to share 
health and social care intelligence in order to inform changes, which will improve 
delivery of services, care and support.  Robust governance arrangements has been a 
key factor to the success of the Western Bay Programme and demonstrate the 
commitment to the Key Programmes having a Regional Implementation Manager for 
each along with a Director as a Sponsor, which helps drive the change at both a 
strategic and political level.  Please see governance structure and recent report here: 

3. Appendix 3 - 
Western Bay response to WG letter dated 11th April.docx

Western Bay 
Governance Phase 3 2016-17 28.03.18.pdf

 
 
A joint programme office supports and coordinates the partnership arrangements with 
the necessary allocated resources through a Section 33 Agreement for the Western 
Bay Programme Office infrastructure, which has been approved by all partners to 2020 
demonstrating the commitment to partnership working.  
 
There are a number of other partnership agreements and pooled fund arrangements 
that have been developed for Western Bay services over the last few years.  A major 
achievement of the partnership was to construct and obtain approval for the Section 
33 agreement, established for Intermediate Care Services across Western Bay that is 
managed through Joint Partnership Boards in Bridgend, Neath Port Talbot and 
Swansea.  
 
In 2017-18 there has been a focus on producing the Regional Area Plan which sets 
out the priority areas for integrated working between health and social care. These 
priorities are set against the key themes of older people, children and young people, 
mental health, learning disability and autism and carers. 
 
In December 2017, Welsh Government issued a consultation entitled ‘Effective 
Partnership Working in Bridgend – Proposed Health Board Boundary Change to Align 
Decision Making across Health and Local Government’. The consultation closed in 
March 2018 and at the time of writing this report there is still no announcement 
confirming the outcome. Bridgend has therefore continued to work in partnership 
across Western Bay but has also started to develop closer working relationships with 
the Cwm Taf region in preparation of any potential change.  Please see Health Board 
Boundary Change Council report here: 

28.02.18 - Council 
HB boundary change consultation.pdf

 

Page 59

http://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s15983/P31%20Western%20Bay%20Governance%20Structure%20Diagram%20.docx.pdf
http://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s15982/P31%20Western%20Bay%20Governance%20Structure.pdf
http://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s14764/28.02.18%20-%20Council%20HB%20boundary%20change%20consultation.pdf?LLL=0


 

34 
 

In Bridgend, Cabinet and the corporate management board (CMB) continue to meet 
informally on a monthly basis which provides the opportunity to oversee the business 
of the Council, share the overall direction for the Council and make sure that we are 
promoting the One Council approach so that important issues such as the MTFS, 
safeguarding and transformation are on the agenda. 
 
We have a simple vision for Bridgend County Borough Council, to ‘always act as one 
Council working together to improve lives.’  The corporate plan was reviewed during 
the year and updated as appropriate and ‘Working Together to Improve Lives’ sets out 
the corporate priorities and the direction of travel:  

• Supporting a successful economy; 
• Helping people be more self- reliant; 
• Smarter use of resources. 

There is a clear link to the Social Services and Wellbeing Directorate Business Plan 
which sets out the directorate’s priorities for 2018-19.  
 
For social services, ‘helping people be more self-reliant’ means that we will continue to 
develop our approaches and practice so that we can appropriately take early steps to 
reduce and prevent people from becoming vulnerable or dependent on us and our 
services.  
 
Bridgend County Borough Council takes its role as corporate parents seriously and the 
Corporate Parenting Committee meets quarterly. There are also Overview and 
Scrutiny committees. 
 
Links to all of the 2017-18 Cabinet, Council, Corporate Parenting and Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee reports and minutes that relate to social care can be accessed 
Please find attached the  link to all reports here: 
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ieDocHome.aspx?Categories 
 
As mentioned, there is a quarterly corporate performance assessment (CPA) meeting 
which is attended by Cabinet, CMB, Scrutiny Chairs and heads of service. At this 
meeting, the Directors have to present their performance for the quarter which 
includes the budget position, performance against business plan actions and targets, 
sickness and progress against the MTFS and this is open to challenge from members 
of the board.  Specifically, the CPA monitors:  
 

 the Council’s improvement priorities and its commitments which are set out in 
the corporate plan, which can be accessed through the Council’s website, 
please see link here: 
https://www.bridgend.gov.uk/my-council/council-priorities-and-
performance/documents-and-key-publications/ 

 key success indicators-measures and service actions that are linked to national 
and directorate performance indicators and progress against directorate 
priorities; 

 the budget allocated to each directorate and the progress against savings-
targets;  

 corporate risks. 
 
The Corporate Director of Social Services and Wellbeing, with the two heads of 
service continue to meet with all of the social services and wellbeing managers plus 
representatives from Legal, Human Resources and Finance. This ensures open 

Page 60

https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ieDocHome.aspx?Categories
https://www.bridgend.gov.uk/my-council/council-priorities-and-performance/documents-and-key-publications/
https://www.bridgend.gov.uk/my-council/council-priorities-and-performance/documents-and-key-publications/


 

35 
 

communication and updates on national, regional and local matters. It is important that 
staff feel part of this process and are able to contribute to the ongoing development of 
the service and also to recognise the hard work and achievements collectively and as 
individuals. The Director also meets regularly with front line staff and carries out a 
number of service visits throughout the year. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 61



 

36 
 

6. Accessing Further Information and Key Documents   

 

Page Reference Description Evidence Link 
 

Page 5 Link to The Parliamentary 
Review of Health and Social 
Care in Wales 
 

https://beta.gov.wales/review-health-
social-care?lang=en         
 

 
Page 5 
 

 
Early Help Scrutiny Report  

16.04.18 - Early Help 
and Childrens Social Care.pdf

 
http://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/doc
uments/s15119/Early%20Help%20an
d%20Childrens%20Social%20Care.p
df?LLL=0 

 
Page 5 
 
 

 
MASH Cabinet Report 

31.10.17 - MASH 
Cabinet Report Final.pdf

 
http://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/doc
uments/s13564/MASH%20Cabinet%2
0Report%20Final%20report%2024.10

.17.pdf?LLL=0 

 
Page 5 & 15 

  
Children’s Residential Care 
Cabinet Report 27.02.18 - Children's 

residential care.pdf
 

http://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/doc
uments/s14701/180227%207%20Chil
drens%20Residential%20Remodellin

g.pdf?LLL=0 

 
Page 8 
 
 

 
Advocacy Evaluation Report 

BVC Evaluation - IPA 
Pilot April 2018.docx.pdf

 
http://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/doc

uments/s15970/P8%20-
%20Advocacy%20Evaluation%20Rep

ort.pdf 

 
Page 10 

 
Social Services & Wellbeing 
Business Plan  SSWB Business plan 

2018-19  following Scrutiny - FINAL PLAN.docx
 

http://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/doc
uments/s15012/Appendix%20A%20-
%20Business%20plan%202018-
19%20SSWB.pdf?LLL=0 

Page 12  
Social Services Representations 
and Complaints Annual Report 
2017-18 
 
 
 
 
 

 

17.07.18 - Complaints 

Annual Report - Appendix 1.doc
 

Page 62

https://beta.gov.wales/review-health-social-care?lang=en
https://beta.gov.wales/review-health-social-care?lang=en
http://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s15119/Early%20Help%20and%20Childrens%20Social%20Care.pdf?LLL=0
http://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s15119/Early%20Help%20and%20Childrens%20Social%20Care.pdf?LLL=0
http://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s15119/Early%20Help%20and%20Childrens%20Social%20Care.pdf?LLL=0
http://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s15119/Early%20Help%20and%20Childrens%20Social%20Care.pdf?LLL=0
http://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s13564/MASH%20Cabinet%20Report%20Final%20report%2024.10.17.pdf?LLL=0
http://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s13564/MASH%20Cabinet%20Report%20Final%20report%2024.10.17.pdf?LLL=0
http://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s13564/MASH%20Cabinet%20Report%20Final%20report%2024.10.17.pdf?LLL=0
http://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s13564/MASH%20Cabinet%20Report%20Final%20report%2024.10.17.pdf?LLL=0
http://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s14701/180227%207%20Childrens%20Residential%20Remodelling.pdf?LLL=0
http://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s14701/180227%207%20Childrens%20Residential%20Remodelling.pdf?LLL=0
http://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s14701/180227%207%20Childrens%20Residential%20Remodelling.pdf?LLL=0
http://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s14701/180227%207%20Childrens%20Residential%20Remodelling.pdf?LLL=0
http://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s15970/P8%20-%20Advocacy%20Evaluation%20Report.pdf
http://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s15970/P8%20-%20Advocacy%20Evaluation%20Report.pdf
http://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s15970/P8%20-%20Advocacy%20Evaluation%20Report.pdf
http://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s15970/P8%20-%20Advocacy%20Evaluation%20Report.pdf
http://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s15012/Appendix%20A%20-%20Business%20plan%202018-19%20SSWB.pdf?LLL=0
http://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s15012/Appendix%20A%20-%20Business%20plan%202018-19%20SSWB.pdf?LLL=0
http://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s15012/Appendix%20A%20-%20Business%20plan%202018-19%20SSWB.pdf?LLL=0
http://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s15012/Appendix%20A%20-%20Business%20plan%202018-19%20SSWB.pdf?LLL=0


 

37 
 

Page Reference Description Evidence Link 
 

 
Page 15 

 
Quality Assurance Framework 

 

Assuring Quality  

Framework  and Guidance July  2017.docx
 

http://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/doc
uments/s16013/P15%20Quality%20A
ssurance.pdf 

 
Page 18 

 
Extra Care communication 
Strategy and newsletter 
 

Extra Care 
Communication Strategy.docx

 
http://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/doc
uments/s15973/P18%20Extra%20Car
e%20communication%20Strategy.pdf 
 

ECH Newsletter 
February 2018.pdf

 
 
http://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/doc
uments/s15974/P18%20Extra%20Car
e%20Newsletter.pdf 
 

 
Page 19 
 
 

 
Prevention and Wellbeing 
Scrutiny Report 

07.03.18 - 
Prevention and Wellbeing Services - 7th March 2018.pdf

 
http://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/doc
uments/s14812/07.03.18%20-
%20Prevention%20and%20Wellbeing
%20Services%20-
%207th%20March%202018.pdf?LLL=
0 
 

 
Page 20 

 
Link to the Western Bay 
Safeguarding Board 
 

 
http://www.wbsb.co.uk/ 

 
Page 23 

 
Reinvigorating Social Work 
Strategy and Word Cloud BCBC v2 Traning 

Plan 2017-18.docx
 

http://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/doc
uments/s15976/P22%20Reinvigoratin
g%20Social%20Work%20Strategy.pd

f 

Wrd Cloud Social 
Work.docx

 
http://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/doc
uments/s15975/P22%20Reinvigoratin
g%20Social%20Work%20Strategy%2

0-%20Word.pdf 
 

Page 63

http://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s16013/P15%20Quality%20Assurance.pdf
http://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s16013/P15%20Quality%20Assurance.pdf
http://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s16013/P15%20Quality%20Assurance.pdf
http://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s15973/P18%20Extra%20Care%20communication%20Strategy.pdf
http://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s15973/P18%20Extra%20Care%20communication%20Strategy.pdf
http://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s15973/P18%20Extra%20Care%20communication%20Strategy.pdf
http://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s15974/P18%20Extra%20Care%20Newsletter.pdf
http://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s15974/P18%20Extra%20Care%20Newsletter.pdf
http://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s15974/P18%20Extra%20Care%20Newsletter.pdf
http://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s14812/07.03.18%20-%20Prevention%20and%20Wellbeing%20Services%20-%207th%20March%202018.pdf?LLL=0
http://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s14812/07.03.18%20-%20Prevention%20and%20Wellbeing%20Services%20-%207th%20March%202018.pdf?LLL=0
http://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s14812/07.03.18%20-%20Prevention%20and%20Wellbeing%20Services%20-%207th%20March%202018.pdf?LLL=0
http://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s14812/07.03.18%20-%20Prevention%20and%20Wellbeing%20Services%20-%207th%20March%202018.pdf?LLL=0
http://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s14812/07.03.18%20-%20Prevention%20and%20Wellbeing%20Services%20-%207th%20March%202018.pdf?LLL=0
http://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s14812/07.03.18%20-%20Prevention%20and%20Wellbeing%20Services%20-%207th%20March%202018.pdf?LLL=0
http://www.wbsb.co.uk/
http://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s15976/P22%20Reinvigorating%20Social%20Work%20Strategy.pdf
http://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s15976/P22%20Reinvigorating%20Social%20Work%20Strategy.pdf
http://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s15976/P22%20Reinvigorating%20Social%20Work%20Strategy.pdf
http://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s15976/P22%20Reinvigorating%20Social%20Work%20Strategy.pdf
http://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s15975/P22%20Reinvigorating%20Social%20Work%20Strategy%20-%20Word.pdf
http://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s15975/P22%20Reinvigorating%20Social%20Work%20Strategy%20-%20Word.pdf
http://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s15975/P22%20Reinvigorating%20Social%20Work%20Strategy%20-%20Word.pdf
http://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s15975/P22%20Reinvigorating%20Social%20Work%20Strategy%20-%20Word.pdf


 

38 
 

Page Reference Description Evidence Link 
 

 
Page 24 

 
Children’s Leadership 
development programme IPC Bridgend CBC 

Children's Services Leadership Programme Briefing 15 July 2017.docx
 

http://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/doc
uments/s15977/P23%20Childrens%2
0Leadership%20development%20pro
gramme%20IPC.pdf 
 

 
Page 24 
 
 

 
Children’s Social Care:  
Outcome focused practice 
training programme 
 

Outcome focused 
practice training programme Childrens Social Care.docx

 
http://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/doc
uments/s15978/P23%20Childrens%2
0Social%20Care%20-
%20Outcome%20focused%20practic
e%20training%20programme.pdf 
 

Page 24 Building Resilient Communities 
Draft Development Plan 
 
 
 
 

buidling resilient 

communities draft (3).pdf
 

 
Page 28 
 
 

 
Children’s Social Care – 
University Fees Cabinet Report 30.01.18 Childrens 

Social Care Uni Fees.pdf
 

http://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/doc
uments/s14516/180130%20Childrens
%20Social%20Care.pdf?LLL=0 
 

 
Page 30 
 
 

 
Outline Dementia Programme 

Dementia Care 
Programme.docx

 
http://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/doc
uments/s15977/P23%20Childrens%2
0Leadership%20development%20pro

gramme%20IPC.pdf 
 

Dementia Care 
Training Programme overview.docx

 
http://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/doc
uments/s15978/P23%20Childrens%2
0Social%20Care%20-
%20Outcome%20focused%20practic
e%20training%20programme.pdf 

 
Page 30 
 
 

 
Mental Health Professionals 
Training Programme Mental Health DoLs 

training.docx
 

http://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/doc
uments/s15981/P29%20Mental%20H
ealth%20DOLS%20programme.pdf 

Page 64

http://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s15977/P23%20Childrens%20Leadership%20development%20programme%20IPC.pdf
http://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s15977/P23%20Childrens%20Leadership%20development%20programme%20IPC.pdf
http://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s15977/P23%20Childrens%20Leadership%20development%20programme%20IPC.pdf
http://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s15977/P23%20Childrens%20Leadership%20development%20programme%20IPC.pdf
http://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s15978/P23%20Childrens%20Social%20Care%20-%20Outcome%20focused%20practice%20training%20programme.pdf
http://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s15978/P23%20Childrens%20Social%20Care%20-%20Outcome%20focused%20practice%20training%20programme.pdf
http://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s15978/P23%20Childrens%20Social%20Care%20-%20Outcome%20focused%20practice%20training%20programme.pdf
http://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s15978/P23%20Childrens%20Social%20Care%20-%20Outcome%20focused%20practice%20training%20programme.pdf
http://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s15978/P23%20Childrens%20Social%20Care%20-%20Outcome%20focused%20practice%20training%20programme.pdf
http://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s14516/180130%20Childrens%20Social%20Care.pdf?LLL=0
http://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s14516/180130%20Childrens%20Social%20Care.pdf?LLL=0
http://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s14516/180130%20Childrens%20Social%20Care.pdf?LLL=0
http://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s15977/P23%20Childrens%20Leadership%20development%20programme%20IPC.pdf
http://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s15977/P23%20Childrens%20Leadership%20development%20programme%20IPC.pdf
http://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s15977/P23%20Childrens%20Leadership%20development%20programme%20IPC.pdf
http://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s15977/P23%20Childrens%20Leadership%20development%20programme%20IPC.pdf
http://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s15978/P23%20Childrens%20Social%20Care%20-%20Outcome%20focused%20practice%20training%20programme.pdf
http://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s15978/P23%20Childrens%20Social%20Care%20-%20Outcome%20focused%20practice%20training%20programme.pdf
http://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s15978/P23%20Childrens%20Social%20Care%20-%20Outcome%20focused%20practice%20training%20programme.pdf
http://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s15978/P23%20Childrens%20Social%20Care%20-%20Outcome%20focused%20practice%20training%20programme.pdf
http://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s15978/P23%20Childrens%20Social%20Care%20-%20Outcome%20focused%20practice%20training%20programme.pdf
http://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s15981/P29%20Mental%20Health%20DOLS%20programme.pdf
http://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s15981/P29%20Mental%20Health%20DOLS%20programme.pdf
http://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s15981/P29%20Mental%20Health%20DOLS%20programme.pdf


 

39 
 

Page Reference Description Evidence Link 
 

 
Page 33 
 
 

 
Western Bay Governance 
Structure and recent report 
 
 

3. Appendix 3 - 
Western Bay response to WG letter dated 11th April.docx

 
http://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/doc
uments/s15982/P31%20Western%20
Bay%20Governance%20Structure.pdf 

 

Western Bay 
Governance Phase 3 2016-17 28.03.18.pdf

 
http://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/doc
uments/s15983/P31%20Western%20
Bay%20Governance%20Structure%2

0Diagram%20.docx.pdf 
 

 
Page 34 

 
Health Board Boundary Change 
Council Report 
 
 

28.02.18 - Council 
HB boundary change consultation.pdf

 
http://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/doc
uments/s14764/28.02.18%20-
%20Council%20HB%20boundary%20
change%20consultation.pdf?LLL=0 
 

 
Page 34 
 
 

 
All Council Reports Link 

https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ie
DocHome.aspx?Categories 
 

 
Page 35 
 

 
Corporate Plan Website Link 

https://www.bridgend.gov.uk/my-
council/council-priorities-and-
performance/documents-and-key-
publications/ 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 65

http://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s15982/P31%20Western%20Bay%20Governance%20Structure.pdf
http://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s15982/P31%20Western%20Bay%20Governance%20Structure.pdf
http://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s15982/P31%20Western%20Bay%20Governance%20Structure.pdf
http://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s15983/P31%20Western%20Bay%20Governance%20Structure%20Diagram%20.docx.pdf
http://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s15983/P31%20Western%20Bay%20Governance%20Structure%20Diagram%20.docx.pdf
http://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s15983/P31%20Western%20Bay%20Governance%20Structure%20Diagram%20.docx.pdf
http://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s15983/P31%20Western%20Bay%20Governance%20Structure%20Diagram%20.docx.pdf
http://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s14764/28.02.18%20-%20Council%20HB%20boundary%20change%20consultation.pdf?LLL=0
http://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s14764/28.02.18%20-%20Council%20HB%20boundary%20change%20consultation.pdf?LLL=0
http://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s14764/28.02.18%20-%20Council%20HB%20boundary%20change%20consultation.pdf?LLL=0
http://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s14764/28.02.18%20-%20Council%20HB%20boundary%20change%20consultation.pdf?LLL=0
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ieDocHome.aspx?Categories
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ieDocHome.aspx?Categories
https://www.bridgend.gov.uk/my-council/council-priorities-and-performance/documents-and-key-publications/
https://www.bridgend.gov.uk/my-council/council-priorities-and-performance/documents-and-key-publications/
https://www.bridgend.gov.uk/my-council/council-priorities-and-performance/documents-and-key-publications/
https://www.bridgend.gov.uk/my-council/council-priorities-and-performance/documents-and-key-publications/


 

40 
 

7. Glossary 

 

 ABMU – Abertawe BroMorgannwg University Health Board 

 Adult Safeguarding – Protection of vulnerable adults (POVA) which can involve 
action taken to prevent or minimise the risk of harm and also includes intervention 
to investigate situations where harm and/or abuse has been experienced by a 
vulnerable person. POVA is a multi-agency framework in place to safeguard 
vulnerable adults from abuse. A vulnerable adult is someone aged 18 or over who 
is, or may be, in need of community care services because of mental or other 
disability, age or illness and be unable to take care of him or herself, or unable to 
protect him or herself against significant harm or exploitation. Bridgend adheres to 
the Wales Interim Policy and Procedures for the Protection of Vulnerable Adults 
from Abuse. This policy is signed up to by all statutory agencies. This means that 
the Authority has a firm agreement where all organisations work closely together to 
protect the person who may be being abused or be at risk of significant harm. Adult 
Social Care lead and co-ordinate the actions taken alongside our partner agencies, 
amongst which are ABM Health Board and South Wales Police.   

 Advocacy - Section 181(2) of the Social Services and Wellbeing (Wales) Act 2014 
defines “advocacy services” as: services which provide assistance (by way of 
representation or otherwise) to persons for purposes relating to their care and 
support. Part 10 of the 2014 Act sets out the requirements for local authorities in 
relation to advocacy, which are to: 

o Ensure that access to advocacy services and support is available to enable 
individuals to engage and participate when local authorities are exercising 
their statutory duties in relation to them; and 

o To arrange an independent professional advocate to facilitate the 
involvement of individuals in certain circumstances. 

o An advocate is defined as an ‘appropriate individual’ who can speak on 
behalf of someone who is facing barriers to communicating or 
understanding, weighing-up, or deciding on information related to services 
that they receive. Advocacy services come in a variety of forms, and range 
from informal, peer and voluntary advocacy through to the provision of paid 
and professional advocates.  

 Anticipatory Care Planning (ACP) -  is an approach to proactive planning with 
individuals, who have been identified as being at risk of losing their independence 
due to illness, increasing frailty or disability; it gives them the opportunity to 
participate in a co-produced planning process that will help them to make decisions 
about future care and support. This approach helps to improve the quality of the 
experience for people by minimising the need for crisis intervention through 
proactive planning. 

 BAVO – Bridgend Association for Voluntary Organisations 

 Better at Home service – see Reablement below 

 Child Protection - All public and voluntary organisations in Bridgend County 
Borough are committed to safeguarding the welfare of children and young people 
and rely on members of the public to report concerns to them. Any concerns raised 
about a child being abused are reported to the on-duty social worker. 

 Child Sexual Exploitation (CSE) - this is the coercion or manipulation of children 
and young people into taking part in sexual activities.  It is a form of sexual abuse 
involving an exchange of some form of payment which can include money, mobile 
phones and other items, drugs, alcohol, a place to stay, “protection” or affection.  
The vulnerability of the young person and grooming process employed by 

Page 66



 

41 
 

perpetrators renders them powerless to recognise the exploitative nature of 
relationships and unable to give informed consent.   (All Wales Protocol CSE 2008) 

 Common Access Point - an integrated team within the Community Resource 
Team. Citizens carers and professionals can access Information advice and 
support via one contact telephone number.  A Multidisciplinary Team makes 
decisions about the most appropriate priority and pathway required to deliver the 
best outcomes for individuals and will liaise with the appropriate service to facilitate 
access to enabling short term assessment and acute clinical services. 

 Community Network (Hub) - A system of empowered localities in the form of 
Locality Networks which will be developed around natural communities as a key 
platform for local service planning and delivery. They will be built around Primary 
Care, Community and Social Care teams, working together across agreed 
populations to plan and deliver integrated, core, out-of-hospital services. 

 Community Resource Team - A joint ABMUL HB and BCBC resource team 
serving the Bridgend community networks. The Community Resource Service is a 
multi-disciplinary, multi-agency team established to respond to the individual needs 
of people who are frail or have physical disabilities or long term chronic conditions 
to avoid inappropriate hospital admissions and facilitate earlier hospital discharge.  
The team provides community support ranging from just a few days to up to six 
weeks. The focus is on short term interventions to support people to remain at 
home outside long-term hospital settings. 

 CIW - Care Inspectorate Wales (CIW) - CIW is part of the Welsh Government. 
They are responsible for regulating, inspecting and reviewing social care services 
and standards. 

 Dementia Friendly Communities – this is a city, town or village where people 
with dementia are understood, respected, supported, and confident they can 
contribute to community life. 

 Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards (DoLS) - The Deprivation of Liberty 
Safeguards were introduced in April 2009 to meet the requirements of the Mental 
Capacity Act, 2005.  They provide protection for individuals who lack capacity and 
are therefore unable to consent to necessary care or treatment regimes, which may 
necessitate depriving them of their liberty to protect them from harm.   

 DEWIS - this is the national citizen portal for wellbeing information in Wales and it 
is the place to go if practitioners or a member of the public want information and 
advice about wellbeing or want to know how you can help someone else. It 
provides a single point of information for citizens and for professionals; everyone 
can contribute information about resources in their area.  As this develops across 
Bridgend, DEWIS will hold both national and local information that can be easily 
accessed and will assist in provision of advice and information for all.  

 Direct Payments - Social Services can provide a cash payment directly to people 
whose needs have been assessed by Social Services as being eligible to receive 
services, so they can arrange and purchase their own support. They might use the 
money to:  

o employ someone directly to help with their care (a Personal Assistant)  
o buy care from a private registered care agency  
o make their own arrangements instead of using Social Services day care or 

respite care 

 Extracare Housing - is one of a number of options for an older person who needs 
personal care or other type of support, but who wants to retain a degree of 
independence and is able to live safely on their own. An Extra Care Housing 
Scheme is usually a group of flats built on the same site (some providers offer 
bungalows), providing specialised accommodation and support services 24 hours a 

Page 67



 

42 
 

day. The accommodation can be rented or bought, both by an individual and by a 
couple. Older people living in them enjoy the freedom of having their own front door 
and the peace of mind from knowing staff are available if they are needed. 

 Information Advice and Assistance service – As part of the Social Services and 
Well-being (Wales) Act 2014, which provides the legislative basis for social 
services in Wales from 6th April 2016, there is a requirement for the provision of 
information, advice and assistance -  local authorities, with the assistance of Local 
Health Board partners, must secure the provision of a service for providing people 
with information and advice relating to well-being, care and support in their area, 
and (where appropriate) assistance in accessing these. 

 Local Community Co-ordination (LCC) - LCC is an approach to supporting 
people who are vulnerable through disability, age, ill health or adverse life events to 
live good lives in their communities. It helps people to draw support from their 
communities by working to increase both the capacity of individuals and of 
communities. LCC works as a single, local point of contact supporting people in 
their community. 

 MASH - Multi Agency Safeguarding Hub.  This is an integrated approach where a 
number of agencies work together in one place, sharing information and making 
collaborative decisions. Interventions are put in place at the earliest opportunity 
across the MASH partnership. A MASH focuses on vulnerability for the purpose of 
Safeguarding children and vulnerable adults. It does this by receiving referrals from 
professionals and from the public. The outcomes of this process inform the level of 
risk to the vulnerable person and can escalate or de-escalate the concern so that 
appropriate action is taken. A MASH is a confidential environment, which means 
that all material, sensitive or not, can be revealed to another agency to decide what 
approach is needed by frontline staff. A MASH provides the opportunity for 
agencies to do this better by providing all professionals with more information on 
which to make better decisions. 

 Reablement – This is critical to supporting timely discharge from hospital (Also 
known as Step Down support).  The Western Bay model is based on supporting 
effective safe discharge from hospital either into a residential or community based 
reablement service. Timely discharge is supported within Bridgend with the service 
known as Better at Home. This provides a short term bridging care service that 
supports people with levels of care whilst they wait for either the initiation of a 
reablement service or the restart of a current package of care; this can be usually 
up to 5 days, depending on the complexity of the discharge. Although, if someone 
has only been in hospital a short time their existing care package can usually be re-
instated within 3 days. Step up reablement provides a therapy led service that aims 
to address deterioration in the person’s condition, putting an individual’s 
independence and ability to remain at home at risk. 

 Rota visiting -  It is important that Members contribute to the safeguarding of our 
vulnerable adults, children and young people and help to ensure that the quality of 
care provided is appropriate.  It is essential that opportunities are presented for 
Members to meet with people who receive services from us to listen to their views.   
There is a programme of rota visits to the children’s and adults’ social care 
establishments and that the programme includes independent sector adult and 
children’s establishments.  Members undertake visits in pairs and written reports 
are submitted by them for noting or action.  

 Social Services and Wellbeing (Wales) Act 2014 - The Social Services and 
Wellbeing (Wales) Act 2014 received Royal Assent in May 2014. It provides a legal 
framework for the policy aims of the Welsh Government in relation to social 

Page 68



 

43 
 

services, bringing together Local Authorities’ duties and functions.  The Act has two 
key policy objectives: 

o To improve the well-being outcomes for people who need care and support 
and 

o To reform social services law. 
It seeks to: 

o Transform the way in which social services are delivered, primarily through 
promoting people’s independence and giving them a stronger voice and 
control;  

o Promote partnership working in social care;  
o Enhance the preventative role of social care and health, setting out 

overarching wellbeing duties to reduce or delay the need for care and 
support. 

 Telecare – Our vision for Telecare services in Bridgend County Borough: ‘A person 
is able to access and use Telecare as the part of a care plan or a preventative 
measure which enables them to continue to live in and perform daily tasks within 
their home irrespective of the limitations imposed by their frailty or 
disability’.    Equipment is provided to support the individual in their home and 
tailored to meet their needs. It can be as simple as the basic community alarm 
service, able to respond in an emergency and provide regular contact by 
telephone.   As well as responding to an immediate need, Telecare can work in a 
preventative mode, with services programmed to monitor an individual’s health or 
well-being. Often known as lifestyle monitoring, this can provide early warning of 
deterioration, prompting a response from family or professionals. The same 
technology can be used to provide safety and security through bogus caller and 
burglar alarms. 

 Third Sector – in contrast to the public sector and the private sector, the Third 
Sector can be defined as the “not for profit” sector or the voluntary sector. The 
Third Sector is identified as a key partner in the delivery of preventative services; 
able to work effectively in the community supporting people in social settings and 
with creative and enterprising activities, maintaining their independence and 
delaying or reducing escalation to higher levels of managed care and support.  

 Transition – Definition: “Transition may be defined as the life changes, 
adjustments, and cumulative experiences that occur in the lives of young adults as 
they move from school environments to independent and living environments” 
(Wehman, 2006).   The National Service Framework for Children, Young People 
and Maternity Services  in Wales 2005 states “Young people who require 
continuing services, such as those who are disabled or chronically ill, young people 
with persistent mental illness or disorders, vulnerable young people and their 
families and carers, and care leavers, are offered a range of coordinated multi 
agency services, according to assessed need, in order to make effective transition 
from childhood to adulthood”  

 Western Bay Health and Social Care Regional Collaboration - This is a 
collaborative programme between Bridgend, Swansea, and Neath/Port Talbot 
Local Authorities together with the ABMU Health Board. 

 When I am Ready - this is a scheme which came into force on the 6th April 2016 
through the Social Services and Well-Being (Wales) Act 2014(SSWBA). The 
scheme was developed by the Welsh Government in partnership with local 
government and key third sector partners to enable eligible care leavers to have 
the option of continuing to live with their foster carers once they attain 18 years of 
age.   

 

Page 69



This page is intentionally left blank



BRIDGEND COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

REPORT TO COUNCIL

18 JULY 2018

REPORT OF THE MONITORING OFFICER

REVIEW OF POLITICAL BALANCE – CHANGES TO COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP

1. Purpose of Report.

1.1 The purpose of this report is to: 

 advise Council of the outcome of a review of the political balance of the 
Authority resulting from changes to the membership of the Independent Alliance 
Group.

 seek approval of the revised political balance.
 receive a nomination from the Plaid Cymru Group to sit on Subject Overview 

and Scrutiny Committee 2 and for the Llynfi Independents Group to relinquish a 
seat on that Committee, to reflect a required change in the political balance of 
Committees.

2. Connection to Corporate Improvement Plan / Other Corporate Priority.

2.1 This report supports all of the Corporate Priorities:

1. Supporting a successful economy – taking steps to make the county a 
good place to do business, for people to live, work, study and visit, and to 
ensure that our schools are focused on raising the skills, qualifications and 
ambitions of all people in the county. 

2. Helping people to be more self-reliant – taking early steps to reduce or 
prevent people from becoming vulnerable or dependent on the Council and 
its services.

3. Smarter use of resources – ensuring that all its resources (financial, 
physical, human and technological) are used as effectively and efficiently as 
possible and support the development of resources throughout the 
community that can help deliver the Council’s priorities. 

3. Background.

3.1 The Council is required by legislation and the provisions of Part 4 of the Rules of 
Procedure (Council Procedure Rules) of the Constitution, to undertake 
arrangements which will continue to facilitate and carry out the decision making 
processes of the Authority.  On 16 May 2018 Council, at its Annual Meeting, 
approved the political balance and made appointments to Committees to reflect the 
political make-up of the Authority.  

3.2 There has been a recent change in respect of the membership of the Independent 
Alliance Group, whereby Councillor R Stirman has resigned from the Group and will 

Page 71

Agenda Item 7



now sit as a stand-alone Independent member.  This does not affect the seats 
currently allocated to Councillor Stirman whereby she will remain a member of the 
Development Control Committee and Subject Overview and Scrutiny Committees 1 
and 3.   

3.3 On reviewing the political balance of Committees, it has also been necessary to 
adjust the number of seats on Committees, whereby the Llynfi Independents Group 
is required to relinquish a Committee seat and for it to be allocated to the Plaid 
Cymru Group.  

4. Current situation / proposal.

4.1 The political composition of Council is now as follows:

Group No of Cllrs Percentage
Labour 26 48.15
Independent Alliance 10 18.52
Conservative 8 14.81
Llynfi Independents 3 5.56
Plaid Cymru 3 5.56
Independent (JHT) 1 1.85
Independent (RS) 1 1.85
Independent (JW) 1 1.85
Independent (KJW) 1 1.85

Totals 54 100

4.2 Following the review of political balance the membership of committees has been 
updated to reflect the composition of Council accordingly.  The updated political 
balance figures are shown at Appendix 1 of the report.  The variation of the political 
balance is between -0.04 seats and + 0.65 seats.  

4.3 The change required to committee membership to reflect the revised political 
balance is as follows:

4.3.1 Labour
No change 

4.3.2 Conservative
           No change

4.3.3 Independent Alliance
The Independent Alliance Group is required to relinquish a seat on each of the 
following Committees:

Development Control Committee
Subject Overview and Scrutiny Committee 1 
Subject Overview and Scrutiny Committee 3

These seats will be maintained by Councillor R Stirman as an Independent 
member, as opposed to an Independent Alliance member. 

4.3.4 Plaid Cymru
To gain one seat on Subject Overview and Scrutiny Committee 2. 

Page 72



4.3.5 Llynfi Independents
           To relinquish one seat on Subject Overview and Scrutiny Committee 2. 

4.4 Group Leaders have been informed of these proposals and have not raised 
any objections or concerns.

5. Effect upon Policy Framework & Procedure Rules.

5.1 The provisions and recommendations of the report accord with the Council’s 
Constitution.

6. Equality Impact Assessment.

6.1 There are no equality implications arising from this report.

7. Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 Implications

7.1 The well-being goals identified in the Act were considered in the preparation of this 
report.  It is considered that there will be no significant or unacceptable impacts 
upon the achievement of well-being goals/objectives as a result of this report. 

8. Financial Implications.

8.1 There are no financial implications. 

9. Recommendations.

9.1 Council is recommended to:-
 

(1) note the change to the political composition of the Council;

(2) approve the allocation of seats to political groups in accordance with the
political balance rules as set out in Appendix 1 of the report;

(3) receive a nomination from the Plaid Cymru Group to sit on Subject Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee 2 and appoint the nomination to the Committee to 
replace the relinquished Llynfi Independents seat.  

K Watson
Head of Legal and Regulatory Services & Monitoring Officer
29 June 2018

Contact Officer: Mark Galvin / Andrew Rees
Senior Democratic Services Officers

Telephone: (01656) 643147 / 643148

E-mail: cabinet_committee@bridgend.gov.uk

Postal Address Bridgend County Borough Council, 
Civic Offices, 
Angel Street, 

Page 73

mailto:cabinet_committee@bridgend.gov.uk


Bridgend. 
CF31 4WB

Background documents: None.

Page 74



Committee Total Labour Conservative Independent Alliance Llynfi Independents Plaid Cymru

No % Change No % Change No % Change No % Change No % Change allocated difference
Appeals 12 6 50.00 1 8.33 2 16.67 1 8.33 1 8.33 12 0
Appointments Committee 6 3 50.00 1 16.67 1 16.67 0 0.00 1 16.67 6 0
Audit Committee 12 6 50.00 2 16.67 3 25.00 1 8.33 0 0.00 12 0
Democratic Services Committee 11 5 45.45 2 18.18 3 27.27 -1 0 0.00 1 9.09 11 0
Development Control Committee 18 9 50.00 2 11.11 3 16.67 1 5.56 1 5.56 18 0
Licensing Act 2003 Committee 14 7 50.00 2 14.29 2 14.29 1 7.14 1 7.14 14 0
Licensing Committee 14 7 50.00 2 14.29 2 14.29 1 7.14 1 7.14 14 0
Town & Community Council Forum 19 9 47.37 3 15.79 4 21.05 1 5.26 0 0.00 19 0
Scrutiny 1 16 7 43.75 2 12.50 3 18.75 -1 1 6.25 0 6.25 16 0
Scrutiny 2 16 8 50.00 3 18.75 4 25.00 0 0.00 -1 1 6.25 1 16 0
Scrutiny 3 16 8 50.00 2 12.50 2 12.50 -1 1 6.25 1 6.25 16 0
Scrutiny 4 Corporate 12 6 50.00 2 16.67 2 16.67 1 8.33 1 8.33 12 0

Totals 166 81 48.80 0 24 14.46 31 18.67 9 5.42 9 5.42
Councillors 54 26 48.15 8 14.81 10 18.52 3 5.56 3 5.56

Variation as % 0.65 -0.36 0.16 -0.13 -0.13
Variation as Seats(1% = 1.66 seats) 1.66 0.39 -0.59 0.26 -0.22 -0.22

Committee Total
Independent Independent Independent  Independent Conservative
JH Tildesley R Stirman J Williams K Watts

No % Change No % Change No % Change No % Change
Appeals 12 1 8.33 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00
Appointments Committee 6 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00
Audit Committee 12 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00
Democratic Services Committee 11 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00
Development Control Committee 18 0 0.00 1 5.56 +1 0 0.00 1 5.56
Licensing Act 2003 Committee 14 0 0.00 0 0.00 1 7.14 0 0.00
Licensing Committee 14 0 0.00 0 0.00 1 7.14 0 0.00
Town & Community Council Forum 19 1 5.26 0 0.00 0 0.00 1 5.26
Scrutiny 1 16 0 0.00 1 6.25 +1 1 6.25 1 6.25
Scrutiny 2 16 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00
Scrutiny 3 16 1 6.25 1 6.25 +1 0 0.00 0 0.00
Scrutiny 4 Corporate 12 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00

Totals 166 3 1.81 3 1.81 3 1.81 3 1.81
Councillors 54 1 1.85 1 1.85 1 1.85 1 1.85

Variation as % -0.04 -0.04 -0.04 -0.04
Variation as Seats(1% = 1.66 seats) 1.66 -0.07 -0.07 -0.07 -0.07

P
age 75



T
his page is intentionally left blank



BRIDGEND COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

REPORT TO COUNCIL

18 JULY 2018

REPORT OF THE MONITORING OFFICER 

AMENDMENT TO THE CONSTITUTION AND SCHEME OF DELEGATION OF 
FUNCTIONS - REVISED CONTRACT PROCEDURE RULES

1. Purpose of report

1.1 The purpose of this report is to seek approval to:

 amend the Constitution to incorporate the revised Contract Procedure Rules; 
and

 amend the Scheme of Delegation of Functions  as set out in paragraph 4.4 of 
this report.

2. Connection to corporate improvement objectives/other corporate priorities

2.1 This report assists in the achievement of the following Corporate Priority:  

Smarter use of resources – ensuring that all its resources (financial, 
physical, human and technological) are used as effectively and efficiently as 
possible and support the development of resources throughout the 
community that can help deliver the Council’s priorities.It ensures that  
services are delivered more efficiently and focuses on collaboration and 
partnership in the delivery of services and maintain strong and sustainable 
financial performance. Contract Procedure Rules are the internal regulations 
which govern how contracts for goods, services and works are let. They offer 
standard procedures which aim to safeguard the Council in terms of risk and 
compliance with UK and European legislation.

3. Background

3.1 The Council is in the process of a corporate procurement review. As part of the 
review, the Contract Procedure Rules, which form part of the Council’s Constitution, 
have been reviewed and updated.

3.2 The Contract Procedure Rules contain the rules and guidelines for procuring goods, 
services and works. They are designed to ensure compliance with UK and 
European law, ensure best practice is followed and  best value is achieved in 
the use of public funds.

3.3 Due to the implementation of the Public Contract Regulations 2015, the Council’s  
Contract Procedure Rules need to be updated to ensure they are fit for purpose and 
are compliant with the new legislation.

3.4 During the review of the Contract Procedure Rules key officers involved in the 
procurement of goods, services and works have been consulted.

Page 77

Agenda Item 8



4. Current situation/proposal

4.1 A number of changes have been made to the existing Contract Procedure Rules to 
ensure compliance with the provisions of the Public Contracts Regulations 2015 
and to modernise the way the Council procure goods, services and works.  On 19th 
June 2018, Cabinet approved the revised Contract Procedure Rules (attached as 
Appendix 1) to take effect from 1st August 2018. 

4.2 The revised Contract Procedure Rules now need to be incorporated into the 
Constitution.

4.3 The following documents are attached as appendices to the Contract Procedure 
Rules :

 Form of Tender (Appendix 2)  
 Summary of Advertising (Appendix 3)
 Procurement Report Contents Checklist (Appendix 4)  
 Pre-Tender Client Information Sheet (Appendix 5)

4.4 Scheme of Delegation of Functions

4.4.1 In order to maintain effective decision making processes, the following amendments 
are  required to the Council’s Scheme of Delegation of Functions in relation to 
Council functions allocated to each Chief Officer:

Scheme B2

1.3 In respect of any contract having an estimated value not exceeding 
£1,000,000:

(a)   To authorise the invitation of tenders;

(b)  To accept the most economically advantageous tender received and 
enter into a Contract, or the highest tender received where payment is 
to be received by the Council and enter into a Contract.

(c)  To authorise invitation of tenders, to accept a tender or enter into a 
Contract  in accordance with any exemption under the Council’s 
Contract Procedure Rules.

(d)  To authorise invitation of tenders, to accept a tender or enter into a 
Contract  in accordance with any permitted waiver under the Council’s 
Contract Procedure Rules.

4.4.2 A report was presented to Cabinet on 19th June 2018 proposing similar changes to 
the Scheme of Delegation of Functions for Executive decisions.  

5. Effect upon policy framework and procedure rules

Page 78



5.1 The Contract Procedure Rules are a fundamental part of the Council’s Constitution.

5.2 The Scheme of Delegation of Functions will require amendment as shown above. 

6. Equality Impact Assessment

6.1 Although there are no direct impacts, the Constitution as the key governance 
framework document for the Authority is critical in demonstrating commitment to the 
Authority’s duties under the Equality Act 2010.

7. Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 implications

7.1 The well-being goals identified in the Act were considered in the preparation of this 
report. It is considered that there will be no significant or unacceptable impacts 
upon the achievements of well-being goals/objectives as a result of this report.

8. Financial implications

8.1 There are no financial implications regarding this report.

9. Recommendation

9.1 It is recommended that Council:

 Note the revised Contract Procedure Rules to take effect from 1st August 
2018;

 Approve the amendment to the Constitution to incorporate the revised 
Contract Procedure Rules;

 Approve the amendment to the Scheme of Delegations as set out in 
paragraph 4.4 of this report.

Kelly Watson
Head of Legal and Regulatory Services
18th July 2018

Contact officer: Rachel Jones
Corporate Procurement Manager

Telephone: (01656) 642596

Email:  Rachel.jones2@bridgend.gov.uk

Postal address: Corporate Procurement
Chief Executive Directorate
Civic Offices
Angel Street
Bridgend
CF31 4WB

Background documents: None

Page 79



This page is intentionally left blank



Bridgend County Borough Council

Contract Procedure Rules

Page 81



                                        Contents

Rule 
Number

Rule
Page

1 Interpretation 3

2 Compliance with Contract Procedure Rules and Relevant European 
and U.K. Legislation

5

3 Exemptions and Waiver 7

4 Delegated Authority to Enter into Contracts 12

5 Declaration of Interest 13

6 Selective Tendering, Invitation of Tenders and Quotations 14

7 Thresholds and Advertising Requirements 19

8 Pre-Tender Market Research and Consultation 21

9 Procurement by Consultants 21

10 Other Procurement Procedures 21

11 Naming Products, Sub-contractors and Suppliers 22

12 Electronic Tendering 22

13 Submission and Custody of Tenders and Quotations 23

14 Opening of Electronic Tenders 23

15 Amendment of Tenders 24

16 Post-tender Negotiation and Clarification 24

17 Evaluation of Tenders 25

18 Acceptance and Award of Tenders 25

19 Letters of Intent 26

20 Execution of Contracts 26

21 Assignment and novation 27

22 Termination of Contracts 27

23 Financial Limits 27

24 Record and Document Retention and Control 28

25 Contract Management 28

26 Corporate Contracts Register 29

Page 82



27                 Review and Amendment of Contract Procedure Rules  29

1. Interpretation

In these Contract Procedure Rules:-  

“the Cabinet” means the Executive established under Part II of the Local 
Government Act 2000.

“the Cabinet Functions” means the functions for which the Cabinet is responsible.

“the Cabinet Members” means the Executive Leader and the members of the 
executive.

"the Appropriate Chief Officer" means whichever of the following is responsible in 
any particular case for inviting tenders or placing an official order:-

The Chief Executive
The Corporate Director – Operational and Partnership Services
The Corporate Director – Education and Family Support
The Corporate Director – Social Services and Wellbeing
The Corporate Director – Communities.

This definition also includes any Officer to which functions have been delegated 
under the Council’s Scheme of Delegation

"the Appropriate Body" means the Cabinet, and any committee, panel or other body 
to which power has been delegated to accept tenders for Contracts of the category 
for which tenders are to be or have been invited.

“the Chief Audit Officer” means the Head of Audit Service for the Council.

"the Chief Finance Officer" means the nominated Section 151 officer under the Local 
Government Act 1972 for the time being having statutory responsibility for the 
administration of the Council's financial affairs.

“Community Benefits” shall include any benefit to the local community which does 
not directly positively impact on the operation of the Council. This can include the 
provision of additional facilities/resources or the training of primarily inactive 
people through programmes which may include apprenticeships.  “Core” benefits 
are those which are directly related to the purpose of the Contract and can be 
measured as an outcome. “Non-Core” benefits are those which are not essential in 
the delivery of the service and will not be assessed as part of the tender evaluation 
process.

“Contract” means any form of Contract or agreement entered into by the Council with 
any other party for the supply of goods, services or works, or any combination 
thereof.

Page 83



“Contractor” means any person or organisation that undertakes a Contractual 
relationship with the Council.

“Contract Value” means the total value of the Contract over the whole term of the 
Contract. If there is no total price then the value of the Contract is to be calculated on 
the expected aggregate spend over the four year period, if there is no fixed term for 
the Contract. In the case where there is a Contract term but no total price then the 
value of the Contract is to be calculated on the expected expenditure over the whole 
Contract period, in accordance with the Public Contracts Regulations 2015.  All 
Contract values are exclusive of VAT.

The “Corporate Procurement Manager” means the lead Officer for the Corporate 
Procurement Unit, who has functional responsibility for the delivery of 
Procurement strategy and guidance.

“Coroporate Contracts Register” means a live database of contracts let by the 
Council.

“Data Protection Legislation” means (i) the GDPR and any applicable national 
implementing Law, as amended from time to time; (ii) the Data Protection Act 2018 
(subject to Royal Assent) to the extent that it relates to processing of personal data 
and privacy; and (iii) all applicable Law about the processing of personal data and 
privacy;

“EU” means the European Union.

“Form of Tender” means a covering document signed by the tenderer to indicate that 
it understands the tender and accepts various terms and conditions and other 
requirements of participating in the exercise a copy of which is attached at Appendix 
3 to these Contract Procedure Rules

“Framework Agreement” means an agreement between one or more Contracting  
authorities and one or more economic operators, the purpose of which is to establish 
the terms governing Contracts to be awarded during a given period, in particular with 
regard to price and, where appropriate, the quantity envisaged.

“GDPR” means the General Data Protection Regulation (Regulation (EU) 2016/679);

“Internal Providers” means an organisation managed, funded and staffed by the 
Council, which provides a service to various directorates and schools as its core 
business.

"the Monitoring Officer" means the officer for the time being designated as such 
under Section 5 of the Local Government and Housing Act 1989.

“Most Economically Advantageous Tender” (MEAT) means criterion which enables 
the Council to take account of criteria that reflect qualitative, technical and 
sustainable aspects of the tender submission as well as price when reaching an 
award decision

“Parties” means collectively the Council and any other party or more than one party 
entering into a Contract or agreement.

Page 84



“Pre-tender Client Information Sheet” means a document that requires completion 
by the client before going out to tender or to obtain quotations a copy of which is 
attached at Appendix 2 to these Contract Procedure Rules.

"Trade Journal" means a newspaper or journal circulating among such persons or 
bodies as undertake Contracts of the category for which tenders are to be invited.

Words importing the singular shall include the plural and vice versa.

Any reference to any statutory provision shall include reference to any statutory 
modification amendment or re-enactment thereof and any subordinate legislation 
made under them.

2. COMPLIANCE WITH CONTRACT PROCEDURE RULES AND 
RELEVANT EUROPEAN AND UK LEGISLATION

2.1 Every Contract for the sale, purchase or hire of goods by or the carrying out of 
works or provision of services for the Council shall comply with:

(a) the Council’s Constitution, including in particular Financial Procedure Rules, 
Scheme of Delegation, Council’s Contract Procedure Rules and the Corporate 
Procurement Strategy;

(b) all relevant statutory provisions including in particular, but not limited to, the 
Local Government Act 1988 Part II, the Local Government (Contracts) Act 1997, 
the Local Government Act 1999 Part I,  and the Public Contracts Regulations 2015

 (c) Achieve Value for Money for public money spent (Most Economically 
Advantageous Tender);

(d) Be consistent with the highest standards of integrity, having regard to The 
Bribery Act 2010 and The Competition Act 1998

(e) Ensure fairness in allocating public Contracts;

(f) Comply with all legal requirements in particular any relevant EU law, EU Treaty, 
and EU public procurement Directives as implemented in the legislation of 
England and Wales;

(g) Comply with the Equality Act 2010; 

(h) Comply with the Modern Slavery Act 2015 

(i) Comply with relevant employment legislation

(j) Support the Council’s corporate and departmental aims and policies and 
Comply with any council policy

(k) Comply with Data Protection Legislation

Page 85



(l) Apply the Welsh Government approved Supplier Qualification Information 
Database (SQuID) approach as standard to Supplier selection

2.2 For the avoidance of doubt, the Appropriate Chief Officer shall ensure that 
where the estimated Contract Value or amount of a proposed Contract (or 
series of Contracts) is likely to be equal to or to exceed the thresholds set 
by the EU for the public procurement Contracts referred to in Rule 2.1 
above, then the tendering procedures to be adopted must be in accordance 
with the relevant EU Directive, and any statutory provision relating thereto.

2.3 Where an invitation to tender is in excess of £100,000 for goods and 
services and £250,000 for works the appropriate Service budget holder 
shall prepare the relevant part of the Pre-tender Client Information Sheet  
and submit to the Corporate Procurement Manager and Chief Finance 
Officer for approval. 

2.4 The procurement of goods, services or works shall not be divided into more 
than one Contract where that would result in the avoidance of the Contract 
Procedure Rules or would affect the application of the Contract Procedure 
Rules. This Rule shall, however, not be construed as to avoid the 
requirements relating to “lots” under the Public Contracts Regulations 2015.

2.5 The procurement of goods, services and works shall not be artificially over 
estimated or under-estimated which would result in either the avoidance of 
the Contract Procedure Rules or which would affect the application of the 
Contract Procedure Rules.

2.6 It shall be a condition of Contract between the Council and any person (not 
being an Officer of the Council) who is required to supervise a Contract on its 
behalf that, in relation to such Contract, s/he shall comply with the 
requirements of these Contract Procedure Rules and the Council's Financial 
Procedure Rules as if s/he were an Appropriate Chief Officer.

2.7 The Monitoring Officer with the agreement of the Chief Finance Officer may 
issue procurement guidance or protocols, and all Chief Officers and any 
person who is required to supervise a Contract on behalf of the Council shall 
have due regard to any such guidance or protocol.

2.8 The award of work to Internal Providers is not covered by or subject to these 
Rules.  Any work subsequently awarded by the internal provider to Sub-
Contractors will be let in accordance with these Contract Procedure Rules.

2.9 Any failure by officers to comply with any of the provisions of these Contract 
Procedure Rules or associated guidance adopted by the Council may result 
in disciplinary action. 

2.10 Any procurement carried out on behalf of the Council may only be 
undertaken by officers with the appropriate delegated authority to carry out 
such tasks as set out in the Council’s Scheme of Delegation contained 
within the Council’s Constitution.

Page 86



3. EXEMPTIONS AND WAIVER

Exemptions

3.1 Exemption from any of the following provisions of these Contract Procedure 
Rules may be made:- 

3.1.1   In an emergency situation in which injury or damage to persons or property is 
threatened in which case the Appropriate Chief Officer may take any 
necessary action but must report the circumstances and the action taken to 
the next meeting of the Appropriate Body.

3.1.2 For the acquisition or disposal of land, unless it involves a development 
agreement which would require a tender process. 

3.1.3 In the case of Contracts for services entered into in pursuance of powers 
under the National Health Service and Community Care Act 1990, the 
Children Act 1989 , Children’s (Leaving Care) Act 2000 for the benefit of an 
individual client, the Corporate Director Social Services and Wellbeing, 
insofar as it is consistent with the law, will make appropriate arrangements 
for provision.

3.1.4 In the case of professional arrangements between the Councils Solicitor 
and Counsel or external Solicitors, the Corporate Director - Operational and 
Partnerships Services will not be expected to comply with the  requirements 
of this Rule when instructing and briefing Counsel or Solicitors. The 
Corporate Director - Operational and Partnerships Services will make 
arrangements to ensure that a record is kept of all such instructions or 
briefs together with a record of Counsel’s/ Solicitors fees. 

3.1.5 Where goods, services and works are procured by another public body on 
behalf of the Council or through collaborative arrangements awarded via the 
National Procurement Service or by the Council through a Contract properly 
let by another such organisation, then those organisations Procurement / 
Contract Procedure Rules will apply subject to compliance with European 
Union and Procurement Law of England and Wales.

3.1.6 Where a tendering procedure is prescribed by legislation.

3.1.7 For the carrying out of security works where the publication of documents in 
accordance with the tendering procedure could prejudice the security of the 
work to be done, provided the method of tendering has been approved by 
the Appropriate Body. 

3.1.8 Contracts which can only be performed by a statutory undertaker.

3.1.9 Employment Contracts which make an individual a direct employee of the 
Council.

Page 87



3.1.10 Contracts between entities within the public sector as prescribed in 
Regulation 12 of the Public Contracts Regulations 2015, including those 
Contracts where Regulation 12 would be applicable if the Contract Value was 
not below the financial thresholds specified in or by the Public Contracts 
Regulations 2015.

3.2 Waiver from obtaining quotations or tendering will only apply to the criteria 
listed in Rules 3.2.1 to 3.2.9 below and any waiver must be obtained, either:

(a) in respect of any new Contract or the modification of an existing Contract 
(including any extension of a Contract) from the Appropriate Body where the 
value of the Contract or modification of a Contract exceeds £100,000; or

(b) in respect of any new Contract or the modification of an existing Contract 
(including any extension of a Contract) in accordance with the Council’s 
Scheme of Delegations where the value of the Contract or modification of 
Contract does not exceed £100,000

3.2.1 Where no quotes or tenders have been received in response to the 
Council’s procedure for obtaining competitive offers.  This is to include the 
open procedure, restricted procedure, Competitive Dialogue, Competitive 
Procedure with Negotiation, Innovative Partnerships procedures where 
procurement falls within the scope of the Public Contract Regulations 2015 
which implement EU Procurement Directives.

3.2.2 The Contract involved is purely for the purpose of research, experiment, 
study or development under the conditions stated in the Public Contract 
Regulations 2015 which implement EU Procurement Directives 

3.2.3 The works/goods/services can be provided only by a particular Tenderer.  
Single tender procedure shall only be permitted when a single firm or 
Contractor or a proprietary item or service of a special character is required 
and justified and is due to the needs of the service . 

3.2.4 Extreme urgency brought about by events unforeseeable by the Council 
and in accordance with the strict conditions contained in the Public 
Contracts Regulations 2015 which implement EU Procurement Directives.

3.2.5 New works/services, constituting a repetition of existing works/services and 
ordered in accordance with the strict conditions contained in the Public 
Contract Regulations 2015 which implement EU Procurement Directives, 
subject to approval in accordance with Rule 3.4

3.2.6 A Contract awarded to the successful tenderer or one of them after a 
design contest.

3.2.7 For supplies quoted and purchased on a commodity market.

3.2.8 For the purchase of supplies on particularly advantageous terms from a 
Supplier which is definitely winding up its business activities, or from the 
receivers or liquidators of an insolvency, bankruptcy, an arrangement with 
creditors or a similar procedure. 

Page 88



3.2.9 Contracts and frameworks agreements may be modified without the 
requirement for a new procurement procedure in accordance with any of the 
following Rules:

3.2.9.1 Where the modifications in a Contract or Framework Agreement have been 
provided for in the initial procurement documents in clear, precise and 
unequivocal review clauses, which may include price revision clauses or 
options, provided that such clauses:

(a) state the scope and nature of possible modifications or options as well as 
the conditions under which they may be used, and

(b) do not provide for modifications or options that would alter the overall 
nature of the Contract or the Framework Agreement;

3.2.9.2 Subject to Rule 3.2.9.7 and Rule 3.2.9.8 where the modification(s) in a 
Contract or Framework Agreement is for additional works, services or 
supplies by the original Contractor that have become necessary and were not 
included in the initial procurement, and where a change of Contractor:

(i) cannot be made for economic or technical reasons such as 
requirements of interchangeability or interoperability with existing 
equipment, services or installations procured under the initial 
procurement, and

(ii) would cause significant inconvenience or substantial duplication of 
costs for the Council,

provided that any increase in price does not exceed 50% of the value 
of the original Contract;

For the purpose of the calculation of the price the updated figure shall 
be the reference figure when the Contract includes an indexation 
clause.

3.2.9.3 Where all of the following conditions are fulfilled:

(i) the need for modification has been brought about by circumstances 
which the Council having been duly diligent could not have foreseen;

(ii) the modification does not alter the overall nature of the Contract;

(iii) any increase in price does not exceed 50% of the value of the original 
Contract or Framework Agreement.

For the purpose of the calculation of the price the updated figure shall be the 
reference figure when the Contract includes an indexation clause.

Page 89



3.2.9.4  Where a new Contractor replaces the one to which the Council had initially 
awarded the Contract as a consequence of:

(i) an unequivocal review clause or option in conformity with Rule 3.2.9.1, 
or

(ii) universal or partial succession into the position of the initial Contractor, 
following corporate restructuring, including takeover, merger, 
acquisition or insolvency, of another economic operator that fulfils the 
criteria for qualitative selection initially established, provided that this 
does not entail other substantial modifications to the Contract and is 
not aimed at circumventing the application of the Public Contract 
Regulations 2015;

3.2.9.5  Where the modifications, irrespective of their value, are not substantial. 
A modification shall be considered substantial where one or more of the 
following conditions is met:

(a) the modification renders the Contract or the Framework Agreement 
materially different in character from the one initially concluded; or

(b) the modification introduces conditions which, had they been part of the 
initial procurement procedure, would have—

(i) allowed for the admission of other candidates than those initially 
selected,

(ii) allowed for the acceptance of a tender other than that originally 
accepted, or

(iii) attracted additional participants in the procurement procedure;

(c) the modification changes the economic balance of the Contract or the 
Framework Agreement in favour of the Contractor in a manner which 
was not provided for in the initial Contract or Framework Agreement;

(d) the modification extends the scope of the Contract or Framework 
Agreement considerably;

(e) a new Contractor replaces the one to which the Contracting authority 
had initially awarded the Contract in cases other than those provided 
for in Rule 3.2.9.4

3.2.9.6  Where the value of the modification is below both of the following values:—

(a) the relevant applicable financial thresholds contained in the Public 
Contracts Regulations 2015, and

Page 90



(b) 10% of the initial Contract Value for service and supply Contracts and 
15% of the initial Contract Value for works Contracts,

provided that the modification does not alter the overall nature of the Contract 
or Framework Agreement.

Where several successive modifications are made, the value shall be the net 
cumulative value of the successive modifications and the updated figure shall 
be the reference figure when the Contract includes an indexation clause.

3.2.9.7  Where several successive modifications are made:—

(a) the limitations imposed by the proviso at the end of Rule 3.2.9.2 and by 
Rule 3.2.9.3 (iii) shall apply to the value of each modification; and

(b) such successive modifications shall not be aimed at circumventing the 
Public Contracts Regulations 2015.

3.2.9.8  Where the Council has modified a Contract in accordance with Rule 3.2.9.2 
or Rule 3.2.9.3 the Council is required to send a notice to that effect, in 
accordance with Regulation 51 of the Public Contracts Regulations 2015 for 
publication. Such a notice shall contain the information set out in part G of 
Annex 5 to the Public Contracts Directives.

Notification of Waiver

3.3. If the Chief Officer is seeking from the Appropriate Body a waiver from the 
Council’s Contract Procedure Rules under Rule 3.2, the report to the 
Appropriate Body shall set out the reason for requiring the waiver and the 
Contract Procedure Rule(s) from which the waiver is required.  The report 
shall include a legal and financial statement and shall highlight any future 
commitments (whether or not of a financial character) which the proposed 
Contract might entail.

3.4. Where the value of the waiver does not exceed £100,000, the reasons for 
requiring the waiver must be approved by the Corporate Procurement 
Manager, and recorded in accordance with the Scheme of Delegation.

3.5. Where waiver is sought by a Chief Officer in respect of obtaining quotations 
or tendering, the report to the Appropriate Body or record of the decision 
under the Council’s Scheme of Delegations shall in addition to the 
requirements of Rule 3.2 justify the use of an alternative method of 
selection so that propriety, value for money and compliance with European 
Union Procurement Directives and the applicable legislation of England and 
Wales can be demonstrated.  

3.6. Purchasing arrangements made for the Council by the Corporate 
Procurement Manager do not constitute exceptions as such, because they 
are made under the full provisions of these Rules.  

Page 91



3.7. Correct use of these arrangements, as advised by the Corporate 
Procurement Manager will however be sufficient to ensure officers meet 
their responsibilities for compliance.   Such arrangements are mandatory 
and include, but are not limited to,:

3.7.1. Purchasing Frameworks endorsed for use by the Council, where items are 
specified and costed and the option of a Direct Award has been provided 
for.i.e., no requirement to undertake a further mini competition

3.7.2. Collaborative procurement arrangements undertaken by, or in consultation 
with the Corporate  Procurement Manager

3.7.3. Electronic systems and catalogues endorsed for use by the Council in 
procurement.

3.8    The Appropriate Chief Officer must ascertain whether there is a Framework 
Agreement approved by the Corporate Procurement Manager for use by 
the Council.  Where currently valid frameworks are available, the framework 
must be used in accordance with the guidance provided by the Corporate 
Procurement Manager.

3.9    Any joint procurement arrangements with other local authorities and or 
public sector bodies including membership or use of any consortia must be 
approved by the Corporate Procurement Manager.

Established framework and consortia arrangements endorsed by the 
Corporate Procurement Manager for use by the Council shall be mandatory 
except where there is an applicable waiver or exemption, a copy of which 
shall be sent to the Corporate Procurement Manager. 

3.10    Contracts to be awarded on the basis of a Framework Agreement must be in 
conformity with the Public Contracts Regulations 2015 which implement EU 
Procurement Directives. Where it is necessary to run a further mini 
competition, any subsequent mini-tender must be in accordance with the 
terms of the original collaborative arrangement, and the rules of the 
framework (except for the requirement to advertise and those stages in the 
procurement that are not applicable to a framework).

3.11   These Contract Procedure Rules do not apply to Contracts let by school or 
college governing bodies acting in accordance with their approved schemes 
of delegation or Contract procedure rules

 

4.      Delegate Authority To Enter To Contracts 

4.1 Each Cabinet Member has been allocated the following functions under 
Scheme A of the Council’s Schemes of Delegations (Scheme for the 
Allocation of Cabinet Functions to Individual Cabinet Members) in respect of 
any proposed Contract relating to services falling within the Cabinet Member’s 

Page 92



portfolio having an estimated value exceeding £1,000,000 but not exceeding 
£5,000,000:

(a)  To authorise the invitation of tenders;

(b) To accept the Most Economically Advantageous Tender received and 
enter into a Contract,  or the highest tender received where payment is 
to be received by the Council and enter into a Contract.

(c) To authorise invitation of tenders, to accept a tender or enter into a 
Contract in accordance with any exemption under the Council’s 
Contract Procedure Rules.

(d) To authorise invitation of tenders, to accept a tender or enter into a 
Contract in accordance with any permitted waiver under the Council’s 
Contract Procedure Rules.

4.2 Each Appropriate Chief Officer has been allocated the following functions 
under Scheme B2 of the Council’s Schemes of Delegations (Scheme for the 
Allocation of Functions to Executive Directors) in respect of any proposed 
Contract relating to services administered by their Directorate/Office having 
an estimated value not exceeding £1,000,000:

(a) To authorise the invitation of tenders;

(b) To accept the Most Economically Advantageous Tender received and 
enter into a Contract or the highest tender received where payment is to 
be received by the Council and enter into a Contract. 

(c) To authorise invitation of tenders, to accept a tender or enter into a 
Contract in accordance with any exemption under the Council’s Contract 
Procedure Rules.

(d) To authorise invitation of tenders, to accept a tender or enter into a 
Contract in accordance with any permitted waiver under the Council’s 
Contract Procedure Rules

5.  Declaration Of Interest

5.1 No member, employee or agent of the Council shall improperly use their 
position to obtain any personal or private benefit from any procurement 
entered into by the Council.

5.2  Members and employees of the Council shall comply with the requirements 
of Section 117 of the Local Government Act 1972, the Bribery Act 2010, 
and the Officers and Members code of conduct set out in the Constitution in 
respect of the declaration of interests in Contracts with the Council.  

5.3 Such interests must be declared to the Monitoring Officer for inclusion in the 
appropriate registers

Page 93



6.   Selective Tendering, Invitation Of Tenders And Quotations

6.1 Subject to any overriding legislation requirements, all procurements shall be 
invited in accordance with either Rules 7, 8 or 9.

6.2 Where an invitation to tender is in excess of £100,000 for goods and 
services and £250,000 for works the appropriate Service budget holder 
shall prepare the relevant part of the Pre-tender Client Information Sheet 
and submit to the Corporate Procurement Manager and Chief Finance 
Officer for approval 

6.3      A record of tenders and quotations shall be maintained by the Corporate 
Director – Operational and Partnership Services, on the Corporate Contracts 
Register.

 
6.4     In the case of procurements that are required to be undertaken in 

accordance with the EU Procurement Directives and the Regulations that 
implement them in England and Wales, the advice of the Corporate 
Procurement Manager must be sought at the outset and at all subsequent 
stages of the procurement process, and the Pre-Tender Client Information 
Sheet must be completed.  EU directives and the Public Contract 
Regulations 2015 will take precedence over these rules.  

6.5     The value of a procurement means the estimated total monetary value over 
its full duration, including any extension options. Where there is no fixed 
term for the Contract, the value of the Contract shall be taken to be the 
estimated value of the Contract over a period of four years. No procurement 
may be artificially split to avoid compliance with these Contract Procedure 
Rules and EU procurement Directives as implemented in England and 
Wales. This Rule shall, however, not be construed as to avoid the 
requirements relating to “lots” under the Public Contracts Regulations 2015.

6.6   For works Contracts all Contractors must be registered and verified on 
Constructionline. Constructionline show the Contractors and categories 
which have been pre-assessed with a recommended contract value. The 
recommended contract value is based on a financial risk assessment and is 
the maximum limit of work that must be placed with a Contractor without 
additional safeguards.

6.7 Except in the circumstances described in Rule 7 invitations to tender for a 
works contract shall be sent by the Appropriate Chief Officer to at least five 
(except where legislation permits a lesser number or grant conditions 
dictate otherwise) of the persons or bodies pre-assessed for a contract of 
the relevant category and amount or value from the relevant list on 
Constructionline.

6.8    The basis of selection for those companies on Constructionline shall be by 
way of rotation and/or the suitability of Contractors to undertake the project. 
Reasons for such choice must be recorded

Quotations

Page 94



6.9 . The invitation to submit quotations must include the specification, terms and 
conditions and evaluation criteria/weightings.

6.10 A reasonable time must be allowed for Suppliers to return bids. Unless 
otherwise dictated by urgency, a minimum time period of not less than 
14days must be allowed for the return of quotations. 

6.11   A record shall be kept by the Appropriate Chief Officer in a form approved by 
the Chief Finance Officer of the details of every such Contract exceeding 
£5,000 in value or amount and, in each case in which at least three alternative 
written offers or quotations were not obtained, the Appropriate Chief Officer 
shall also record the reasons why it was considered impracticable to do so. 
This should then be recorded on the Corporate Contracts Register.

Tenders

6.12   All of the invitation to tender documentation, including specification, 
evaluation criteria/weightings, must be approved by the Corporate 
Procurement Manager.

6.13  A minimum time period of not less than 14 days must be allowed for the 
return of tenders, except where the tender is subject to the Public Contracts 
Regulations 2015 in which case the time periods specified in the 
Regulations are applicable. A shorter period may be used for quotations in 
accordance with these Rules and any Guidance that may be issued.

6.14 For all Contracts over £100,000 the Council will consider taking into account 
social, economic and environmental issues when making procurement 
decisions.  Please contact the Skills and Sustainable Development 
Manager for guidance.  Where appropriate the Council will see to include 
Community Benefits clauses to maximise the benefits that such clauses can 
bring.

6.15  Where Community Benefits are included in any tender issued by the 
Council, this must be mentioned in the tender advertisement, indicating 
whether they are Core or Non-Core.

6.16  Every written Contract shall include the following clauses as a minimum:-  

(a) The Welsh Language (Wales) Measure 2011 makes provision for 
specification of standards of conduct in relation to Welsh Language.  The 
Measure authorises the Welsh Language Commissioner to serve a 
compliance notice requiring compliance with specified standards as laid 
down by the Welsh Language Standards (No1) Regulations 2015.. Bridgend 
County Borough Council has been served with a Compliance Notice under 
the Measure. The Compliance Notice (a copy of which can be found at) 
http://www1.bridgend.gov.uk/media/341711/20150930-dg-s-compliance-
notice44-bridgend-county-borough-council.pdf places a legal obligation on 
the Council to comply with the notice. Failure to comply with any of the 
standards contained in the notice could result in a civil penalty imposed on 
the Council of up to £5,000. There is a requirement on third parties under 

Page 95

http://www1.bridgend.gov.uk/media/341711/20150930-dg-s-compliance-notice44-bridgend-county-borough-council.pdf
http://www1.bridgend.gov.uk/media/341711/20150930-dg-s-compliance-notice44-bridgend-county-borough-council.pdf


Regulation 1(5) of the Welsh Language Standards (No1) Regulations 2015 to 
comply with the standards when it carries out an activity or service on behalf 
of the Council. The Provider/Contractor/Supplier shall comply with all of the 
standards in accordance with the Compliance Notice. The 
Provider/Contractor/Supplier shall indemnify the Council from and against all 
and any actions costs, claims, proceedings, expenses, losses, damages, 
fines, actions and liabilities incurred by the Council as a result of a breach of 
this clause by the Provider/Contractor/Supplier, its staff or any Sub-
Contractor of it.  

(b) The Provider/Contractor/Supplier shall ensure compliance with all applicable 
employment legislation, including any relevant regulations, directions or 
guidance in force during the term of the Agreement. In particular the 
Provider/Contractor/Supplier shall comply with the provisions of the National 
Minimum Wage Act 1998 and shall ensure all relevant working time as 
referred to in the National Minimum Wage Act 1998 is included in 
calculations for compliance with the National Minimum Wage Regulations 
and Working Time Regulations or amendments thereof.

(c) In performing its obligations under the Contract, the Contractor shall:
(a) comply with all applicable anti-slavery and human trafficking laws, 

statutes, regulations and codes from time to time in force including but not 
limited to the Modern Slavery Act 2015; and

(b) have and maintain throughout the term of the Contract its own policies, 
codes of conduct and procedures to ensure its compliance; and

(c) not engage in any activity, practice or conduct that would constitute an 
offence under sections 1, 2 or 4 of the Modern Slavery Act 2015 if such 
activity, practice or conduct were carried out in the UK; and 

(d) require that each of its direct subcontractors and suppliers shall comply 
with all applicable  anti-slavery and human trafficking laws, statutes, 
regulations and codes from time to time in force including but not limited 
to the Modern Slavery Act 2015. 

The Contractor represents and warrants that at the date of this Contract 
neither the Contractor nor any of its officers, employees or other persons 
associated with it:
(a) has been convicted of any offence involving slavery and human 

trafficking; and
(b) having made reasonable enquiries, to the best of its knowledge , has 

been or is the subject of any investigation, inquiry or enforcement 
proceedings by any governmental, administrative or regulatory body 
regarding any offence or alleged offence of or in connection with slavery 
and human trafficking. 

The Contractor shall implement due diligence procedures for its direct 
subcontractors and suppliers (and other participants in its supply chains to 
ensure that there is no slavery or human trafficking in its supply chains. 

The Contractor shall implement an appropriate system of audit and training 
as necessary for its subcontractors that is designed to ensure compliance 
with all applicable anti-slavery and human trafficking laws, statutes, 

Page 96



regulations and codes from time to time in force including but not limited to 
the Modern Slavery Act 2015. 

The Contractor shall notify the Local Authority as soon as it becomes aware 
of:
(a) any breach, or potential breach of any applicable anti-slavery and human 

trafficking laws, statutes, regulations and codes from time to time in force 
including but not limited to the Modern Slavery Act 2015; and/or

(b) any actual or suspected slavery or human trafficking in a supply chain 
which has a connection with this Contract. 

The Contractor shall prepare and deliver to the Local Authority an annual 
basis on a date to be advised by the Local Authority a slavery and human 
trafficking report setting out the steps it has taken to ensure that slavery and 
human trafficking is not taking place in any of its supply chains or in any part 
of its business.

The Contractor shall:
(a) maintain a complete set of records to trace the supply chain of all works, 

goods and/or services provided to the Local Authority in connection with 
this Contract; and 

(b) permit the Local Authority on reasonable notice during normal business 
hours, but without notice in case of any reasonably suspected breach of 
this clause, to have access to and take copies of the Contractor’s records 
and any other information and to meet with the Contractor’s personnel to 
audit the Contractor’s compliance with its obligations under this clause; 
and

(c) permit the Local Authority on reasonable notice during normal business 
hours, but without notice in case of any reasonably suspected breach of 
this clause, to inspect the Contractor’s workplaces and/or interview 
employees of the Contractor in the event that the Contractor is the subject 
of any investigation, inquiry or enforcement proceedings by any 
governmental, administrative or regulatory body regarding any offence or 
alleged offence of or in connection with slavery and human trafficking.

The Contractor shall:
(a) implement a system of training for its employees, suppliers and 

subcontractors to ensure compliance with all applicable anti-slavery and 
human trafficking laws, statutes, regulations and codes from time to time 
in force including but not limited to the Modern Slavery Act 2015; and

(b) keep a record of all training offered and completed by its employees, 
suppliers and subcontractors to ensure compliance with all applicable 
anti-slavery and human trafficking laws, statutes, regulations and codes 
from time to time in force including but not limited to the Modern Slavery 
Act 2015and shall make a copy of the record available to the Local 
Authority on request. 

The Contractor shall indemnify the Local Authority against any losses, 
liabilities, damages, costs (but   not limited to legal fees) and expenses 
incurred by, or awarded against the Employer as a result of any breach of 
any applicable anti-slavery and human trafficking laws, statutes, regulations 
and codes from time to time in force including but not limited to the Modern 

Page 97



Slavery Act 2015resulting from any action or omission by the Contractor and 
/or its sub-contractors and/or suppliers. 

The Local Authority may terminate the Contract with immediate effect by 
giving written notice to the Contractor if the Contractor commits a breach of 
any applicable anti-slavery and human trafficking laws, statutes, regulations 
and codes from time to time in force including but not limited to the Modern 
Slavery Act 2015.

The Contractor represents, warrants and undertakes that it conducts its 
business in a manner that is consistent with all applicable anti-slavery and 
human trafficking laws, statutes, regulations and codes from time to time in 
force including but not limited to the Modern Slavery Act 2015.

(d)      “Equality Law” means the Equality Act 2010, any statutory code issued 
under it and any supplements to it as associated guidance published by the 
Equality and Human Rights Commission and all other applicable UK legislation, 
statutory instruments and regulations in relation to equality and diversity

a. The Supplier shall perform its obligations under this Agreement (including those 
in relation to the Goods/Services) in accordance with:

(i) All applicable Equality Law (whether in relation to race, sex, gender 
reassignment, age, disability, sexual orientation, religion or belief, pregnancy, 
maternity or otherwise);

(ii) the Authority’s equality and diversity policies or procedures provided to the 
Supplier (as updated and provided to the Supplier from time to time); and 

(iii) any other requirements and instructions that the Authority reasonably imposes 
in connection with any equality obligations imposed on the Authority at any time 
under the applicable Equality Law.

b. In addition to clause (a), the Supplier shall take all necessary steps, and inform 
the Authority of the steps taken, to prevent unlawful discrimination  designated as 
such by any court or tribunal, or the Equality and Human Rights Commission (or 
any successor organisation).

c. The Supplier shall immediately notify the Authority if it becomes aware of any 
breach of clause (a) or (b).

6.17 Every written Contract shall include a clause empowering the Council to cancel 
the Contract and to recover from the Contractor the amount of any loss 
resulting from such cancellation if either:-

(a) The Provider/Contractor/Supplier, any persons employed by them or anybody 
purporting to act on the their behalf, whether they are aware of their acts or not, 
shall have offered or given or agreed to give any officer or member of the 
Council any gift or consideration of any kind as an inducement or bribe to 
influence its decision in the tendering procedure, or in relation to any Contract 
with the Council shall have committed any offence under the Bribery Act 2010 

Page 98



or shall have given any fee or reward the receipt of which is an offence under 
Section 117(2) of the Local Government Act 1972

(b) The provider/Contractor/Supplier:-

        (i)  shall have communicated to any person other than the Council 
    the amount or approximate amount of the proposed tender 
    (other than in confidence in order to obtain quotations 
    necessary for the preparation of the tender for insurance or to 
    obtain any performance bond required by the Council); or

(ii)  shall have entered into any agreement or arrangement with any 
      person as to the amount of any proposed tender or that that 
      person shall refrain from tendering.

6.18 All Contracts where a specification issued by the British Standards Institution 
or an European Standard is current at the date of the tender and is relevant 
shall require as a minimum that the goods and materials used in their 
execution shall be in accordance with that specification

7.       Thresholds And Advertising Requirements

7.1     Thresholds for procurement do not apply to existing Framework Agreements 
endorsed for use by the Council.  

7.2 Thresholds for all goods & services (except works Contracts) and 
advertising requirements are as follows and are set out in the Summary of 
Advertising (as attached at Appendix 1 to the Contract Procedure Rules)� TC 
"goods & services except works" \f C \l "1" �:

7.2.1 Up to £5,000 it is necessary only to demonstrate that value for 
money is being achieved, unless any grant funding conditions dictate 
otherwise.

7.2.2 From £5,001 to £25,000 Minimum of 3 quotes to be requested from 
businesses preferably registered on Sell2Wales, unless any grant 
funding conditions dictate otherwise.

  
7.2.3 From £25,001 to £100,000 all requirements to be openly advertised 

on Sell2Wales where practical and providing it represents best value 
for money.  A minimum of three quotations must be invited when 
following a restricted procedure or when an advert has not been 
issued, unless any grant funding conditions dictate otherwise. 

7.2.4 From £100,001 to the Public Contracts Regulations 2015 Contract 
thresholds, requirements must be tendered, and advertised on 
Sell2Wales (as a minimum).  Where the restricted procedure is used 
a minimum of five tenders must be invited, unless any grant funding 
conditions dictate otherwise.

Page 99



7.2.5 Above the Public Contracts Regulations 2015 Contract 
threshold,requirements must be tendered and advertised in the 
Official Journal of the EU, together with such other advertising as 
directed by the Corporate Procurement Manager. 

7.3 Thresholds for Works Contracts and advertising requirements are as follows 
and are set out in the Summary of Advertising (as attached at Appendix 1 to the 
Contract Procedure Rules): 

7.3.1 Contract Up to £5,000 it is necessary only to demonstrate that value 
for money is being achieved, using contractors with Safety Schemes 
in Procurement (SSIP) accreditation and registered and verified on 
Constructionline unless any Grant conditions dictate otherwise.

7.3.2 From £5,001 to £25,000 quotations are to be requested from a 
minimum of three prospective Tenderers with Safety Schemes in 
Procurement (SSIP) accreditation and registered and verified on 
Constructionline, unless any grant conditions dictate otherwise. 
Where the minimum number of Tenderers required through 
Constructionline are not available, the Corporate Procurement Unit 
will put an advertisement on Sell2Wales for the requirement.

7.3.3 From £25,001 to £250,000 quotations are to be requested from a 
minimum of five prospective Tenderers with Safety Schemes in 
Procurement (SSIP) accreditation and registered and verified on 
Constructionline, unless any grant conditions dictate otherwise. 
Where the minimum number of Tenderers required through 
Constructionline are not available, the Corporate Procurement Unit 
will put an advertisement on Sell2Wales for the requirement.

7.3.4 Over £250,000 to the Public Contracts Regulations 2015 Contract 
Thresholds requirements must be tendered and advertised on 
Sell2Wales, unless any grant funding conditions dictate otherwise

7.3.5 Above the Public Contracts Regulations 2015 Contract thresholds, 
requirements must be tendered and advertised in the Official Journal 
of the EU, together with such other advertising as directed by the 
Corporate Procurement Manager. 

7.4 Where it is considered appropriate to use additional advertising e.g. 
specialist requirements, they should be placed in one or more of the 
following : 

 A local newspaper.
 Trade Journal.

7.5 Where additional advertisements have been placed as outlined in Rule 7.4 
the advertisement shall:

 Specify details of the Contract into which the Council wishes to enter.
 Invite persons or bodies interested to apply for permission to tender.

Page 100



 Specify a time limit of not less than 14 days within which such 
applications or tenders are to be received by the Council, except 
where legislation or funding conditions dictates a different time 
period. Indicate the criteria and weighting to be used to select 
Tenderer and award the Contract, unless this is specified in the ITT. 

8.  Pre-Tender Market Research And Consultation 

8.1 The Council may conduct market consultation prior to the issue of any 
Tender. This may involve seeking or accepting advice from the market. This 
advice can be used in the planning and conducting of the procurement 
process as long as it does not distort competition or violate the principles of 
non-discrimination and transparency.

     
9.       Procurement By Consultants

9.1 Where the Council uses consultants to act on its behalf in relation to any 
procurement, then the Chief Officer shall ensure that the consultants carry 
out any procurement in accordance with these Contract Procedure Rules.

9.2 All decisions must be made in accordance with the Councils Scheme of 
Delegation.

9.3 No consultant shall make any decision on whether to award a Contract or 
who a Contract should be awarded to. The Chief Officer shall ensure that 
the consultant’s performance in relation to procurement is in accordance 
with these Contract Procedure Rules and legislation of England and Wales 
and European Procurement Rules.

9.4 Where the Council uses consultants to act on its behalf in relation to any 
procurement the consultant must declare any potential conflict of interest 
that may arise to the relevant Chief Officer prior to the commencement of 
the procurement process or at such time that the Contractor becomes 
aware of such a potential conflict of interest.

9.5 Where the Chief Officer considers that such a conflict of interest is 
significant the consultant shall not be allowed to participate in the 
procurement process.

10. Other Procurement Procedures

10.1    The use of the Negotiated procedure without prior publication, Innovative 
Partnerships, Competitive Procedure with Negotiation and Competitive 
Dialogue as defined in the Public Contracts Regulations 2015, can only be 
used in exceptional circumstances as directed by the Chief Finance Officer 
and with prior consultation with  the appropriate Cabinet Member and the 
Monitoring Officer.

10.2    The use of Reserved, Concessionary Contracts and Dynamic Purchasing 
Systems may only be used following consultation and prior approval by the 
Corporate Procurement Manager. 

Page 101



11. Naming Products Sub-Contractors And Suppliers� TC "Nominated 
and Named Sub-Contractors" \f C \l "1" �� XE "Nominated and 
Named Sub-Contractors" 

11.1 The principle of non-discriminatory and equal treatment is undermined by 
the naming of products, Suppliers or sub-Contractors.  Equivalents are 
nearly always able to be specifiedand will be advertised with the wording “or 
equivalent” where possible.

11.2   Where the Council has determined that a particular type of product or 
provision of service will be stipulated as an essential requirement of a 
Contract then this must be approved by the Appropriate Chief Officer 
following consultation with the Corporate Procurement Manager.  

12.      Electronic Tendering

12.1     An electronic quote and tender facility now supersedes the use of paper 
tenders in line with the Public Contracts Regulations 2015.  All electronic 
quotes and tenders must be issued using a portal approved by the Corporate 
Procurement Manager. All relevant staff must be fully trained in the use of the 
system and set up to use the facility by the Corporate Procurement Manager.

12.2    For all quotes and tenders issued, the awarded Contract must be uploaded to 
the Corporate Contracts Register on the approved portal.

12.3    An advertisement must be placed in accordance with Rule 7. Any advert 
placed on sell2wales must alert prospective bidders to the requirement and 
the need to register on the approved etenderwales portal. The advert should 
state that bidders must have JAVA to access the etenderwales portal and 
respond electronically.

12.4 All correspondence between the Council and bidders must be concluded via 
the approved portal to maintain a defined audit trail. Under no circumstances 
must email correspondence outside the portal be used. Any verbal 
communication specific to the quote or tender must only be communicated 
through the relevant category specialist and must be confirmed via the portal. 
All clarification questions must be broadcast to all prospective bidders, where 
applicable i.e. not commercially sensitive.

12.5 The requirements for the submissions of bids must be set out in the Invitation 
to Tender (ITT) document issued to bidders via the portal. This will specify the 
return date and time, which will normally be 12 noon on the agreed date. The 
time and date when bidders upload their completed documents onto the 
system is recorded and forms part of an audit record. 

12.6    Any late bids submitted will be recorded by the system and must be 
disqualified. A report will be required from the system administrator of the 
portal that there has been no system malfunction if a bidder challenges the 
disqualification.

Page 102



12.7 Tenders must be opened electronically in accordance with Rule 14 

13.     Submission And Custody Of Tenders And Quotations

13.1 Where tenders are invited in accordance with these Contract Procedure Rules 
or otherwise as determined by the Appropriate Body, the requirements for 
submission of tenders shall be set out in the invitation to tender document. 

13.2  Electronic tenders and quotes are held in the approved portal and are 
inaccessible until the specified closing date and time.

         
14.  Opening Of Electronic Tenders

14.1 Quotations or tenders for requirements having an estimated value or amount 
of £5,000 and not exceeding £100,000 shall be opened via the approved 
portal at the same time in the presence of two officers, both designated by the 
Appropriate Chief Officer.

14.2 Tenders for Contracts having an estimated value or amount of £100,000 and  
not exceeding £1,000,000 shall be opened at the same time in the presence 
of two officers, one designated by the Monitoring Officer and the other by the 
Appropriate Chief Officer.

14.3    Tenders  having an aggregated estimated value or amount exceeding 
£1,000,000 shall be opened at the same time in the presence of:-

(a)  Two Members comprising any of the following:
(i)  the Mayor;
(ii)       the Deputy Mayor;
(iii) the Cabinet Member  for the function in respect of which 

Contract is to be concluded
(iv) the Chairman or Vice-Chairman of the Committee with 

responsibility for the function in respect of which the Contract is 
to be concluded.

If two of these Members shall be unavailable, one or two Members as the 
case may be may be nominated by any of the unavailable Member(s) to act in 
their place being any Cabinet Member(s) or the Chairman and/or Vice-
Chairman of any committee, sub-committee, panel or other body the majority 
of members of which are appointed by the Council;

          (b)     Two officers, one designated by the Monitoring Officer and the other by 
the Appropriate Chief Officer, usually an officer from Cabinet and 
committee and an officer from the corporate procurement team.

14.4   All tenders opened in accordance with rule 14 shall include the Technical and 
Commercial envelope within the approved portal

Page 103



14.5 A record shall be kept of all tenders and quotations  received through the 
approved portal approved by the Monitoring Officer, including any reasons for 
disqualification.

15.  Amendment Of Tenders

15.1 If an error is identified before the closing date for the return of tenders, all 
Tenderers shall be appraised of the error and invited to adjust their tenders.

15.2 If an error in the tender documentation provided by the Council is identified 
after the closing date for the return of tenders, but prior to opening of tenders, 
all Tenderers shall be given details of the error and afforded the opportunity of 
withdrawing the offer or submitting an amended tender.

15.3 Except as provided in Rule 15 a tender may not be amended by the Tenderer 
after it has been received unless examination of it reveals errors or 
discrepancies which would affect the tender figure in an otherwise successful 
tender, in which case: 

15.3.1 If the error is not arithmetical the Tenderer shall be given details of 
the error(s) and shall be given the opportunity of confirming without 
amendment or withdrawing the tender, or 

15.3.2 If the error is arithmetical the Appropriate Chief Officer shall correct 
the error(s) provided that, apart from these genuine arithmetic 
error(s), no other adjustment revision or qualification is permitted.

16. Post-Tender Negotiation And Clarification

16.1 Where procurement is conducted pursuant to the Public Contracts 
Regulation 2015 through either the open, restricted, innovative partnerships 
or competitive dialogue procedures, no post-tender negotiations are 
permitted. Any negotiation in respect of the competitive procedure with 
negotiation must comply with the requirements of the Public Contracts 
Regulations 2015.  

16.2    The responsible officer may seek clarification from Tenderers where 
appropriate in consultation with the Corporate Procurement Manager. 

 
16.2 Where procurements do not exceed the Public Contracts  Regulation 2015   

thresholds the Appropriate Chief Officer may authorise negotiations in 
exceptional circumstances, following the opening of tenders and before 
acceptance, subject to compliance with any legislative requirements, and 
only when:

(a) Amendments have been made to any relevant specification since the 
invitation of tenders, which could not have been foreseen at the 
invitation stage, or

(b)  The volume of goods, works or services required by the Council has       
substantially increased or decreased since the invitation of tenders, or

Page 104



            (c)        Only one tender has been received, or
            
            (d)        Tender prices exceed financial targets predetermined by the Council, 

the Cabinet or the appropriate Committee,
In all instances, the possibility of such negotiations must have been indicated 
in the invitation to tender.

16.4 Negotiations shall be conducted in a manner which treats all Tenderers 
equally and is non-discriminatory and transparent at all times during the 
procurement process, and a full record of the negotiations shall be made by 
the Appropriate Chief Officer which shall include the names of the officers 
involved, minutes of all meetings and copies of all relevant correspondence 
and other documents.

17.  Evaluation Of Tenders

17.1 The Chief Officer shall examine tenders in accordance with predetermined 
evaluation criteria. 

17.2 In respect of all tenders where the tender criteria is the Most Economically 
Advantageous Tender (which can be the lowest/highest price only where 
appropriate) the evaluation criteria shall as a minimum be listed in the 
Invitation To Tender documentation in order of importance. Any particular 
scoring or weighting attributable to any criteria and sub-criteria must be clearly 
stated. In addition, the criteria must be strictly observed and remain 
unchanged at all times throughout the Contract award procedure. 

18. Acceptance And Award Of Tenders

18.1  A Contract shall only be awarded subject to the tender evaluation criteria 
specified in the invitation to tender document. 

18.2    Tenders for Contracts having an estimated value exceeding £5,000,000 may 
be invited and accepted only by the Appropriate Body unless the power to do 
so has been specifically allocated or delegated to the appropriate Cabinet 
Member or Appropriate Chief Officer. 

18.3 No tender relating to a Contract to which Sections 2 to 9 of the Local 
Government (Contracts) Act 1997 apply, shall be accepted without the 
approval of the Monitoring Officer.

18.4 Before a tender is accepted other than for the sale of goods the 
Appropriate Chief Officer must obtain the Chief Finance Officer's 
confirmation that the Tenderer's financial standing is satisfactory, unless the 
Tenderer has already been approved using the  prequalification
 of the tender process.

18.5 The award of any Contract shall be in accordance with the Public Contract 
Regulations 2015 and the requirements of any other legislation including any 
EU public procurement directive.

Page 105



18.6 If the award of any Contract is subject to the Public Contracts Regulations 
2015 or any EU public procurement directive, then there shall be a standstill 
period of at least ten calendar days between the communication of the 
decision of the intention to award the Contract being notified to those parties 
who were selected to tender, or who applied to be selected to tender, and the 
entering into of that Contract.

18.7   ‘Standstill’ letters issued as part of a tender process under EU Regulations 
must not be issued prior to confirmation of award in accordance with the 
Council’s constitution.

18.8   Feedback to unsuccessful tenderers must be included in the standstill letters 
and must include the characteristics and relative advantages of the tender 
selected. For Contracts subject to the Public Contracts Regulations 2015, 
the requirements of the Public Contracts Regulations 2015 must also be 
complied with.

18.9  Where a tender above the EU threshold  has been tendered and advertised 
on Sell2Wales, the Council shall publish a Contract Award Notice on 
Sell2Wales which will also be included in the Official Journal of the EU, and 
as soon as possible after the decision to award and in any event no later 
than 30 calendar days after the date of award of the Contract.

18.10   All correspondence notifying evaluation outcomes must be communicated 
through the approved portal

19. Letters Of Intent

19.1 Letters of Intent shall only be used with the agreement of the Corporate 
Director – Operational and Partnerships and only in very exceptional 
circumstances.  

19.2 Where the terms and conditions of the Contract are not fully agreed no 
Contractor shall be allowed on site to begin preliminary works until a full risk 
assessment has been carried out by the Appropriate Chief Officer as to 
possible implications to the Council by the Contractor being allowed to start on 
site before the Contract terms and conditions have been finalised. 

20.  Execution Of Contracts

20.1 Every Contract not exceeding £500,000 in amount or value shall be in writing 
in a form approved by the Monitoring Officer such form being the Form of 
Tender.However the Form of Tender should not be used in the following 
situations and a formal Contract must be entered into:

            (a) where the appropriate Directorate has assessed the level of risk 
associated with the Contract and it deems the level of risk to be high; or

            (b) where the Contract must be executed under seal.

Page 106



The Form of Tender  must be issued as part of the tender and must be 
signed and returned by the bidder. On contract award the signed Form of 
Tender must be issued with the award letter, signed by the Appropriate Chief 
Officer, or another officer authorised in writing to sign on behalf of the 
Appropriate Chief Officer, or by the Monitoring Officer or another officer 
authorised in writing by the Monitoring Officer . Both Parties are to keep a 
signed Form of Tender.

20.2 Every Contract, including frameworks which exceeds £500,000 in amount or 
value shall be executed under seal.

20.3 Contracts in writing or official orders not exceeding £100,000 in amount or 
value may be signed either by the Appropriate Chief Officer or by an officer in 
writing authorised to approve on behalf of the Appropriate Chief Officer. 

20.4.   Every Contract for Works (other than Framework Agreements ) exceeding 
£1,000,000 shall require a Performance Bond and for Contracts below this 
limit the Appropriate Chief Officer shall determine the necessity for a 
Performance Bond based on an assessment of risk for that Contract. A Surety 
shall be approved by the Chief Finance Officer.

20.5    A risk assessment shall be conducted for all service Contracts to determine 
the necessity for a performance bond. The approval of the Chief Finance 
Officer is required where a performance bond is not deemed necessary for 
service Contracts in excess of £1,000,000 in value

20.6 Contracts not exceeding £500,000 may be signed electronically except in the 
following situations:

            (a) where the appropriate Directorate has assessed the level of risk 
associated with the Contract and it deems the level of risk to be high; or

            (b) where the Contract must be executed under seal.
           
 The use of electronic signature must be in accordance with the procedure set down 
by the Corporate Procurement Manager. 

21.      Assignment And Novation

21.1 Any Contract subject to potential assignment and novation must be referred 
to the Corporate Director – Operational and Partnerships Services at the earliest 
possible instance.

22.      Termination Of Contracts

22.1 For any Contract, or part thereof, exceeding £100,000 in value, early 
termination shall be approved by the Appropriate Chief Officer in consultation with 
the  Corporate Director – Operational and Partnership Services and the Chief 
Finance Officer and must be in accordance with the termination provisions set out in 
the Contract. Contracts of a lesser value may be terminated early by agreement prior 

Page 107



to the expiry date or in accordance with the termination provisions set out in the 
Contract. 

23.  Financial Limits

23.1 With the exception of the financial limit specified in Rule 20, which may be 
varied only by the Council, the financial limits specified in these Contract Procedure 
Rules or any of them may be varied at any time by the Chief Finance Officer in 
consultation with the Monitoring Officer, but any alterations shall be reported to the 
next meeting of the Council.

24. Record And Document Retention And Control

24.1   A full report of all Contracts awarded should be written and kept 
electronically. (A checklist of what the report should contain can be found at 
Appendix 4 to these Contract Procedure Rules - Procurement Report – 
Contents Checklist.)

24.2  A full record of all documents used including the Delegated Power to invite 
and accept, any other internal approvals, should be scanned and uploaded 
into the approved portal or procurements ‘o’ drive against the specific 
Contract reference number.

24.3   All Contracts under seal i.e. Deeds (inc. Tenders) must to be retained for a 
minimum of 12 years after the term of the Contract has expired. Contracts 
under hand must be retained for a minimum of 6 years after the term of the 
Contract has expired, unless a longer period is required by legislation or 
grant conditions.

24.4   Unsuccessful tender and pre-qualifying documents which have been 
accepted for tender purposes will be retained for a minimum period of 2 
years after the start of the Contract within the approved portal.

24.5  Any tender which is rejected or disqualified at the time of opening will be 
notified via the approved portal.

24.6   All Request for Quotations must be retained for a minimum period of 2 years 
after the term of the Contract has expired.

24.7 Where Contracts are subject to the Public Contract Regulations 2015, they 
must also comply with the record, document retention and control 
requirements of the Public Contract Regulations 2015.

25.         Contract Management
25.1 A Contract must not start until the Contract has been signed or sealed by 

both parties and dated. Directorates must allow time for this in their 
forward work plan.

 25.2 Within ten calendar days of the start of the Contract, the directorate must 
add the details of the Contract onto the Corporate Contracts Register and 
record the following:

Page 108



       (a) the works, goods or services to be provided;
       (b) the name of the Contractor,
       (c) the Contract Value;
       (d) the commencement and completion/termination dates;
       (e) any extension options

These details must be maintained and updated as and when required to 
do so. 

25.3 The Directorate shall be the Contract manager for the Contracts for which 
they are responsible for up to the EU thresholds, but may authorise 
another officer to have day-to-day responsibility for managing the 
Contract.  For Contracts over the EU Thresholds, the directorate must 
appoint a dedicated Contract manager with appropriate skills and 
experience.  

25.4 The Contract manager is responsible for:
(a)  Managing the Contract and ensuring that it is carried out in accordance 

with its terms and conditions;
(b) Monitoring the Contractor’s performance and carrying out mid-Contract 

reviews to determine ongoing value for money;
(c) Ensuring that the Contractor maintains the insurance policies required by 

the Contract;
(d) Keeping a record of all payments, claims, monitoring, changes and 

certificates under the Contract;
25.5 The Contract manager must consult the Monitoring Officer for 

consideration of the Council's legal position:
(a) Before any Contract is to be terminated or suspended;
(b) In the event of a claim for payment not clearly within the terms and 

conditions of Contract;

26.      Corporate Contracts Register

26.1 The Corporate Contracts Register is held within the approved portal and all 
quotations and tenders conducted must be created into a Contract. It is the 
responsibility of each Directorate to create and maintain their own Contracts 
within the portal

26.2 It is the responsibility of each Directorate to update the register following a 
quotation or tender process within the approved portal.

26.3 Any officer that requires training must contact the corporate procurement unit 

27.    Review And Amendment Of Contract Procedure Rules

27.1The Corporate Procurement Manager shall continually review these Contract 
Procedure Rules and shall undertake a formal review at least every three years.

Page 109



Page 110



FORM OF TENDER FOR THE SUPPLY OF SERVICES/GOODS/WORKS

To: BRIDGEND COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL
CIVIC OFFICES
ANGEL STREET
BRIDGEND   
CF31 4WB

Tender for: 

Tender No: 

i) The Council requires that certain services/goods/works should be 
provided namely the supply of [SET OUT SERVICE/GOODS/WORKS 
DETAILS], more specifically identified in the Contract Documents as 
defined below (“the Service/Goods/Works”).

ii) On [DATE] the Council invited the Tenderer to tender for the provision 
of the Services/Goods/Works.

iii) Having examined the Instructions to Tenderers, Conditions of Contract, 
the Specification, the schedules and all other tender documentation 
issued by the Council for the Service/Goods/Works, the Supplier 
hereby tenders and undertakes to perform the Service/Goods/Works 
for the Contract Period (as identified in the Contract Documents) in 
conformity with the Conditions of Contract (including any special 
conditions), the Specification, the schedules and all appendices, plans, 
pricing documents and all other tender documentation and the 
Tenderer’s response to them (the “Contract Documents”), at the prices 
and rates agreed therein exclusive of VAT subject to any change in 
scope as agreed by the Council.

iv) The Tenderer certifies that this is a bona fide tender.

v) The Tenderer hereby warrant and undertake to the Council in the terms 
set out in the Instructions to Tenderers.

vi) The Tenderer agrees that the insertion of any conditions qualifying this 
tender which are not permitted by the tender documentation or any 
unauthorised alteration to any of the tender documents shall cause the 
tender to be rejected.

Page 111



vii) The Tenderer agrees that their tender shall remain open for 
acceptance by the Council and shall not be withdrawn for a period of 
13 weeks from the closing date for return of tenders.

viii) The Tenderer understands that the Council is not bound to accept the 
lowest, the most economically advantageous or any tender the Council  
may receive and that the Council may accept part or all of the tender 
and that the Council will not pay any expenses incurred by me in 
connection with the preparation and submission of this tender.

ix) Should its tender be accepted by the Council the Tenderer agrees to 
execute a formal contract prepared by the Council’s Legal Department 
embodying all of the terms and conditions contained within the tender 
documentation if so requested by the Council.

x) Unless and until such an agreement is executed this Form of 
Tender and the acceptance hereof by the Council shall constitute 
a binding contract between the parties and in consideration of the 
payments to be made by the Council in accordance with the 
Contract Documents, the Tenderer hereby covenants with the 
Council to supply the Services/Goods/Works in conformity in all 
respects with the provisions of the Contract Documents.

I confirm that I have read and understand this document.  

NOTE: Envelopes to bear no marks identifying Tenderer.

Tenderers Representatives Signature: ___________________________

Print name ___________________________________________________

* Position in 
Company/Firm:_________________________________________________

* Signatory must be a Director or Secretary or another person duly authorised 
by the Company to sign and in the latter case, proof of authority to sign must 
be submitted with the form for tender or if Sole Trader please insert “I am a 
sole trader” 

  Name of Company/Firm/Other Organisation: 
__________________________________________________

  Company Registration Number (if applicable): 
__________________________________________________

Page 112



  Registered Office Address or Principal Place of Business:
__________________________________________________

  Address of Principal Place of Business: [if different from above]

__________________________________________________

Telephone Number: _________    Facsimile Number: ______________

Date: _____________________

(the “Tenderer”)

Council Authorised Signature: ___________________________

Print name ___________________________________________________

Position in Council:__

Date of Acceptance: _____________________

(the “Council”)

Page 113



This page is intentionally left blank



Summary of Advertising, Notices and Reports

Total Value Competition Advertising Permission to tender/award Reports

Goods and Services

Up to £5,000

No competitive quotes required, but 
must demonstrate value for money 
unless any Grant conditions dictate 
otherwise

None required
Officer decision

None required but records 
to be kept for audit purposes

£5,001 - £25,000
A minimum of 3 competitive quotes 
required and conducted via the 
etenderwales portal unless Grant 
conditions dictate otherwise

None required
Officer decision

None required but records 
to be kept
Audit trail via the 
etenderwales portal

£25,001 - £100,000

A minimum of 3 competitive quotes 
required and conducted via the 
etenderwales portal, unless Grant 
conditions dictate otherwise

Openly advertised on 
Sell2Wales where 
practical and providing it 
represents value for 
money

Officer decision
None required but records 
to be kept
Audit trail via the 
etenderwales portal

£100,001 – Threshold

Open competition required via the 
etenderwales portal, unless Grant 
conditions dictate otherwise

Openly advertised on 
Sell2Wales

Delegated Power required to 
go out to tender and one to 
award

Report required 

See Appendix 4

Above Threshold

Full EU procedure is required via the 
etenderwales portal 

Advertise in the Official 
Journal of the EU (OJEU) 
via Sell2Wales

Delegated Power to go out 
to tender and one to award 
up to £5m
Above £5m Cabinet Report 
required

Report required

See Appendix 4

P
age 115



Summary of Advertising, Notices and Reports

Mini Competition from 
Framework 
Agreements

Competition conducted via the 
etenderwales portal to suppliers on 
the framework

None required Below £100,000 Officer 
Decision 

Report required

See Appendix 4 

Mini Competition from 
Framework 
Agreements

Competition conducted via the 
etenderwales portal to suppliers on 
the framework

None required Delegated power to go out 
to tender and one to award 
for any spend above 
£100,000

Report required

See Appendix 4 

Works

Up to £5,000

No competitive quotes required, but 
must demonstrate value for money 
using contractors with Safety Schemes 
in Procurement (SSIP) accreditation 
and registered and verified on 
Constructionline, unless any Grant 
conditions dictate otherwise

None required Officer decision None required but records 
to be kept for audit purposes

£5,001 – £25,000 A minimum of 3 competitive quotes 
required using contractors with Safety 
Schemes in Procurement (SSIP) 
accreditation and registered and 
verified on Constructionline and via 
the etenderwales portal, unless any 
Grant conditions dictate otherwise

None required Officer decision None required but records 
to be kept
Audit trail via the 
etenderwales portal

£25,001 - £250,000 

A minimum of 5 competitive quotes 
required using contractors with Safety 
Schemes in Procurement (SSIP) 
accreditation and registered and 
verified on Constructionline and via 
the etenderwales portal, unless any 

None required Officer decision None required but records 
to be kept
Audit trail via the 
etenderwales portal

P
age 116



Summary of Advertising, Notices and Reports

*Threshold = Public Contracts Regulations 2015 thresholds

Grant conditions dictate otherwise

£250,001 - Threshold

Open competition required via the 
etenderwales portal, unless Grant 
conditions dictate otherwise

Openly advertised on 
Sell2Wales

Delegated Power required to 
go out to tender and one to 
award

Report required 

See Appendix 4

Above Threshold
Full EU procedure is required via the 
etenderwales portal 

Advertise in the Official 
Journal of the EU (OJEU) 
via Sell2Wales

Delegated Power to go out 
to tender and one to award 
up to £5m
Above £5m Cabinet Report 
required

Report required 

See Appendix 4

Mini Competitions 
from Framework 
Agreements

Competition conducted via the 
etenderwales portal to suppliers on 
the framework

None required Below £250,000 Officer 
Decision 

Report required 

See Appendix 4 

Mini Competitions 
from Framework 
Agreements

Competition conducted via the 
etenderwales portal to suppliers on 
the framework

None required Delegated power to go out 
to tender and one to award 
for any spend above 
£250,000

Report required 

See Appendix 4 

P
age 117



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 4 – Procurement Report – Contents Checklist

Data Required Included

Name and address of contracting authority Yes
Subject-matter and value of the contract Yes 
Names of candidates/tenderers passing any 
selection (PQQ) stage and the reasons for their 
selection 

If relevant 

Names of candidates deselected following any 
selection (PQQ) stage and the reasons for their 
deselection 

If relevant 

Names of bidders selected, to continue to take part 
in a competitive procedure with negotiation or 
competitive dialogue process, and the reasons for 
their selection 

If relevant 

Names of bidders deselected from a competitive 
procedure with negotiation or competitive dialogue 
process, and the reasons for their deselection 

If relevant 

Reasons for rejection of any tender found to be 
abnormally low 

If relevant 

Name(s) of successful bidder(s) Yes 
Reasons why successful bid(s) was/were selected Yes 
Share of the contract/framework agreement that 
the successful bidder intends to sub-contract 

If relevant 

Names of the main sub-contractors If relevant 
Justification for use of competitive procedure with 
negotiation process or competitive dialogue 
process 

If relevant 

Justification for use of negotiated procedure without 
prior publication 

If relevant 

Reasons why the contracting authority decided not 
to award the contract/framework agreement 

If relevant 

Reasons why non-electronic means was used for 
submission of tenders 

If relevant 

Details of conflicts of interest detected and 
subsequent measures taken to deal with such 
conflicts of interest 

If relevant 

In a Light Touch regime process, where the 
contracting authority has chosen to depart from the 
process as originally stated in the procurement 
documents, this decision and the reasons behind it 
must be documented 

If relevant 

If not recorded elsewhere in the procurement 
documentation, an indication of the main reasons 
why the contracting authority considers there to be 
a justified case for requiring bidders to evidence 
turnover that is greater than the standard permitted 
maximum of twice the estimated contract value (for 
example, due to special risks attached to the nature 
of the works, services or supplies)

If relevant

If not recorded elsewhere in the procurement 
documentation, the main reasons for decision of 
the contracting authority not to subdivide the 

If relevant

Page 119



requirement into lots

Page 120



Version 2

PRE-TENDER CLIENT INFORMATION SHEET

1. This document is required to be completed by the Client to comply with clause 2.3 of the 
Contract Procedure Rules and will provide the basic information necessary to commence 
any Tender process.

2. Once the form is completed please email it to the Corporate Procurement Manager.
3. No Procurement activity shall take place until it has been fully completed and accepted 

by the Corporate Procurement Manager and/or Chief Finance Officer.
4. All Procurement activity shall be in accordance with the Procurement Strategy and 

Contract Procedure Rules.
NAME: DEPARTMENT: 

ADDRESS: 

TEL: EMAIL: 

REQUIREMENT: (Please provide a brief description of the project – why, what and when. Indicate if there are 
opportunities for Collaboration, Community Benefits or Sustainability opportunities)

SPECIFICATION: (Has a specification been written by the Client?) Y / N

SPECIFICATION: (When will an agreed Specification be available?)

TUPE: (are there any Transfer of Undertaking (protection of employees) Regulations (TUPE) 
considerations?)

Y / N
COMMUNITY BENEFITS: (Have you sought guidance from BCBC Skills and 
Sustainable Development Manager where contract value is above £100,000) Y / N

COMMUNITY BENEFITS: (Date when guidance sought)

COMMUNITY BENEFITS: (Does Community Benefits apply to this tender?) Y / N

COMMUNITY BENEFITS GUIDANCE: (please contact Sue Whittaker via e-mail   
sue.whittaker@bridgend.gov.uk  to discuss)

DELEGATED POWER: (Has a Delegated Power been raised by the Client?) Y / N

DELEGATED POWER: (When will a Delegated Power be available?)

ESTIMATED / HISTORIC ANNUAL SPEND: £

Page 121

mailto:sue.whittaker@bridgend.gov.uk


Version 2

INTENDED 
PROCEDURE: 
(If known at this stage - delete 
as required)

RESTRICTED OPEN OTHER

EVALUATION 
CRITERIA: 
(Delete as required)

MOST ECONOMICALLY 
ADVANTAGEOUS TENDER (MEAT)?

LOWEST 
COST?

EVALUATION 
WEIGHTINGS IF MEAT
(If known at this stage)

QUALITY %      % PRICE %      %

PROCUREMENT STRATEGY: (To be completed by Procurement)

1. Strategy:
 

2. Advertisement:

3. On completion, pass to Procurement Team Administrator to populate the 
Contracts Register.

NAME:
Print

SIGNATURE: DATE:

Page 122



BRIDGEND COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

REPORT TO COUNCIL

 18 JULY 2018

REPORT OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE

CARDIFF CAPITAL REGION CITY DEAL – JOINT OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

1. Purpose of Report. 

1.1 The purpose of the report is to present to Council the proposal to establish a 
Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committee for the Cardiff Capital Region City 
Deal (CCRCD).

2. Connection to Corporate Improvement Objectives / Other Corporate 
Priorities

2.1 The key improvement objectives identified in the Corporate Plan 2018-22 have 
been embodied in the Overview & Scrutiny Forward Work Programmes. The 
Corporate Improvement Objectives were adopted by Council on 1 March 2017 
and formally set out the improvement objectives that the Council will seek to 
implement between 2018 and 2022. The Overview and Scrutiny Committees 
engage in review and development of plans, policy or strategies that support 
the Corporate Themes.

3. Background.

3.1 The Cardiff Capital Region Joint Working Agreement states that Councils shall 
work together to create and agree terms of reference for, to the extent 
permissible by law, a Joint Audit Committee and a Joint Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee and how the same will be resourced and funded.

3.2 At its meeting held on the 20 November 2017, the Cardiff Capital Region City 
Deal (CCRCD) Joint Cabinet received a report detailing proposals for the 
establishment of a Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committee (JOSC) to consider 
the CCRCD.  This report also included a draft Terms of Reference for the Joint 
Committee.  The purpose of the JOSC is to enable Members to be kept up to 
date with CCRCD developments.  The draft Terms of Reference expands 
upon this outlining that one of its main functions would be to perform the 
overview and scrutiny function for the City Deal on behalf of the ten local 
authorities whilst not excluding a local authority’s right to carry out its own 
individual scrutiny of any decision of the Regional Cabinet or City Deal.

3.3 The report proposed that one of the ten authorities host the CCRCD Joint 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee and provide such dedicated support and 
advisers.

Page 123

Agenda Item 9



3.4 Following a proposal, it was subsequently determined by the Joint Cabinet that 
Bridgend County Borough Council would carry out the role of Host Authority.

4. Current Situation / Proposal

4.1 Attached at Appendix A is a brief paper that provides background and 
information on the origins of the proposal for a JOSC and how it would be 
established over the first year.

4.2 The Regional Joint Cabinet report and draft Terms of Reference are attached 
as Appendix B for information.  

4.3 In accordance with Statutory Guidance issued under the Local Government 
(Wales) Measure 2011, when establishing a JOSC, a report containing details 
of the proposal should be considered by each of the participating authorities’ 
appropriate scrutiny committees (or sub-committees) before being endorsed 
by full Council. 

4.4 The Regional Joint Cabinet report and draft Terms of Reference were 
presented to  the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee at their meeting 
on 18 June 2018 prior to it being submitted to Council, both for endorsement 
and for the nomination of a non-executive Member to sit on the JOSC..  

4.5 It is proposed that in deliberations over nominations to sit on the JOSC, 
consideration is given to potential skill sets of Members including any prior 
knowledge and experience of joint working or professional knowledge that 
relates to the City Deal itself which could potentially be of great value and 
assistance to the JOSC. Joint Scrutiny is often focused on decisions taken at a 
more strategic/ regional level and also necessitates considerable learning on 
the job as Members explore new and complex policy areas.

5. Effect upon Policy Framework and Procedure Rules

5.1 The work of the Overview & Scrutiny Committees relates to the review and 
development of plans, policy or strategy that form part of the Council’s Policy 
Framework and consideration of plans, policy or strategy relating to the power 
to promote or improve economic, social or environmental wellbeing in the 
County Borough of Bridgend.  

5.2 Any changes to the structure of the Scrutiny Committees and the procedures 
relating to them would require the Council’s Constitution to be updated.

6. Equality Impact Assessment  

6.1 There are no equality implications arising from this report.

7.        Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 Assessment

7.1 The Act provides the basis for driving a different kind of public service in 
Wales, with 5 ways of working to guide how public services should work to 

Page 124



deliver for people. The following is a summary to show how the 5 ways of 
working to achieve the well-being goals have been used to formulate the 
recommendations within this report:

Long-term - The approval of this report will assist in the establishment 
of a JOSC to monitor the CCRCD business plan

Prevention - The JOSC Panel will monitor the CCRCD’s business 
plans, objectives and priorities 

Integration - The report supports all the wellbeing objectives

Collaboration - Consultation on the establishment of the Joint Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee has taken place with the 10 local 
authorities in the CCRCD programme. 

Involvement -     The Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committee will maintain 
a relationship with other local authorities involved in the 
CCRCD and with through effective partnership working 
and act as a critical friend to the CCRCD Joint Cabinet.

8. Financial Implications

8.1 As the Joint Cabinet report states, the 2017/18 Joint Cabinet Budget contains 
a contingency budget in the sum of £69,500, an element of which has been 
set aside to meet the cost developing the Joint Scrutiny Committee 
arrangements.  Based on initial estimation’s provided for the first year, it was 
agreed that an amount of £25,000 would be allocated to the host authority to 
carry out the Joint Scrutiny role.  From 2018/19 the budget headings will be 
realigned to separately identify the pre-determined sum from the remaining 
contingency budget.  

8.2 It is essential that the JOSC use the first year to develop a detailed and 
informed Forward Work Programme (FWP) which will not only focus their work 
but also assist greatly in determining the workload and needs for the future 
including the number of meetings and future budget required.

9. Recommendation

Council is recommended to:

a) Consider the report and appendices and approve the establishment of a 
JOSC for the CCRCD;

b) Identify and recommend to Council a non –executive Member to represent 
this Authority on the CCRCD JOSC , taking into consideration paragraph 
4.5 of the report;

c) Note that it will be a decision for each of the ten authorities if it wishes to 
establish the JOSC proposed.  

Page 125



Darren Mepham
Chief Executive 

 
Contact Officer: Sarah Daniel 

Scrutiny Officer

Telephone: 01656 643387
Email: scrutiny@bridgend.gov.uk

Postal Address: Democratic Services - Scrutiny
Bridgend County Borough Council,
Civic Offices,
Angel Street,
Bridgend,
CF31 4WB

Background Documents
Bridgend County Borough Council Constitution
Bridgend County Borough Council Corporate Improvement Plan 2013 -17

Page 126

mailto:scrutiny@bridgend.gov.uk


 
Appendix A 

 Cardiff Capital Region (CCR) City Deal Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
Proposal and Draft Terms of Reference

1. Background

1.1 The Cardiff Capital Region (CCR) Joint Working Agreement (JWA) states in 
paragraph 10.19.2 that “The Councils shall work together to create and agree terms of 
reference for, to the extent permissible by law, a Joint Audit Committee and a Joint 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee (JOSC) and how the same will be resourced and 
funded”.

1.2 At the meeting of the CCR Joint Cabinet on 20 November 2017, it was proposed that 
the Regional Cabinet consider the establishment and governance arrangements for 
the CCR City Deal JOSC.

1.3 The purpose of the JOSC is to enable Members to be kept up to date with Cardiff 
Capital Region (CCR) City Deal developments.  The draft Terms of Reference (TOR) 
(attached to the Joint Cabinet report as Appendix B2) expands upon this outlining that 
one of its main functions would be to perform the overview and scrutiny function for 
the CCR City Deal on behalf of the ten local authorities whilst not excluding a local 
authority’s right to carry out its own individual scrutiny of any decision of the Regional 
Cabinet or City Deal.

1.4 Subsequent to this meeting, it was agreed by the CCR Joint Cabinet that Bridgend 
County Borough Council would host the Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
providing such dedicated support and advisers within a pre-determined sum to be 
funded out of the annual budget of the Regional Cabinet. 

1.5 The 2017/18 Joint Cabinet Budget contains a contingency budget in the sum of 
£69,500, an element of which has been set aside to meet the cost of developing the 
Joint Scrutiny Committee arrangements.  Based on initial estimations provided for the 
first year, it was agreed that an amount of £25,000 would be allocated to the Host 
Authority to carry out the Joint Scrutiny role.  From 2018/19 the budget headings will 
be realigned to separately identify the pre-determined sum from the remaining 
contingency budget.  It is essential that the JOSC use the first year to develop a 
detailed and informed Forward Work Programme (FWP) which will not only focus their 
work but also assist greatly in determining the workload and needs for the future 
including the number of meetings and future budget required.

First Year of the JOSC

1.6 During the first year of the JOSC there will be a need for Members and Scrutiny 
Officers to attend training and briefing sessions prior to them undertaking scrutiny of 
the City Deal.  This will help ensure that all Members have the same knowledge base 
and understanding from which to start from, however this may result in a limited 
amount of scrutiny work being undertaken in the first year.

1.7 It is proposed that two meetings are held within the first year  so that the JOSC can 
amend and finalise the TOR and officially adopt and take ownership of them.  The 
final version of the TOR will be forwarded to each of the ten local authorities for formal 
approval but this should not necessarily delay the work of the JOSC.  Initial 
discussions will also be held at the first meeting regarding the Forward Work 

Page 127



 
Appendix A 

Programme (FWP) with Members developing in detail their FWP and future focus at 
the second meeting following their training.   

1.8 In addition to monitoring the City Deal Business Plan and/or Programme Plan, the 
draft TOR will also enable any member of the JOSC to refer to the Committee any 
matter which is relevant to its functions provided it is not a local crime and disorder 
matter as defined in section 19 of the Police and Justice Act 2006, and subject to a 
number of conditions and provisos.  Therefore, as stated above, it will be the FWP 
development determined by the JOSC Members that will indicate the needs and 
growth of the Committee. 

1.9 It is anticipated that the second meeting will also allow for the JOSC to begin to 
undertake annual monitoring of the City Deal Business Plan and/or Programme Plan.

1.10 The JOSC has the power to make any reports and recommendations to the Regional 
Cabinet and/or to any of the Appointing Authorities and to any of their Executives in 
respect of any function that has been delegated to the Regional Cabinet pursuant to 
the Joint Working Agreement. 

2. Establishing a Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

2.1 It is a decision for each authority if it wishes to establish a Joint Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee for the CCR City Deal. Statutory guidance issued under Section 58 of the 
2011 Measure states at paragraph 3.1 “that in establishing a JOSC which is additional 
to a Council’s existing scrutiny committee(s) a report setting out its role, 
responsibilities, terms of reference and intended outcomes to be generated by the 
joint exercise should be considered by each of the participating authorities’ 
appropriate scrutiny committees (or sub-committees) before being endorsed by full 
Council”. 

2.2 The TOR state that the membership of the JOSC shall consist of one non-executive 
Member from each Appointing Authority.  Whilst the draft TOR states that the length 
of appointment is a matter for each Appointing Authority, it is proposed that 
consideration be given to the membership (as far as possible) being for the length of 
term the nominated Member is in office.  This will help ensure continuity and with 
possibly only two to four meetings per year, consistency of knowledge is important.

2.3 It is also proposed that in deliberations over nominations to sit on the JOSC, 
consideration is given to potential skill sets of Members including any prior knowledge 
and experience of joint working or professional knowledge that relates to the City Deal 
itself which could potentially be of great value and assistance to the JOSC. Joint 
Scrutiny is often focused on decisions taken at a more strategic/ regional level and 
also necessitates considerable learning on the job as Members explore new and 
complex policy areas. 

2.4 In 2013 in a supplementary report of the Independent Remuneration Panel for Wales 
in accordance with section 147 of the Local Government (Wales) 2011, it was 
determined that the remuneration of chairs of JOSCs (or a sub-committee of JOSCs) 
is not prescribed and is a matter for the constituent councils to decide whether such a 
post will be paid. However, if a senior salary is paid, it must be at the level set out 
within the IRP report.  Each council will therefore need to determine whether they 
would agree to pay the salary required under this legislation should their nominated 
Member be put forward as Chair of the JOSC.

Page 128



 
Appendix A 

3 Proposal 

3.1 It is proposed that this paper, along with the draft Terms of Reference be presented to 
the relevant Overview and Scrutiny Committee for each local authority prior to it being 
submitted to each Council, both for endorsement and for the nomination of a non-
executive Member to sit on the CCR City Deal JOSC.

Page 129



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

Page | 1 
   

 

CARDIFF CAPITAL REGION JOINT CABINET 

JOINT CABINET MEETING 20 NOVEMBER 2017 

GOVERNANCE ARRANGEMENTS FOR CARDIFF CAPITAL REGION 
JOINT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 
REPORT OF CARDIFF CAPITAL REGION PROGRAMME DIRECTOR 
 
AGENDA ITEM: 8 
 
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 

 
1.1 To make recommendations to Regional Cabinet to consider the establishment 

of, and governance arrangements for, the Joint Scrutiny Committee which, if 
acceptable, be referred to each of the ten Councils for formal approval. 
 

2. SUMMARY 

2.1 The Joint Working Agreement (JWA) in paragraph 10.19.2 states that “The 
Councils shall work together to create and agree terms of reference for, to the 
extent permissible by law, a Joint Audit Committee and a Joint Scrutiny 
Committee and how the same will be resourced and funded”. 

3. ROLE & PURPOSE 
 

3.1 In accordance with the terms agreed in the JWA (as above), Regional Cabinet 
recognise and value the need for a Joint Scrutiny Committee being 
established with clear terms of reference which will assist in defining its role 
and limitations. Draft Terms of Reference have been developed by Officers for 
Members’ consideration and this is attached at Appendix 1. 

3.2 It is important that Members of the Joint Scrutiny Committee are kept up to 
date with Cardiff Capital Region (CCR) City Deal developments. The key 
discussions and decisions are recorded in the minutes of the Joint Cabinet 
which are publically available and could be offered for inclusion on the Joint 
Scrutiny Committee agenda for information. 

3.3 Whilst the minutes of the Regional Cabinet will be helpful in ensuring the 
Scrutiny Committee are informed, it is suggested that   the Chair of the 
Regional Cabinet, or another representative, offer to attend meetings of the 
Scrutiny Committee to give a verbal update on the current position of the City 
Deal and a view forward to some of the issues anticipated in the coming 
months ahead. 

Page 131



 
 

Page | 2 
   

3.4 The Governance Lead Officer for CCR City Deal (Gareth Chapman, Chief 
Executive Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council) has advised that dedicated 
support and advisers to the Joint Scrutiny Committee would be beneficial. 
This involvement would enable Members to have continuity of advice during 
meetings and ensure that Scrutiny Officers have a single point of contact to 
seek advice when preparing reports. It is proposed that one of the ten 
authorities hosts the CCRCD Joint Scrutiny Committee and provide such 
dedicated support and advisers, within a pre-determined sum to be funded out 
of the annual budget of   the Regional Cabinet. Regional Cabinet are invited to 
consider and recommend to the Councils for approval which authority should 
act as the host for the CCRCD Joint Scrutiny Committee.  Whilst one Authority 
may act as host authority to support the CCRCD Joint Scrutiny Committee,   
the venue for the scrutiny committee meetings could rotate amongst the ten 
authorities. 

4. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

4.1 The attached report sets out proposals in respect of arrangements for a Joint 
Scrutiny Committee.  It is proposed that one of the ten City Deal partnering 
authorities undertake the role of ‘host authority’, and in doing so, provide the 
Joint Scrutiny Committee with dedicated support and continuity of advice. 
 

4.2 It is understood that a pre-determined sum will be agreed, which will form the 
basis of the budget from which the host authority will deliver this service in full, 
including all associated and ancillary costs.  Depending on the timescales for 
implementing these arrangements, it is envisaged that a part-year sum may 
be required in 2017/18.          

 
4.3 The PMO element of the 2017/18 Joint Cabinet Budget contains a 

contingency budget in the sum of £69,500, an element of which has been set 
aside to meet the cost developing the Joint Scrutiny Committee 
arrangements.  The pre-determined sum will need to be met from within this 
budget allocation in 2017/18.  From 2018/19 the budget headings will be re-
aligned to separately identify the pre-determined sum from the remaining 
contingency budget to provide transparency and to assist with budget 
accountability.         

 
5. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS (INCLUDING EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT 

WHERE APPROPRIATE) 
 

5.1 The statutory power to establish a joint overview and scrutiny committee is set 
out in Section 58 of the Local Government (Wales) Measure 2011(“the 
Measure”) and Regulations made thereunder.   
 

5.2 Section 58 of the Measure providing that Welsh Ministers may by regulations 
make provision under which any two or more local authorities may appoint a 
Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committee (‘JOSC’). Regulations have been 

Page 132



 
 

Page | 3 
   

made, namely the Local Authorities (Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committees) 
(Wales) Regulations 2013 (‘2013 Regulations’). 
 

5.3 It will be a decision for each authority if it wishes to establish the Joint Scrutiny 
Committee proposed. Statutory guidance has been issued under Section 58 
of the 2011 Measure, to which regard must be had. Paragraph 3.1 of the 
guidance providing “that in establishing a JOSC which is additional to a 
Council’s existing scrutiny committee(s) a report setting out its role, 
responsibilities, terms of reference and intended outcomes to be generated by 
the joint exercise should be considered by each of the participating authorities’ 
appropriate scrutiny committees (or sub-committees) before being endorsed 
by full Council”.  
 

5.4 Where two or more authorities appoint a JOSC the 2013 
Regulations prescribe that they must enter into an agreement, which 
addresses a number of prescribed matters. The draft terms of reference, set 
out in Appendix 1 to the report, have been prepared having regard to these 
requirements and more generally the provisions of the 2013 Regulations and 
Statutory Guidance issued. The terms of reference are important because a 
JOSC is only able to exercise functions in relation to matters which are 
identified by the appointing authorities. It is therefore important that the local 
authorities participating in the joint scrutiny committee (referred to as the 
appointing authorities) are clear from the outset about the role, responsibilities 
and terms of reference of the joint scrutiny committee. 
 

5.5 The proposed membership of the Joint scrutiny committee is set out in the 
attached terms of reference and the proposal (1 non executive member each 
authority) reflects the following paragraph of the Statutory Guidance of the 
Measure:- 

3.5 In order to ensure JOSCs represent fairly the interests of each appointing 
local authority, it is recommended that an equal number of Committee seats 
be allocated to each of the participating Councils. Although that would mean 
larger authorities agreeing to have the same membership as smaller ones, 
this would appear to be in the best interests of effective partnership. 

3.6 The 2013 Regulations provide that a JOSC is not to be regarded as a 
body to which section 15 of the Local Government and Housing Act 1989 
(duty to allocate seats to political groups) applies. 

 3.7 The terms of reference, at paragraph 15, set out the provisions as regards 
referring matters to the JOSC. The JOSC may make a report or 
recommendation in relation to any matter referred to it, to any of the 
appointing authorities, their executives or the Regional Cabinet. 

Page 133



 
 

Page | 4 
   

3.8 The joint scrutiny committee will require appropriate resource and the 
body of the report sets out the proposals in this regard, including the financial 
implications.   

General advice  

In considering this matter regard should be had, amongst other matters, to: 

(i) The Councils’ duties under the Well –being of Future Generations (Wales) 
Act 2015 and; 

(ii)  Public sector duties under the Equalities Act 2010 (including specific 
Welsh public sector duties). Pursuant to these legal duties Councils must in 
making decisions have due regard to the need to (1) eliminate unlawful 
discrimination, (2) advance equality of opportunity and (3) foster good 
relations on the basis of protected characteristics. Protected characteristics 
are: a. Age; b. Gender reassignment; c. Sex; d. Race – including ethnic or 
national origin, colour or nationality; e. Disability; f. Pregnancy and maternity; 
g. Marriage and civil partnership; h. Sexual orientation; I. Religion or belief – 
including lack of belief 

6. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

6.1 That the Joint Committee (Regional Cabinet) consider the draft Terms of 
Reference attached at Appendix 1 and if content, submit to each constituent 
Council for approval.  

 
6.2 That it be suggested to the Joint Scrutiny Committee that the Regional 

Cabinet minutes are included on the future Joint Scrutiny Committee agendas 
for information. 

 
6.3 That the Chair of the Regional Cabinet, or another Member representative, 

offers to attend future meetings of Joint Scrutiny to give a verbal update on 
the progress of the CCR City Deal. 

 
6.4 That Regional Cabinet: 

(i)  considers and recommends to the Councils for approval, which 
constituent Council should  host the Joint Scrutiny Committee and provide 
the requisite support services and advice  (subject also to that Council’s 
formal agreement)  and  

(ii)  subject to each of the ten Councils determining to establish the Joint 
Scrutiny Committee proposed and agreeing which Council shall host the 
Joint Scrutiny Committee, delegate authority to the Regional Programme 
Director to agree with the Host Council the level of funding  required  in 
2017/18 to fund such Joint Scrutiny Committee hosting arrangements 

Page 134



 
 

Page | 5 
   

(provided such level of funding is within Regional Cabinet’s 2017/18 
approved budget), with future funding arrangements being considered as 
part of Regional Cabinet’s  annual budget setting process.  

 
Sheila Davies 
Cardiff Capital Region City Deal Programme Director 
14th November 2017 
 
The following Appendix is attached:  

Appendix 1 – Draft Terms of Reference 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 135



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix B2

TERMS OF REFERENCE: CARDIFF CAPITAL REGION CITY DEAL JOINT SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE 

Introduction 

1. Cardiff Capital Region (CCR) City Deal is a Joint Committee of all ten local Authorities of 
South East Wales. Paragraph 10.1 of the Joint Working Agreement states that ‘The Councils 
shall form the joint committee ("Joint Committee") for the purpose of overseeing and co-
ordinating the discharge of the Councils' obligations in relation to the City Deal and to carry out 
the functions set out in Schedule 2 (Joint Committee Terms of Reference) and the Joint 
Committee shall be known as the "Cardiff Capital Region Joint Cabinet", "Joint Cabinet" or 
"Regional Cabinet" (as the context requires)’. 

For the purposes of these terms of reference; 

The Joint Working Agreement means the agreement (as may be amended from time to time) 
concluded on 1.3.17 between; Blaenau Gwent CBC, Bridgend CBC, Cardiff Council, Caerphilly 
CBC, Merthyr Tydfil CBC, Monmouthshire CC, Newport CC, Rhondda Cynon Taff CBC, Torfaen 
CBC and the Vale of Glamorgan Council. The ‘Appointing Authorities’ are the parties to the Joint 
Working Agreement the ‘Host Authority’ means *** or such other authority as the Appointing 
Authorities may agree from time to time. 

2. CCR City Deal is resourced by the ten Appointing Authorities and is supported by a 
Programme Management Office (PMO), full time officers, a Programme Board made up of senior 
Officers representing each of the partner Councils and a Joint Cabinet of the Leader (or Deputy) 
from each Authority. In addition. Legal, technical and financial external advisers have been 
appointed to provide expert technical advice. 

3. Each Council agreed to work together to create a Joint Scrutiny Committee as stated in 
Paragraph 10.19.2 of the Joint Working Agreement; ‘The Councils shall work together to create 
and agree terms of reference for, to the extent permissible by law, a Joint Audit Committee and a 
Joint Scrutiny Committee and how the same will be resourced and funded’. 

Membership of the Joint Scrutiny Committee 
4. The Joint Scrutiny Committee shall consist of one non-executive Member from each 
Appointing Authority.

5. It is a matter for each Appointing Authority, from time to time, to nominate, or terminate the 
appointment of its nominated Member serving on the Joint Scrutiny Committee. Each Appointing 
Authority shall be entitled, from time to time, to appoint a deputy for its Member representative to 
the Joint Scrutiny Committee but such deputy shall only be entitled to speak and vote at 
meetings of the Joint Scrutiny Committee in the absence of his or her corresponding principal 

6. The length of appointment is a matter for each Appointing Authority. 

Quorum 
7. The quorum necessary for a meeting of the joint scrutiny committee is at least 7 out of the 10 
Joint Scrutiny Committee Members, present at the relevant time. 

Election of a Chair 
8. The Joint Scrutiny Committee shall elect a Chair and Vice Chair, which appointments will 
rotate annually between the Appointing Authorities, in alphabetical order 

Rules of Procedure 
Page 137



Appendix B2

9. The procedure rules will be those of the Host Authority for its Scrutiny Committees, 

Members’ Conduct 
10. Members of the Joint Scrutiny Committee will be bound by their Council’s Code of Conduct. 

Declarations of Interest 
11. Members of the Joint Scrutiny Committee must declare any interest either before or during 
the meetings of the Joint Scrutiny Committee (and with draw from that meeting if necessary) in 
accordance with their Council’s Code of Conduct or as required by law. 

Confidential and Exempt Information / Access to Information 
12. The Host Authority’s Access to Information Procedure rules shall apply subject to the 
provisions of the Local Government Act 1972 : 

Openness and Transparency 
13. All meetings of the Joint Scrutiny Committee will be open to the public unless it is necessary 
to exclude the public in accordance with Section 100A (4) of the Local Government Act 1972.

14. All agendas, reports and minutes of the Joint Scrutiny Committee will be made publically 
available, unless deemed exempt or confidential in accordance with the above Act. 

Functions to be exercised by the Joint Scrutiny Committee 
15. The Joint Scrutiny Committee shall be responsible for exercising the following functions: 

a. To perform the Overview and Scrutiny function for CCR City Deal (which City Deal is more 
particularly specified in the Joint Working Agreement) on behalf of the ten local Authorities. 
b. To develop a forward work programme reflecting its functions under paragraph (a) above. 
c. To seek reassurance and consider if the CCR City Deal is operating in accordance with the 
Joint Working Agreement, its Annual Business Plan, timetable and / or is being managed 
effectively. 
d. To monitor any CCRCD project’s progress against its Programme plan. 
e. To make any reports and recommendations to the Regional Cabinet and or to any of the 
Appointing Authorities and to any of their executives in respect of any function that has been 
delegated to the Regional Cabinet pursuant to the Joint Working Agreement. 

Any member of a Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committee may refer to the committee any matter 
which is relevant to its functions provided it is not a local crime and disorder matter as defined in 
section 19 of the Police and Justice Act 2006 
Any member of any of the Appointing Authorities may refer to the Joint Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee any local Government matter which is relevant to the functions of the Joint Scrutiny 
Committee, subject to the following conditions and provisos. 
The conditions for a reference by a member of an Appointing Authority to the Joint Scrutiny 
Committee are that: 
(i) The matter relates to one of the functions of the authority and is relevant to the functions of 
the Joint scrutiny committee, 
(ii) It effects the electoral area of the member or it effects any person who lives or works there; 
and 
(iii) It is not a local crime and disorder matter as defined in section 19 of the Police and Justice 
Act 2006.

Provisos 
When considering whether to refer a matter to the Joint Scrutiny Committee a member should 
first consider if it falls within the remit of a single overview and scrutiny committee within the 
member’s local authority, and if that is the case the member should raise the matter there. 
Members should only refer a matter to a Joint scrutiny committee if it falls clearly within the 
responsibilities and terms of reference of the Joint Scrutiny Committee and if there is no scrutiny 
of the issue in the local authority to which the member belongs. 

Page 138



Appendix B2

It is acknowledged that the establishment of the CCRCD Joint Scrutiny Committee shall not 
serve to exclude a local authority’s right to carry out its own individual Scrutiny of any decision of 
the Regional Cabinet or City Deal matter 

Duration of Joint Scrutiny 
16. To be co-terminus with the duration of Joint Cabinet or if earlier the decision of the ten 
authorities to end the Joint Scrutiny arrangements. 

Withdrawal 
17. Any of the ten local Authorities may withdraw from participating in the Joint Scrutiny 
arrangements upon three months’ notice to each of the other Authorities. 

18. The Joint Scrutiny Committee in carrying out its functions must have regard to guidance 
relating to section 62 of the Measure, which places a requirement on local authorities to engage 
with the public 

Foot notes 
1. No provision has been made for sub committees given the scrutiny committee comprises only 
10 members and that Regulations (SI 2013/1051) require a Sub- Committee to comprise an 
equal number of members of the Appointing Authorities.

Page 139



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Cymeradwyaeth Cofnodion
	6 Adroddiad Blynyddol Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol 2017/18
	3.a Doss Annual Report MASTER - For Council

	7 Adolygiad o Balans gwleidyddol - Newidiadau i Aelodaeth Pwyllgorau
	1a.180718 Political balance

	8 Diwygio'r Cyfansoddiad a'r Cynllun Dirprwyo Swyddogaethau - Rheolau Gweithdrefn Contractau Diwygiedig
	2. Appendix 1 - Revised Contract Procedure Rules Final 13.6.2018
	2. Appendix 2 Form of Tender Final
	2. Appendix 3 Summary of Advertising Final
	2. Appendix 4 Procurement Report Contents Checklist Final
	2. Appendix 5 Pre-tender Client Information Sheet Final

	9 Bargen Ddinesig Rhanbarth Prifddinas Caerdydd - Cyd Bwyllgor Trosolwg a Chraffu
	Appendix A - Draft Report for Scrutiny and Council
	Appendix B - Report of Joint Cabinet
	Appendix B2 - Draft Terms of Reference


